Public Document Pack

CABINET
Thursday, 22 June 2017 at 7.30 pm
Council Chamber, Civic Centre
Members
Councillor Jon Clempner, Leader of the Council
Councillor Emma Toal, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Youth &
Community
Councillor Mike Danvers, Portfolio Holder for Resources
Councillor Tony Durcan, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration & Enterprise
Councillor Waida Forman, Portfolio Holder for Governance
Councillor Danny Purton, Portfolio Holder for Environment
Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Portfolio Holder for Housing
Other Attendees
Councillor Mark Ingall
Councillor Lanie Shears
Councillor John Strachan
AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest
Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any items on the
agenda.

3.

Minutes (Pages 4 - 9)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2017.

4.

Matters Arising
Any matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting.

5.

Written Questions from the Public
To receive any questions from members of the public in accordance with
Rule 10 of the Council Procedure Rules.

6.

Written Questions from Councillors
To receive any questions from Councillors in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Council Procedure Rules.

7.

Petitions
To consider any petitions that have been referred to the Cabinet under
the Council’s Petition Scheme.

8.

Forward Plan (Pages 10 - 24)
To note the Forward Plan, which lists all upcoming Cabinet decisions and
provides notice of key decisions and those expected to be taken in
private session.

9.

Recent Decisions Taken by The Leader, Deputy or Portfolio Holder(s)
There have not been any decisions taken by Portfolio Holders under
delegated powers since the last meeting of the Cabinet.

10.

Portfolio Holder Delegations (Pages 25 - 26)
To note the Leader of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation to Portfolio
Holders.

11.

Appointment of Cabinet Overview Working Group, Panels and
Partnership Bodies 2017/18 (Pages 27 - 29)

12.

Cabinet Overview Working Group Work Plan 2017/18 (Pages 30 - 32)

13.

Local Development Plan - approval of statutory consultation document
(Pages 33 - 128)

14.

Acquisition of Land in London Road (Pages 129 - 138)

15.

Communications from Committees/Working Groups/Parties and Panels
None.

16.

Minutes of Panels/Working Groups
To note the following draft minutes of Cabinet appointed bodies. Minutes
remain draft until approved by the relevant body.
a)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 2 March 2017 of Safety Committee
(Pages 139 - 141)

b)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 9 March 2017 of Cabinet Overview
Working Group (Pages 142 - 143)

c)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 29 March 2017 of Harlow Local
Highways Panel (Pages 144 - 148)

17.

Matters of Urgent Business
To deal with any matters of an urgent nature.

Agenda Item 3

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
HELD ON
23 March 2017

7.30 - 8.52 pm

PRESENT
Committee Members
Councillor Jon Clempner, Leader of the Council
Councillor Emma Toal, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Youth and
Community
Councillor Mike Danvers, Portfolio Holder for Resources
Councillor Tony Durcan, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Enterprise
Councillor Waida Forman, Portfolio Holder for Governance
Councillor Danny Purton, Portfolio Holder for Environment
Additional Attendees
Councillor Mark Ingall
Councillor Lanie Shears
Other Councillors
Councillor David Carter
Councillor Simon Carter
Councillor Joel Charles
Councillor Andrew Johnson
Councillor Eddie Johnson

124.

Officers
Graham Branchett, Chief Operating
Officer
Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance
Jane Greer, Head of Community
Wellbeing
Brian Keane, Head of Governance
Andrew Murray, Head of Housing
Adam Rees, Corporate and
Governance Support Officer

TRIBUTE TO VICTIMS OF WESTMINSTER ATTACKS
A minutes silence was held in honour of the victims of the attacks at
Westminster on 22 March.

125.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors John Strachan and
Mark Wilkinson.

126.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None.

127.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 23 February
2017 are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Leader.

4

128.

MATTERS ARISING
None.

129.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
None.

130.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS
None.

131.

PETITIONS
None.

132.

FORWARD PLAN
RESOLVED that the Forward Plan is noted.

133.

RECENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER, DEPUTY OR
PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S)
None.

134.

JOINT FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORT, QUARTER 3 2016/17
Cabinet received a report which set out both the Council’s financial
performance, along with its performance against its own performance
indicators for the third quarter of 2016/17.
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon
Clempner) it was:
RESOLVED that Cabinet acknowledges:
A The projected outturn position set out in sections three and four
of Appendix A to the report for the third quarter (October to
December of 2016/17 as follows:
(i) A favourable variation on controllable budgets of
£314,000 representing a net favourable variance of -0.50
percent of the gross General Fund Budget.
(ii) A total projected underspend of £481,000 representing a
forecast underspend of -0.77 percent of the gross
General Fund Budget.
(iii) The Council performed on target or above target for 44
out of 48 (92 percent) of performance indicators.

5

B The transfers to reserves as set out in the Major Variations table
in Appendix A to this report are made.

135.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT, QUARTER 3 FINANCE REPORT
2016/17
Cabinet received a report which provided an update on the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) for the third quarter of 2016/17 and asked that
Cabinet noted variances in the HRA budget and the forecast budget of the
HRA and Major Repairs Reserve.
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon
Clempner) it was:
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
A Notes:
(i)

A favourable variation against the approved Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) operational/controllable budget
of (-)£508,000 representing (-)0.90 percent of the gross
HRA budget.

(ii)

A favourable non-operational variance of (-) £3,588,000
representing (-)6.39 percent of gross HRA budget which
includes adjustments to capital programme financing as a
result of the revised outturn for 2016/17.

B Notes the forecast balances at 31 March 2017, of £10,287,000
in respect of the Housing Revenue Account and nil in respect of
the Major Repairs Reserve.
136.

CAPITAL PROGRAMMES QUARTER 3 FINANCE REPORT 2016/17
Cabinet received a report which provided an update on the Council’s
Housing and Non-Housing Capital Programmes, to approve six business
cases and the utilisation of up to £1000,000 to support town centre
development work.
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon
Clempner) it was:
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
A Notes the progress made in the delivery of the Council’s
Housing and Non-Housing Capital Programmes as at 1 January
2017 as follows:

6

(i)

Housing Capital Programme – forecast outturn of
£21,097,000 (revised estimate £22,714,000).

(ii)

Non-Housing Capital Programme – a forecast outturn of
£6,320,000.

B Approves new business cases:
(i)

Work to Stort Valley Ponds and Ditches funded by Essex
County Council (paragraph 17 of the report).

(ii)

Fuel Station Replacement at Mead Park Depot by a direct
revenue contribution (paragraph 18 of the report).

(iii)

Work to Mead Park Depot to comply with regulations as a
part of the terms of a new lease to HTS (Property and
Environment) Ltd, funded by a direct revenue contribution
(paragraph 18 of the report).

(iv)

Refurbishment of Nichols Field Multi-Use-Games-Area,
funded from an approved budget underspend (paragraph
19 of the report).

(v)

To construct a Pay and Display Car Park at River Way
Car Park, funded from an approved budget underspend
(paragraph 20 of the report).

(vi)

Disabled toilet near Pets Corner/Walled Garden in the
Town Park, fully funded by a grant of £105,000 from
Essex County Council (paragraph 21 of the report)

C Approves the utilisation of up to £100,000 from the
Regeneration and Enterprise Reserve as set out in the report to
support town centre development work.
137.

HMO ANNUAL LICENSING
Cabinet considered a report which sought approval for changes to the
Council’s mandatory licensing scheme for Houses in Multiple Occupation
(HMOs).
Proposed by Councillor Danny Purton (seconded by Councillor Jon
Clempner) it was:
RESOLVED that:
A New or renewed licenses for Houses in Multiple Occupation
under section 55 (2) (a) of the Housing Act 2004 be issued for a
period of one year.

7

B The scheme of fees and charges adopted for the Council’s
Additional Licensing Scheme for Houses in Multiple Occupation
be applied to new or renewed licenses for Houses in Multiple
Occupation under section 55 (2) (a) of the Housing Act 2004.

138.

PROCUREMENT OF DOMESTIC WASTE AND RECYCLING
COLLECTION SERVICES
Cabinet received a report which sought approval for the Council to
commence the procurement process for a domestic waste and recycling
collection contractor.
Proposed by Councillor Danny Purton (seconded by Councillor Jon
Clempner) it was:
RESOLVED that:
A The Council commences procurement of a domestic waste and
recycling collection contractor as set out in paragraphs 13 to 20
of the report.
B Authority to approve all necessary procurement documentation
be delegated to the Head of Place in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Environment.
C Cabinet receive a further report on the outcome of the
procurement process and the appointment of a preferred bidder.

139.

COMMUNICATIONS FROM COMMITTEES/WORKING
GROUPS/PARTIES AND PANELS

a)

Referral from Cabinet Overview Working Group - Economic Development
Strategy for Harlow
Cabinet received a report to approve a revised Economic Development
Strategy which had been referred to it by the Cabinet Overview Working
Group.
Proposed by Councillor Tony Durcan (seconded by Councillor Jon
Clempner) it was:
RESOLVED that the Economic Development Strategy attached as
Appendix A to the report be approved.

b)

Referral from Scrutiny Committee - Review of Community Engagement
Cabinet received on the development of a revised Community
Engagement Strategy, which recommended that the matter was referred
to the Cabinet Overview Working Group to help develop a new Strategy.

8

Proposed by Councillor Emma Toal (seconded by Councillor Jon
Clempner) it was:
RESOLVED that the toolkit developed by the Local Government
Association and the Campaign Company, as part of the New
Conversations Project, be referred to the Overview Working Group
with a view to developing a new Community Engagement Strategy.
140.

MINUTES OF PANELS/WORKING GROUPS
RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings are noted.

a)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 24 January 2017 of Housing Standards
Board

b)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 7 February 2017 of Cabinet Overview
Working Group

141.

MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS
None.

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

9

Harlow Council Forward Plan
This plan contains all decisions that the Council’s Cabinet expects to take over the coming year. Where relevant, each decision has
been identified as a Key Decision or as involving consideration in private session.

Each decision listed in this Forward Plan has been assigned an exemption status as follows:
Open – members of the press and public are expected to be allowed to attend during consideration of this matter.

10

Confidential – members of the press and public are expected to be excluded during consideration of this matter. The reasons
for this exclusion will be stated in column 5, and relate to a lawful power to exclude the press and public when specific classes
of information are being discussed, as contained in the Local Government Act 1972.
A Decision Notice for each Key Decision is published within five days of it being made. Decision Notices and documents to be
considered by decision makers are open for inspection on the Council’s website www.harlow.gov.uk and at the Civic Centre, The
Water Gardens, Harlow, CM20 1WG. Representations on an upcoming key decision can be made by writing to the Chief Executive,
using the address above.
The current members of the Cabinet are as listed on the Council’s website at the following page
http://moderngov.harlow.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=121

Agenda Item 8

The definition of a Key Decision is given in Article 12 of the Council’s Constitution but is also set out here for clarity.
A ‘Key Decision’ means a Cabinet/Portfolio Holder decision which is likely:
a)
to result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the
Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates. For this purpose, expenditure or savings are deemed
to be significant if they exceed £50,000; or
b)
to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living in an area comprising two or more wards in Harlow.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I006
849

Local Development
Plan - approval of
statutory consultation
document

Cabinet

22 Jun 2017
Subject to the
outcomes of
the duty to cooperate
process and
availability of
technical
evidence from
third parties

Key decision: No

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Environment
(Councillor Danny
Purton)

22 Jun 2017

Key decision: Yes

Old Harlow

Likely exemption status:
Open

11

Ref.

I007
413

Acquisition of Land in
London Road

Cabinet

Likely exemption status:
Open

Graeme Bloomer

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Regeneration &
Enterprise (Councillor
Tony Durcan)
Andrew Bramidge

I007
393

Disposal of Empty
Properties

Portfolio
22 Jun 2017
Holder for
Housing

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)
Andrew Murray

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
279

Year End 2016/17
Joint Performance and
Finance Report

Cabinet

20 Jul 2017

Key decision: No

Officer's report

Leader of the Council
(Councillor Jon
Clempner)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Malcolm Morley OBE
I007
280

Capital Programmes
Outturn Report
2016/17

Cabinet

20 Jul 2017

Key decision: No

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)

12

Simon Freeman
I007
281

Housing Revenue
Account Outturn
Report 2016/17

Cabinet

20 Jul 2017

Key decision: No

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)
Simon Freeman

I005
696

Award of Contract for
Legionella Risk
Assessments and
Water Hygiene

Cabinet

20 Jul 2017

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)
Andrew Murray

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
307

Energy Procurement
Framework Review

Cabinet

20 Jul 2017

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Environment
(Councillor Danny
Purton)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Graeme Bloomer

13

I007
359

HTS (Property and
Environment) Ltd
Contract Awards
2017/18

Cabinet

20 Jul 2017

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)
Andrew Murray

I007
409

Selection of
Contractor for Prentice
Place

Cabinet

20 Jul 2017

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Regeneration &
Enterprise (Councillor
Tony Durcan)
Jane Greer

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I006
953

Harlow Enterprise
Zone - appointment of
an infrastructure
contractor

Cabinet

20 Jul 2017

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Old Harlow

Likely exemption status:
Confidential

Portfolio Holder for
Regeneration &
Enterprise (Councillor
Tony Durcan)

Information relating to the
financial or business affairs
of any particular person
(including the authority
holding that information)
14

I007
282

Joint Finance and
Performance Report,
Quarter 1 2017/18

Cabinet

14 Sep 2017

Key decision: No

Andrew Bramidge

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

I007
283

Housing Revenue
Account, Quarter 1
Finance Report
2017/18

Cabinet

14 Sep 2017

Key decision: No
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers),
Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)
Simon Freeman,
Andrew Murray

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
284

Capital Programmes,
Quarter 1 Finance
Report 2017/18

Cabinet

14 Sep 2017

Key decision: No

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Simon Freeman
I007
285

2016/17 Statement of
Accounts

Cabinet

14 Sep 2017

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

15

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

I007
286

Annual Treasury
Management Report
2016/17

Cabinet

14 Sep 2017

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

I007
287

Debt Write Offs

Cabinet

14 Sep 2017

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
558

Town Centre Area
Action Plan - Issues
and Options
Consultation

Cabinet

12 Oct 2017

Key decision: No

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Environment
(Councillor Danny
Purton)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Graeme Bloomer
I007
556
16

Local Development
Plan - Approval of
Regulation 19
Consultation

Cabinet

7 Dec 2017

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Environment
(Councillor Danny
Purton)
Graeme Bloomer

I007
410

Principles Report for
the HRA Housing
Review

Cabinet

7 Dec 2017

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)
Andrew Murray

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I004
191

Health and Wellbeing
Strategy

Cabinet

7 Dec 2017
Subject to
OWG Review

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Youth and Community
(Councillor Emma
Toal)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Jane Greer

17

I007
288

Local Council Tax
Support Scheme
Proposals 2018/19

Cabinet

7 Dec 2017

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

I007
289

Treasury Management
Strategy Statement
2017/18: Mid-Year
Review

Cabinet

7 Dec 2017

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

I007
290

Joint Finance and
Performance Report,
Quarter 2 2017/18

Cabinet

7 Dec 2017

Key decision: No
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
291

Housing Revenue
Account, Quarter 2
Finance Report
2017/18

Cabinet

7 Dec 2017

Key decision: No

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers),
Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Simon Freeman,
Andrew Murray

18

I007
292

Capital Programmes,
Quarter 2 Finance
Report 2017/18

Cabinet

7 Dec 2017

Key decision: No

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

I007
293

Debt Write Offs

Cabinet

7 Dec 2017

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
294

Corporate Plan
2018/19

Cabinet

25 Jan 2018

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Leader of the Council
(Councillor Jon
Clempner)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Malcolm Morley OBE
I007
295
19

Medium Term
Financial Strategy
2018/19

Cabinet

25 Jan 2018

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

I007
296

General Fund Budget
2018/19

Cabinet

25 Jan 2018

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
297

Housing Revenue
Account Business
Plan 2016-2046

Cabinet

25 Jan 2018

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers),
Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Simon Freeman,
Andrew Murray

20

I007
298

Housing Revenue
Account Budget
2018/19

Cabinet

25 Jan 2018

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson),
Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman,
Andrew Murray

I007
299

Capital Programmes
2018/19 - 2020/21

Cabinet

25 Jan 2018

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
300

Treasury Management
Strategy 2018/19

Cabinet

25 Jan 2018

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Simon Freeman
I007
559
21

Town Centre Area
Action Plan - Approval
of Regulation 18
Consultation

Cabinet

25 Jan 2018

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Environment
(Councillor Danny
Purton)
Graeme Bloomer

I007
411

The Homeless
Reduction Plan &
Strategy

Cabinet

25 Jan 2018

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)
Andrew Murray

I007
412

Housing Allocations
Policy

Cabinet

22 Feb 2018

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)
Andrew Murray

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
557

Local Development
Plan - Submission to
Planning Inspectorate
for Examination Under
Regulation 22

Cabinet

22 Mar 2018

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Environment
(Councillor Danny
Purton)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Graeme Bloomer
I006
955
22

Regeneration of Lister
House and
surrounding area of
Staple Tye

Cabinet

22 Mar 2018

Key decision: Yes

Staple Tye

Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Regeneration &
Enterprise (Councillor
Tony Durcan)
Jane Greer

I007
301

Joint Finance and
Performance Report,
Quarter 3 2017/18

Cabinet

22 Mar 2018

Key decision: No
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
302

Housing Revenue
Account, Quarter 3
Finance Report
2017/18

Cabinet

22 Mar 2018

Key decision: No

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers),
Portfolio Holder for
Housing (Councillor
Mark Wilkinson)

Likely exemption status:
Open

23

Simon Freeman,
Andrew Murray
I007
303

Capital Programmes,
Quarter 3 Finance
Report 2017/18

Cabinet

22 Mar 2018

Key decision: No

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)
Simon Freeman

I001
163

Non Housing Asset
Management Strategy

Cabinet

22 Mar 2018
Subject to
OWG Review

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Regeneration &
Enterprise (Councillor
Tony Durcan)
Graeme Bloomer

Ref.

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision and
Ward(s)
affected

Key Decision and private
consideration status

Documents to
be considered
by decision
maker

Portfolio Holder and
Lead Officer

I007
304

Debt Write Offs

Cabinet

22 Mar 2018

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Resources (Councillor
Mike Danvers)

Likely exemption status:
Open

Simon Freeman
I007
560

Town Centre Area
Action Plan - Approval
of Regulation 19
Consultation

Cabinet

Jun 2018
(date of
meeting to be
confirmed)

Key decision: Yes

Officer's report

Likely exemption status:
Open

Portfolio Holder for
Environment
(Councillor Danny
Purton)

24

Graeme Bloomer

I007
561

Town Centre Area
Action Plan Submission to
Planning Inspectorate
for Examination Under
Regulation 22

Cabinet

Dec 2018
(date of
meeting to be
confirmed)

Key decision: Yes
Likely exemption status:
Open

Officer's report

Portfolio Holder for
Environment
(Councillor Danny
Purton)
Graeme Bloomer

Agenda Item 10

CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDERS’ DELEGATIONS 2017/18
The Leader of the Council has the power to amend this scheme at any time.
Any member of the Cabinet may refer any matter delegated to him or her to the Cabinet
for a collective decision.
1. All Portfolio Holders may:
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Take urgent decisions that cannot reasonably be deferred until the next meeting of
the Cabinet on any matter within the powers delegated to Cabinet and their portfolio,
after written (including e-mail) consultation with the Leader (or Deputy if they are not
available.
Take any decision that may be necessary to implement a decision of the Cabinet.
Agree the grant of licences for the use of land within their portfolio.
Agree minor or consequential amendments to any Policy, Plan or Strategy within
their portfolio.
Take decisions relating to procurement and contractual matters as set out in the
Financial Regulations and Procurement Policy and Standing Orders relating to
contracts.
Where appropriate, and working with the relevant officers, respond to national
consultation specific to their Portfolio.
Allocate specific grants relevant to their Portfolio.

2. The Leader (or Deputy Leader, in their absence) may:
•
•
•

In the absence of any Portfolio Holder or at their request (in writing) or where a
prejudicial interest has been declared take decisions on any matter delegated to that
portfolio holder.
Write off irrecoverable debts in line with Financial Regulations.
Take decisions to sell/purchase/lease or otherwise deal with land where this would
not constitute a Key Decision.

3. The Portfolio Holder for Resources may:
•
•

Approve write-offs of irrecoverable debts (including Council Tax, national nondomestic rates, mortgage arrears and sundry debtor debts) to a value in line with
Financial Regulations.
Agree grants applications within budget.

4. The Portfolio Holder for Environment may:
•
•
•

Set the level of hackney carriage and private hire fees within agreed budgetary
policy.
Set the table of hackney carriage fares.
Name and number streets and buildings.

25

5. The Portfolio Holder for Housing may:
•
•
•
•

Dispose of void properties which would cost greater than £10,000 to refurbish except
where these fall, in an agreed regeneration area.
Approve write-offs of irrecoverable housing rent debts to a value in line with Financial
Regulations.
Approve the annual Report to Tenants.
Approve Housing Service Standards.

Note:
Portfolio Holder decisions must be supported by a written report from the relevant senior
Officer(s). It is the Portfolio Holder’s responsibility to consult and to seek advice from the
Chief Executive, Chief Operating Officer, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer as
appropriate before decisions are taken to ensure that they are intra vires. Portfolio
Holders should also consult the relevant budget holding Head of Service before
decisions are taken.

26

Agenda Item 11

CABINET APPOINTMENTS 2017/18
Recommended that appointments to Cabinet bodies for 2017/18 are made as
detailed below:
Cabinet Overview Working Group
Cabinet Overview Working Group (10)
Conservative (4)
Labour (6)
David Carter
Ian Beckett (c)
Simon Carter
Mark Ingall (vc)
Mike Garnett
Maggie Hulcoop
Clive Souter
Stefan Mullard
John Strachan
Rod Truan

UKIP

Cabinet Advisory Panels
Constitution Panel (3)
Conservative (1)
Simon Carter

Labour (2)
Mike Danvers (c)
Stefan Mullard

Local Development Plan Panel (7)
Conservative (3)
Labour (4)
Simon Carter
Stefan Mullard (c)
Tony Hall
Lanie Shears (vc)
Mike Garnett
Mark Ingall
Danny Purton

UKIP

UKIP

HTS Bodies
Shareholders Sub-Committee for HTS (Property & Environment) Ltd
Conservative (2)
Labour (3)
UKIP
Joel Charles
Jon Clempner (c)
Andrew Johnson
Danny Purton
Mark Wilkinson
HTS (Property & Environment) Board of Directors
Conservative (1)
Labour (2)
Simon Carter
Bob Davis
John Strachan

27

UKIP

HTS Group Ltd
Conservative (1)
Simon Carter

Labour (3)
Bob Davis
John Strachan
Partnership and Liaison Bodies

UKIP

Harlow Local Highways Panel (4)
Conservative (2)
Labour (2)
David Carter
Tony Durcan
Tony Hall
Danny Purton
Clive Souter
Enterprise Zone Board (1 + 1 Substitute)
Tony Durcan
Jon Clempner (sub)
Essex Flood Partnership (1 + 1 Substitute)
Danny Purton
Tony Durcan (sub)
Harlow Health and Wellbeing Board (previously Harlow Wellbeing
Partnership (1)
Ian Beckett (c)

London Stansted Cambridge Consortium (1 + 1 Officer)
Jon Clempner
North Essex Parking Partnership (1 + 1 Substitute)
Danny Purton
Mike Danvers (sub)
West Essex Wellbeing Joint Committee (2 + 1 Substitute)
Tony Durcan
Waida Forman
Ian Beckett (sub)

Harlow Bus Users Group
Maggie Hulcoop (c)

28

Tenant and Leaseholder Participation Forum
Housing Standards Board (4)
Conservative (1)
Labour
Simon Carter
Mark Wilkinson (c)
Bob Davis (vc)

29

UKIP (1)
Bill Pryor

Agenda Item 12

REPORT TO:

CABINET

DATE:

22 JUNE 2017

TITLE:

CABINET OVERVIEW WORKING GROUP
WORK PLAN 2017/18

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

COUNCILLOR WAIDA FORMAN, PORTFOLIO
HOLDER FOR GOVERNANCE

LEAD OFFICER:

BRIAN KEANE, HEAD OF GOVERNANCE
(01279) 446037

This is not a key decision
It is not subject to Call-in procedures for the following reason: it is a
decision on a procedural, operational or managerial matter.
This decision will affect no ward specifically.
RECOMMENDED that the proposed 2017/18 work plan for the Overview
Working Group as detailed in paragraphs 2 and 3 of this report are agreed.

BACKGROUND
1.

The Cabinet has previously established an Overview Working Group, crossparty Councillor body whose role is to review policy areas and make
recommendations to the Cabinet for their improved effectiveness.

ISSUES/PROPOSALS
2.

Overview Working Group Work Plan 2017/18
It is proposed that the Overview Working Group’s work plan for 2017/18 will
include three substantial items as follows. Lead Officers have advised that all
of these reviews can commence at the OWG’s first meeting on 3 August
2017.
a) Community Engagement Strategy;
b) Health and Wellbeing Strategy; and
c) Regeneration Strategy.

3.

The Non-Housing Asset Management Strategy had been considered by the
OWG throughout 2016/17 but the review was not concluded by the end of the

30

year. It is proposed that the review continues into 2017/18 with an interim
report being considered on 30 November 2017.
4.

Additional work plan items can be added by the Cabinet later in the year if it
chooses. Any requests for additional work plan items made by the Overview
Working Group will be forwarded to the Cabinet for its consideration.

5.

Meetings 2017/18
The meetings of the Overview Working Group in 2017/18 were agreed at
Annual Council on 26 May 2016 and are as follows:
a) Thursday 3 August 2017
b) Thursday 19 October 2017
c) Thursday 30 November 2017
d) Thursday 11 January 2018
e) Thursday 8 March 2018
All to start at 7.30pm in the Council Chamber.

IMPLICATIONS
Place (includes Sustainability)
None specific.
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place
Finance (Includes ICT)
None specific.
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance
Housing
As outlined in the body of the report.
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing
Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion)
None specific.
Author: Jane Greer, Acting Head of Community Wellbeing
Governance (includes HR)
None specific.
Author: Brian Keane, Head of Governance

31

Background Papers
None.
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used
OWG – Overview Working Group

32

Agenda Item 13

REPORT TO:

CABINET

DATE:

22 JUNE 2017

TITLE:

HARLOW LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN:
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME,
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT POLICIES:
PROPOSED TOWN CENTRE AREA ACTION
PLAN

PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S):

COUNCILLOR DANNY PURTON, PORTFOLIO
HOLDER FOR ENVIRONMENT

LEAD OFFICER(S):

GRAEME BLOOMER, HEAD OF PLACE
(01279) 446270

CONTRIBUTING
OFFICER(S):

DIANNE COOPER, PLANNING AND
BUILDING CONTROL MANGER (01279)
446595
PAUL MACBRIDE, FORWARD PLANNING
MANAGER (01279) 446258

This is a Key Decision
It is on the Forward Plan as Decision number I006849.
Call-in Procedures may apply
This decision will affect all Ward(s).
RECOMMENDED that:
A Cabinet approves the Local Development Scheme for publication. (Appendix
A)
B Cabinet approves the Development Management Policies for consultation.
(Appendix B)
C Cabinet agrees the production of a Town Centre Area Action Plan to set out
the spatial strategy and land use planning policies to guide and
support the regeneration of the Town Centre.
D Subject to A, B and C above authority be delegated to the Head of
Governance (or the Managing Director if in post at the appropriate time), in
consultation with the Leader of the Council and the Portfolio Holder for
Environment, to approve any inconsequential and non-material amendments
to the policies and text that may be necessary arising from the completion of
technical reports and the strategic policies.

33

REASON FOR DECISIONS
A The Council is required to publish the details of its Local Development
Scheme. This must specify (amongst other matters) the documents which,
when prepared, will comprise the Local Development Plan for the area. It
must be made available publicly and kept up-to-date so that the local
community and interested parties can keep track of progress.
B The Development Management policies are a key element of the statutory
Local Development Plan (LDP) the Council has to prepare. They are required
in order to provide a policy framework to assist in the determination of
planning applications submitted to the Council as Local Planning Authority.
C Harlow Town Centre has been subject to a number of proposed regeneration
schemes over past years, none of which have come to fruition. The
increasing pace of change in the retail industry, particularly with regard to
traditional town centre trading, renders mid to long term spatial planning
inherently difficult and inflexible to the changing needs of the retail market
and the requirements of would-be investors in the Town Centre. Accordingly
it is considered more appropriate to deal with spatial planning in the Town
Centre by means of a specific local development plan document – a Town
Centre Area Action Plan.
BACKGROUND/ UPDATE
1. The process of preparing Harlow’s Local Development Plan (LDP) has been
and continues to be, a complex and involved programme of work.
2. The task is being undertaken within an unprecedented context of having to
work in tandem and cooperatively with neighbouring Councils towards the
preparation of an agreed spatial planning strategy that will guide the future
development and regeneration of Harlow and its immediate surroundings over
the course of the next 15 years.
3. To be found sound, the LDP (and the evidence base used to justify its content
and direction) will be tested by a Planning Inspector at Public Inquiry against
the statutory requirements of; being positively prepared, justified, effective
and consistent with national planning policy.
4. The Council has recently engaged the support of consultants (Stace) to
assist, with a supportive critical eye, the production of a strategic master
programme towards conclusion of the LDP before issue for a Regulation 19
consultation.
5. A Programme Management Report, together with Risk Register and
Programme Management Plan is attached. (Appendices C-E)

34

The Local Development Scheme (LDS)
6. The Council is required to prepare a Local Development Scheme under
section 15 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended
by the Localism Act 2011). This must specify, among other matters, the
documents which, when prepared, will comprise the Local Plan for the area. It
must be made available publicly and kept up-to-date so that the local
community and interested parties can keep track of progress. In effect it is a
high-level explanatory timetable of the Local Plan, heralding the dates and
documents comprising the Plan. The Local Development Scheme is attached
at Appendix A.
Development Management Policies
7. The Development Management Policies (Appendix B) will provide the detailed
planning framework which will be used to shape and guide future
development in Harlow through the use of the policies in the determination of
planning applications. They reflect the overarching objectives and themes of
the LDP via policy groupings reflecting: Placeshaping, Housing, Prosperity,
Lifestyles and Infrastructure. They will also provide the detailed
implementation of the spatial expression of the Strategic Policies.
8. They have been informed by the technical evidence that has been prepared
to support the LDP and have had regard to Government guidance set out in
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice
Guidance (PPG).
9. Initial drafts of the Policies were considered by Members at the Local
Development Plan Panels of 16 and 30 November 2016 and have been
subject to further amendment and revision following updates arising from the
findings of technical evidence that has become available.
10. Some policies may need further revision depending on the results of
consultation, the findings of updated expert advice on, inter alia, retail needs,
leisure needs, roads infrastructure following the completion of the
Infrastructure Delivery Plan and to ensure consistency of policy approach
across the greater Harlow area (which includes East Hertfordshire and
Epping Forest districts).
Town Centre Area Action Plan
11. Harlow Town Centre has been subject to a number of proposed large-scale
regeneration schemes over past years, some of which have failed to progress
fully and others not at all, having been victims of recession and market
changes. With over thirty separate private freehold ownerships and upwards
of one hundred leasehold interests in the Town Centre, it is now felt that in

35

light of previous attempts, large scale retail-led schemes are unlikely to be
successful especially given the lack of substantial capital investment available
from both the private and public sectors.
12. Harlow Town Centre suffers from an ageing infrastructure, and has an out of
date built environment and public realm. Coupled with a lack of retail sector
investment (The Harvey Centre notwithstanding), this has resulted in the
decline of the Town Centre where retail sales are being lost to competing
retail centres and an under performance in terms of attracting new customers
given the emerging wider potential catchment area. The most notable
aspects of decline have been seen in the northern part of the town centre.
13. In recent years the town centre has also seen a number of office buildings
converted to residential use under permitted development rights. Some of
these have not been at the level of quality that would be desired by the
Council for residential development in the Town Centre.
14. Current issues notwithstanding, the recent announcement on Garden Town
status, coupled to the emerging inevitability of significant jobs and housing
growth in and around Harlow bodes well for the future prospects of the Town
Centre. In addition, the recent Retail Needs Study, has identified the need for
an uplift in comparison and convenience floorspace arising from the
significant housing growth proposed across the wider Harlow area.
15. It has become clear that in order to be successful and provide for the current
and future needs of the emerging Greater Harlow community, regeneration
proposals should build on the existing Harlow legacy, complement the current
Town Centre and its architecture and contribute to developing a long term
sustainable community. Constructing an appropriately detailed but adaptable
land use planning policy framework to assist the Council’s regeneration
aspirations is crucial to future success.
16. Accordingly, it is proposed to prepare a detailed spatial planning framework
for the Town Centre supported by a dedicated project team drawing upon
specialist consultant advice in relation to design and architecture guidance
and policy. This separate development plan document (DPD) will provide the
spatial expression of the overarching strategic policies set out in the Harlow
Local Development Plan and will run parallel but on an overlapping time
frame.

IMPLICATIONS
Place (includes Sustainability)
As contained within the report and appendices.
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place

36

Finance (Includes ICT)
None specific at this stage. There may be costs linked with a public enquiry which
would be met from the specific Planning Reserve.
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance
Housing
As outlined in the body of the report.
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing
Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion)
An Area Action Plan will set out area-specific visions, planning policies and
masterplans for the Town Centre and will provide a comprehensive spatial
strategy for coordinated development and design that will reflect the local
aspirations for the future of the area. It will help to guide development and
provide confidence and certainty to developers and others as Town Centre
regeneration proposal progress.
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing
Governance (includes HR)
As contained within the report.
Author: Brian Keane, Head of Governance

Appendices
Appendix A – Local Development Scheme
Appendix B – Development Management Policies
Appendix C – Programme Management Report
Appendix D – Risk Register
Appendix E – Programme Management Plan
Background Papers
None.
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used
None.

37

Appendix A

The Harlow Local Development Scheme
Harlow Council is required to prepare a Local Development Scheme under section 15 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011). This
must specify (among other matters) the documents which, when prepared, will comprise the
Local Development Plan for the area. It must be made available publically and kept up-to-date
so that the local community and interested parties can keep track of progress.
The following Development Plan Documents comprise the Local Development Scheme for
Harlow.
1. Harlow Local Development Plan
Purpose
The Local Development Plan provides the
overall spatial planning vision for the district and
a framework to guide future development in the
area for the period up to 2033. This is reflected
by a series of planning objectives and supported
by a range of strategic and development
management policies which are given spatial
expression in the Policies Map.
The emerging policies will consider housing
need, the economy, community facilities and
infrastructure – as well providing the basis for
safeguarding the environment, adapting to
climate change and securing good design.
The Local Development Plan policies and
proposals are based on evidence that considers
the socio-economic and environmental
characteristics of the district.
The Local Development Plan will also provide
the spatial expression of the Corporate Plan.
Which “saved” policies will it replace?
All policies in the Adopted Replacement Harlow
Local Plan July 2006 which have been saved.
Geographical coverage
District wide, with the exception of Harlow Town
Centre which is subject to an Area Action Plan.
Status
Development Plan Document.
Conformity
Must be consistent with the National Planning
Policy Framework and Planning Practice
Guidance.
Timetable
Evidence gathering and identification of issues
2009 - 2010
and options.
Issues and Options consultation
November 2010 – January 2011
Further evidence gathering, consideration of
implications arising from Localism Act 2011
Emerging Strategy and Further Options
consultation
Participation with adjoining districts on strategic
planning matters in accordance with the
obligations of the Duty to Co-operate, set out in

2011 - 2014
April 2014 – May 2014
August 2015 - Ongoing

38

Appendix A
the Localism Act 2011
Finalising Draft Local Development Plan,
Sustainability Appraisal, Health Impact
Assessment and Equalities Impact Statement

Ongoing

Development Management Policy Consultation
(6 weeks)
Publication Regulation 19 Consultation on draft
Local Development Plan (6 weeks)
Preparation of Submission Local Plan and
Sustainability Appraisal
Submission to Planning Inspectorate for
Examination, Regulation 22
Examination in Public, Regulation 24

July 2017 – August 2017

Receipt of Inspectors report, Regulation 25
Adoption & Publication (including Policies Map),
Regulation 26
2. Harlow Town Centre Area Action Plan
Purpose

January 2018 - February 2018*
March 2018*
April 2018*
Summer 2018 (subject to agreement with PINs
on availability of resources to meet Examination
Programme)*
August 2018*
September 2018*

This Development Plan Document provides the
spatial planning framework to guide
development and secure the regeneration of
Harlow Town Centre for the period up to 2033.

This takes into account the key role the Town
Centre performs across the wider Harlow area,
reinforced by the need to accommodate
additional retail provision, arising from increased
housing growth being brought forward.
Which “saved” policies will it replace?
All policies relevant to the Town Centre in the
Adopted Replacement Harlow Local Plan July
2006 which have been saved.
Geographical coverage
Harlow Town Centre
Status
Development Plan Document
Conformity
Consistent with national planning policy and
planning practice guidance
Timetable
Evidence gathering and consideration of issues
January 2017 – September 2017
and options
Issues and Options consultation (6 weeks)
October 2017 - November 2017
Further evidence gathering and preparation of
November 2017 – January 2018
Preferred Option consultation document and
Sustainability Appraisal
Preferred Option, Regulation 18 consultation (6 February 2018 - March 2018
weeks)
Evidence gathering and preparation of
April 2018 – May 2018
Publication, Regulation 19 Consultation
document and Sustainability Appraisal
Publication, Regulation 19 Consultation (6
June 2018 – July 2018
weeks)
Preparation of Submission Local Plan and
August 2018 – November 2019
Sustainability Appraisal, Health Impact
Assessment and Equalities Impact Statement

39

Appendix A
Submission to Planning Inspectorate for
Examination, Regulation 22
Examination in Public, Regulation 24

Receipt of Inspector’s Report, Regulation 25
Adoption & Publication (including Policies Map)
Regulation 26
3. Other Documents
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)
Local Development Scheme (LDS)
Infrastructure Delivery Plan, viability
Assessment and possible Community
Infrastructure Levy (IDP)
Land north east of Harlow Development Brief
Harlow Area Infrastructure Strategy (HAIS)
Garden Town Strategy (GTS) and Green
Infrastructure Study
Economic Development Strategy
Regeneration Strategy
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Affordable Housing SPD
Open Spaces, Sport and Recreation SPD
Harlow Design Guide SPD
The Stow Neighbourhood Centre Design
Framework SPD
Public Art SPD
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO’s) SPD
Planning Obligations SPD
Retail Frontages SPD
Old Harlow Conservation Area Character
Appraisal and Management Plan
Harlow Garden Village Estate Conservation
Area Appraisal and Management Plan
Conservation Areas Character Appraisals and
Management Plans
Local Development Orders (LDO’s)
London Road North (revised)
London Road South (revised)
Templefields North East (revised)

January 2019
Late Spring 2019 (subject to agreement with
PINs on availability of resources to meet
Examination Programme
July 2019
August 2019

Adopted September 2014
To be adopted - June 2017
In preparation

To be prepared
**
Subject to DtC agreement
In preparation
In preparation

Adopted March 2007 (revision required)
Adopted June 2007 (revision required)
Adopted October 2011 (revision required)
Adopted July 2016
To be prepared
To be prepared
To be prepared
To be prepared
Adopted December 2013
Adopted December 2013
To be prepared

Adopted July 2014
Adopted July 2014
Adopted July 2014

Article 4
Morley Grove Article 4 Direction
Adopted July 2013
Old Harlow Article 4 Direction
Adopted June 2012 and February 2017
Park Hill and Mulberry Terrace Article 4
Adopted June 2012
Direction
St John’s Avenue Article 4 Direction
Adopted June 2012
Enterprise Zones Article 4 Direction
To be prepared
* These dates are subject to timely provision of external agency data, the completion of
technical data by consultants and the number of consultation responses received.

40

Appendix B

June 2017

Development
June
2017 Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
41

101

CONTENTS
Background ........................................................ 105
Placeshaping ...................................................... 107
PL1
PL2
PL3
PL4
PL5
PL6
PL7
PL8
PL9
PL10
PL11
PL12
PL13

Design Principles for Development ..............................................108
Amenity Principles for Development ...........................................109
Sustainable Design, Construction and
Energy Usage.........................................................................................110
Green Wedges and Green Fingers.................................................111
Other Open Spaces .............................................................................112
Trees and Hedgerows ........................................................................113
Green Infrastructure and Landscaping ........................................115
Biodiversity and Geodiversity Assets............................................117
Pollution and Contamination..........................................................118
Water Quality, Water Management, Flooding and
Sustainable Drainage Systems........................................................119
Heritage Assets and their Settings ................................................122
Enabling Development of Heritage Assets and
their Settings .........................................................................................125
Advertisements ....................................................................................126

Housing ............................................................... 128
H1
H2
H3
H4
H5
H6
H7
H8
H9
H10

102

Housing Allocations ............................................................................128
Residential Development .................................................................129
Houses in Multiple Occupation ......................................................130
Loss of Housing ....................................................................................131
Accessible and Adaptable Housing ..............................................132
Housing Mix ...........................................................................................133
Residential Annexes............................................................................133
Affordable Housing .............................................................................134
Self-build and Custom-build Housing .........................................135
Travellers’ Pitches and Plots.............................................................136

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
42

June 2017

Prosperity ........................................................... 139
PR1
PR2
PR3

Development within Employment Areas ...................................140
Development within Neighbourhood Service Areas .............141
Employment Development outside employment Areas
and Neighbourhood Service Areas ...............................................142
PR4 Improving Job Access and Training ..............................................144
PR5 The Sequential Test and Principles for
Main Town Centre Uses .....................................................................145
PR6 Primary and Secondary Frontages in the Town Centre.........146
PR7 Sub-division and Internal Alteration of
Town Centre Units ...............................................................................147
PR8 Primary and Secondary Frontages in
Neighbourhood Centres ...................................................................148
PR9 Development in Hatches ..................................................................149
PR10 Development in Retail Parks............................................................150
PR11 Evening and Night Time Economy................................................151

Lifestyles ............................................................. 154
L1
L2
L3

Open Spaces, Play Areas and Sporting Provision and
Facilities in Major Development ....................................................154
The Provision and Loss of Recreational, Sporting,
Cultural and Community Facilities ................................................155
Development Involving the Provision or Relocation or
Loss of Public Art..................................................................................156

Infrastructure ..................................................... 159
IN1
IN2
IN3
IN4
IN5
IN6

June 2017

Development and Sustainable Modes of Travel ......................160
Development and Vehicular Transport including
Access and Servicing ..........................................................................162
Parking Standards................................................................................163
Broadband and Development ........................................................164
Telecommunications Equipment ..................................................165
Planning Obligations ..........................................................................166

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
43

103

104

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
44

June 2017

DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT
11. BACKGROUND TO DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT IN
HARLOW
11.1

Development Management policies provide a detailed planning framework which
will be used to determine planning applications. They are informed by national
policies and guidance which set out the Government’s planning policies for
England and how it expects them to be applied.

11.2

National policies state that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to
the achievement of sustainable development, which has three roles:
• An economic role by contributing to a strong, responsive and competitive
economy
• A social role by supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communities
• An environmental role by contributing to the protection and enhancement of
the environment

11.3

These Development Management policies have been developed to help achieve
sustainable development and to provide the detailed spatial expression of the
Strategic Policies in the Local Plan.

11.4

The Development Management policies have been grouped to reflect the broad
Spatial Objectives of the Local Plan. Through their implementation, the Council will
ensure all development proposals have regard to these objectives.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
45

105

106

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
46

June 2017

12. PLACESHAPING
Introduction
12.1

Promoting good design is fundamental to achieving high-quality, inclusive
development and is an important consideration for new buildings and public and
private spaces. It goes beyond aesthetic considerations, addressing issues such as
connectivity between people and places and the integration of development into
the natural, built and historic environment.

12.2

Harlow’s New Town heritage, based on the design principles set out in the Master
Plan prepared by Sir Frederick Gibberd, established the overall layout and character
of the town. The dominant green spaces provide a sense of openness and
tranquillity in an otherwise relatively densely populated urban area. The policies
contained within this chapter aim to conserve, protect and enhance the natural and
built environment of Harlow, including its green spaces, biodiversity and overall
landscape quality. The policies also aim to safeguard the environment from harmful
development that may affect, for example, air quality, water quality or flood risk.

12.3

The district currently has ten Conservation Areas, designated for their special
architectural or historic interest. The Conservation Area status aims to ensure the
character and appearance of these areas is protected. There are also 168 listed
buildings in Harlow which are preserved and enhanced through the policies in the
Local Plan. The Council has also sought to identify buildings and structures which
have not been identified nationally for listing but which contribute towards the
district’s distinct character and heritage.

Corporate Priorities
12.4

This chapter and the policies contained within it will help deliver the Council’s
Corporate Priorities, as follows:
 A clean and green environment

Local Plan Strategic Objectives
12.5

This chapter and the policies contained within it will help deliver the following
Local Plan Strategic Objectives:

 Objective 1 – Create and enhance high quality built environments which

are well connected to revitalised green spaces
 Objective 2 – Deliver high quality design through new development whilst
protecting and enhancing the district’s heritage
 Objective 3 – Adapt to and mitigate the impacts of climate change

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
47

107

PL1

Design Principles for Development

A high standard of urban and architectural design is expected for all development.
Development will be supported where it meets the following criteria:
(a) it is supported by a design rationale based on an understanding and analysis of
local context and character, taking into consideration the Adopted Harlow
Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document (SPD);
(b) it protects, enhances or improves local distinctiveness, taking account of local
character, patterns of development, urban form and landscape character,
building typology, detailing and materials, trees and landscaping, front boundary
treatments and other features of local and historic significance;
(c) it provides appropriate physical, legible and safe connections with surrounding
streets, paths and neighbouring development;
(d) it responds to the scale, height, massing, architectural detailing and materials of
the surrounding area, is visually attractive and respects its context without
restricting style and innovation;
(e) it provides logical and legible layouts which support active street frontages,
improve the public realm, provide distinction between public and private space,
and provides an appropriate level of well-designed and well-located high quality
landscaping;
(f) it forms inclusive development that is accessible, well-connected, gives
sustainable modes of transport priority over private vehicles, and integrates land
uses with sustainable modes of transport;
(g) it is flexible enough to respond to economic, social, environmental and
technological change;
(h) it creates safe and secure environments which help to reduce opportunities for
crime and minimise the fear of crime.

Justification

108

12.6

This policy sets out the design criteria for all development in Harlow, taking into
account the requirements of the Adopted Harlow Design Guide SPD. It also ensures
the design and layout of new development respects Sir Frederick Gibberd’s Master
Plan for the New Town, which ensured the town was planned to be contained
within the original landscape and to retain as many natural features as possible.

12.7

The policy is applicable to all development types in the district, whether they are
for the provision of buildings and structures or the layout of places and spaces.

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
48

June 2017

Implementation
12.8

A Supplementary Planning Statement or Design and Access Statement will be
required for major developments and may be required for other developments. It
should demonstrate how the criteria in this policy and relevant national policies
and guidance have been complied with.

12.9

For further guidance and explanation on the characteristics of high quality urban
and architectural design and the methods to create safe and secure environments,
applicants should refer to the Adopted Harlow Design Guide SPD. This will be used
to guide and assess future development across Harlow and will be a material
consideration in the determination of planning applications.

PL2

Amenity Principles for Development

Development which protects or improves the level of amenity of existing and future
occupants and neighbours in the local area will be supported.
In assessing the impact of development on amenity, all the following will be considered:
(a) privacy and overlooking;
(b) overshadowing and loss of daylight and sunlight;
(c) aspect and outlook;
(c) overbearing and the perception of overbearing;
(d) the perception of enclosure;
(e) access to high quality and useable amenity space; and
(f) compatibility of adjacent uses.

Justification
12.10 This policy aims to promote and protect high standards of amenity. This is a key
element of sustainable growth and continued regeneration, and will assist in
meeting the Council’s priority to ensure regeneration takes place in the district.
12.11 The policy also aims to avoid loss of privacy due to the proximity and design of
development and will allow sufficient daylight and sunlight to penetrate into and
between buildings. It also takes into account the need for development to provide
access to amenity space and links with Harlow’s wider Green Infrastructure
network.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
49

109

Implementation
12.12 For further guidance, applicants should refer to the Adopted Harlow Design Guide
Supplementary Planning Document. This is useful when considering the design
and layout of new buildings, structures, places and spaces.
12.13 As well as assessing development against all of the criteria in this policy
individually, the cumulative effect of each of these criteria will be considered as
part of assessment.

PL3

Sustainable Design, Construction and Energy Usage

Development will be expected to deliver high standards of sustainable design and
construction and efficient energy usage. Development will be supported where it meets
or exceeds the minimum standards required by Building Regulations.

Justification
12.14 Local Plans should consider climate change, the effects of which are wide-ranging
and can lead to increased drought, extreme weather events (including heatwaves,
snow and storms) and surface water flooding. Such impacts could have a major
negative impact on the local economy, people, infrastructure and environment.
12.15 This policy seeks to reduce the impact of new development on the environment
and this should be read in conjunction with the Strategic Policies set out the Local
Plan which identify the most sustainable locations for growth and promote the use
of sustainable modes of transport.
12.16 Many buildings in Harlow are a legacy of its New Town heritage and were
constructed using the methods and techniques of the time. Some of these
buildings are now no longer fit for purpose and need replacement. The Council will
ensure that new buildings are constructed in a sustainable manner and accord with
current best practice.
12.17 The policy encourages applicants to consider the impact of their development and
seek ways to address the effects, beyond those measures required by Building
Regulations.

Implementation
12.18 The Building Regulations set out the minimum requirements for the conservation
of fuel and power. The associated guidance suggests measures to reduce energy
consumption and carbon dioxide emissions, which include the consideration of:
(a)
(b)

110

appropriate layout and building orientation to maximise solar gain in the
winter;
the use of Green Infrastructure, such as trees and rain gardens;

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
50

June 2017

(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

efficient use of all roof and vertical surfaces for the installation of low carbon
technologies and green roofs;
integrating passive ventilation, such as wind catchers, or low energy options
where mechanical ventilation or cooling is required;
generating energy from on-site renewable or low-carbon energy systems;
the use of local, sustainable and energy efficient materials; and
the re-use of existing resources.

12.19 A Sustainability Statement may be required for detailing the sustainability
credentials of the proposed development. This should cover any use of on-site low
carbon/renewable energy technology and how the design, massing, layout,
construction of the building and use of Green Infrastructure contributes to
reducing carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions. The energy hierarchy set out in the
Strategic Policies should be considered within the Sustainability Statement. The
Sustainability Statement should also make clear how measures have been
incorporated into the design of the development to ensure they are well
integrated.
12.20 Where a Sustainability Statement is submitted, the developer will be required to
provide evidence of the implementation of the target total carbon dioxide (CO2)
reduction level, by using nationally recognised, independently audited schemes
such as Energy Performance Certificates. The evidence should include a clear
breakdown of the percentage of carbon savings delivered by building efficiency
and the use of any low carbon or renewable energy technologies.

PL4

Green Wedges and Green Fingers

Development on land designated as Green Wedge or Green Finger will be supported
where it meets one or more of the criteria below:
(a) it is for small-scale development;
(b) it is for essential infrastructure and local transport infrastructure which must
demonstrate a requirement for a Green Wedge or Green Finger location;
(c) it is for the replacement of buildings, provided that the new building/buildings
are in the same use and not more harmful than the one it replaces;
(d) it constitutes strategic infrastructure development which can demonstrate that it
is of benefit to the wider community.
Additionally, development must meet both the criteria below:
(e) it demonstrates that the roles and functions of the Green Wedges and Green
Fingers are not adversely affected; and
(f) it enhances the landscape, promotes biodiversity and integrates with existing
Green Infrastructure.
June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
51

111

Justification
12.21 Green Wedges and Fingers are fundamental to the character of Harlow. Sir
Frederick Gibberd’s Master Plan sought to preserve the form of the original
landscape and the natural features that gave the district its distinctive character;
consequently the green areas were generally kept free of buildings and as natural
as possible.
12.22 The purpose of this policy is to continue to protect the Green Wedges and Green
Fingers from encroachment and visual intrusion, while recognising there may be
opportunities for some development within them, where the development
benefits the wider community or improves the biodiversity and/or landscaping.

Implementation
12.23 While the roles and functions of the Green Wedges and Green Fingers differ, these
two types of open space are complementary and of equal importance; the main
difference being their scale. Details of their roles and functions are set out in the
Strategic Policies.
12.24 Small-scale development can include householder applications, school or sports
related development, recreation and community uses.
12.25 Applications for local transport infrastructure must demonstrate their requirement
for a Green Wedge or Green Finger location. This would also include the provision
of essential infrastructure identified in the Local Plan, or where the applicant can
demonstrate that there is no other location within the district that could
accommodate the proposed infrastructure.

PL5

Other Open Spaces

Development on Other Open Spaces will be supported unless one or more of the
following criteria are met:
(a) the development would compromise the landscape character, openness,
biodiversity or urban design principles of the town and/or the surrounding area;
(b) the development would remove access to an open space which, in accordance
with the current evidence, is of high quality and/or high public value in providing
opportunities for sport and recreation;
(c) the development would prejudice the potential for comprehensive development
of adjacent land.

112

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
52

June 2017

Justification
12.26 Along with the preservation of Green Wedges and Green Fingers, the preservation
of Other Open Spaces is fundamental to ensuring the original design of Sir
Frederick Gibberd’s Master Plan for Harlow is respected, which planned the district
to be interspersed with many open spaces to offset the provision of small private
gardens.
12.27 Other Open Spaces can be of public value where they have a role or function which
makes a positive contribution to the character of the area. Such spaces often
provide opportunities for recreational uses and also provide landscaping and visual
buffers.
12.28 The aim of this policy is to protect those Other Open Spaces which make a positive
contribution, through their specific role or function, to the overall character and
design of Harlow. For example, some Other Open Spaces offer amenity and
informal recreational opportunities, and therefore contribute to the health and
wellbeing of local residents by providing nearby spaces for outdoor and physical
activity.

Implementation
12.29 Other Open Spaces are defined as open spaces, both private and publically owned,
which are not allocated as Green Belt, Green Wedge or Green Finger in the Local
Plan. Other Open Spaces vary in nature and quality and can include:
• strips of landscaping, for example next to a road, pavement or cycle path;
• amenity spaces and gardens;
• areas of land between buildings;
• informal recreational areas; and
• woodland and landscaping belts.
12.30 An application for infill development, which would block the potential for
comprehensive development, would not be supported. For example, where there
are open spaces adjacent to each other, the development of one open space in
isolation could prevent the opportunity to develop the open spaces as a whole.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
53

113

PL6

Trees and Hedgerows

1. Existing trees and hedges
Development and tree works applications, which ensure that trees and hedges are
protected and enhanced, will be supported. Where development has a negative impact
on existing trees and hedges, the proposal will be assessed based on all the following
criteria:
(a) the impacts the development would have on the trees and/or hedges and the
proposed measures to mitigate any impacts;
b) the character and value of the trees and/or hedges;
c)

the existing condition of the trees and/or hedges;

d) any existing specific protections the trees and/or hedges currently have; and
e) the provisioning of replacement trees and/or hedges, which are a suitable
species and ensure the canopy cover is maintained and enhanced.
2. Trees and hedges in new development
Development which includes the planting of new trees and hedges will be supported
where all the following criteria are met:
a) the location and species of the trees and hedges are suitable, when considering
their juxtaposition to development and infrastructure both above and below
ground;
b) the species selection of trees and hedges helps enhance resilience and
diversity of the trees and hedges, including genetic and species diversity;
c)

the total canopy cover of the proposal site will be increased, in the long-term,
through the planting of trees, shrubs and hedges; and

d) where necessary, the below-ground environment is enhanced.

Justification
12.31 This policy aims to protect the trees and hedgerows in Harlow, which form an
important part of the Green Infrastructure and landscaping in the district,
fundamental to Harlow’s original design character. Trees and hedgerows provide
wildlife habitats and natural visual and noise buffers, and assist in mitigating the
effects of climate change, for example by providing shading and reducing the
temperature of the local micro-climate.
12.32 Whilst over 300 trees in Harlow are already protected by Tree Preservation Orders,
and many trees and hedgerows are found within protected areas such as Green

114

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
54

June 2017

Wedges, there are a number of significant trees and hedgerows found in Other
Open Spaces and residential areas.
12.33 Many of the trees and hedgerows in the district are over 70 years old and, therefore,
pre-date the development of the New Town, as Sir Frederick Gibberd’s Master Plan
aimed to respect the existing natural landscape assets. There are over 250 veteran
trees in Harlow and many of the existing trees are likely to become veteran and
ancient specimens in the future. A number of hedges have historic importance,
especially where they are found along original highways and old parish and farm
boundaries.

Implementation
12.34 When assessing the impacts of development on trees and/or hedges and measures
to mitigate any impacts, an Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Arboricultural
Method Statement may need to be submitted to the Council.
12.35 When assessing the value and condition of existing trees and/or hedgerows, a
survey may need to be submitted to the Council. The value that trees and/or
hedges offer includes historic, cultural, ecological, economic and amenity value.
The condition includes the health and structure of the trees and/or hedges.
12.36 Existing specific protections that trees and/or hedges may have include Tree
Preservation Orders and other protections offered by Conservation Areas or
Hedgerow Regulations.
12.37 The enhancement of the below-ground environment could be achieved through
measures such as cellular confinement systems, Sustainable Drainage Systems, soil
mycorrhizal inoculations and porous surfacing.
12.38 The Council may also require a Management Plan to be submitted, which
demonstrates how the future maintenance of new trees and hedges would be
managed, in order to protect their long-term quality.
12.39 Where appropriate, the Council will consult with specialists to obtain advice on tree
and hedgerow matters.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
55

115

PL7

Green Infrastructure and Landscaping

Green Infrastructure and landscaping must be protected and enhanced as part of
development.
Development will be supported where all the following criteria are met:
(a) new Green Infrastructure and landscaping are well planned, taking into
consideration the practicalities and requirements of future management and
maintenance;
(b) existing Green Infrastructure and landscaping are, where possible, protected and
enhanced and in all cases are sympathetically integrated into the development;
and
(c) development makes connections wherever possible to landscaping and
Green Infrastructure outside of the site.

Justification
12.40 Green Infrastructure is an important element of Harlow’s distinctive character,
which Sir Frederick Gibberd developed within his original Master Plan to respect
the existing natural environment and integrate it within the New Town to provide
functional areas of green and open space which could be used and enjoyed by
wildlife, visitors and residents.
12.41 The requirement of this policy is for new Green Infrastructure and landscaping to
be sympathetically integrated into development to ensure the continuation of Sir
Frederick Gibberd’s Master Plan.
12.42 There are opportunities for development to create, protect and enhance existing
Green Infrastructure and landscaping, to improve the natural environment, and
create additional wildlife habitats and reinforce existing green links. This policy
aims to protect existing Green Infrastructure in Harlow and ensure that new Green
Infrastructure is well-planned and effectively managed in the future.

Implementation
12.43 Green Infrastructure is multi-functional natural and man-made green space,
including parks, playing fields, woodlands, allotments and wildlife corridors. At a
smaller-scale, it also includes measures to assist climate change mitigation, such as
green roofs and green walls.
12.44 The Adopted Harlow Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document should be
consulted for guidance on appropriate landscaping for development.

116

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
56

June 2017

12.45 The Council may require a Management Plan to be submitted, which demonstrates
how the future maintenance of the Green Infrastructure and landscaping would be
managed, in order to protect its quality and functionality in the long-term.

PL8

Biodiversity and Geodiversity Assets

Development should contribute to and enhance biodiversity or geodiversity assets.
The potential harm caused by development on these assets and their surroundings will
be assessed based on the harm caused by the development. The greater the significance
of the asset, the greater the weight that is given to the asset’s protection.
Development will be supported where it meets the following criteria:
(a) it creates new biodiversity and protects geodiversity assets and creates links to
existing biodiversity and geodiversity assets;
(b) it includes the protection and enhancement of existing biodiversity and
geodiversity assets;
(c) where it can be demonstrated that protection and enhancement of existing
biodiversity and geodiversity assets is not possible, appropriate measures must
mitigate the negative effects on these assets.

Justification
12.46 As a planned New Town, Harlow benefits from networks of open spaces which
contribute to the biodiversity of the district, conserve habitats of local significance
and enable the appreciation of wildlife.
12.47 Helping to protect and enhance biodiversity is one of the fundamental aims of
national policies and guidance, to halt the overall decline in biodiversity. This policy
aims to ensure the continued protection and enhancement of biodiversity and
geodiversity assets in Harlow.

Implementation
12.48 Designated biodiversity and geodiversity assets are allocated on the Policies Map
and are listed in the Appendices. In Harlow, the highest order asset type is Sites of
Special Scientific Interest, followed by locally designated sites, ancient woodland,
and aged or veteran trees found outside ancient woodland. There are, as yet, no
designated geodiversity assets in Harlow.
12.49 There may also be non-designated assets of biodiversity and geodiversity
importance which the Council will seek to protect and enhance, in order to extend
the geodiversity and the network of biodiversity and open spaces across the
district.
June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
57

117

12.50 The Council may require assessments of biodiversity and geodiversity assets to be
submitted, which identify the impacts of development and any necessary
mitigation and/or compensatory measures.
12.51 Biodiversity assets within development will require appropriate protection,
enhancement and/or mitigation measures for the biodiversity assets. Appropriate
measures could include management agreements, planning conditions and/or
obligations.

PL9

Pollution and Contamination

All development proposals must minimise and, where possible, reduce all forms of
pollution and contamination.
Development will be supported unless, individually or cumulatively, there are
unacceptable impacts on or from:
• noise pollution;
• light pollution;
• air quality (including dust, odour and emissions);
• vibration;
• surface and ground water quality;
• land quality, condition and stability;
• the natural environment;
• the built environment;
• general amenity;
• health and safety of public;
• compliance with statutory environmental quality standards.
The location and type of development and its relationship to the surrounding built and
natural environment will be taken into consideration when assessing the acceptability of
the impacts.
Where it can be demonstrated that pollution and/or contamination is unavoidable,
appropriate measures must mitigate the negative effects of the development.

Justification
12.52 It is important that any potential conflicts arising from pollution or contamination
are assessed in order to protect the built and natural environment, including
safeguarding local amenity and the health and well-being of local residents
12.53 Sir Frederick Gibberd’s Master Plan for Harlow separated residential uses from
industrial uses, which were concentrated within a number of employment areas.
Consequently the Council will consider whether new uses are compatible with
existing uses within an area in order to minimise the risk of pollution and/or
contamination.

118

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
58

June 2017

12.54 Development in Harlow has historically been built at a high density. Where new
development could have an impact on existing development due to potential
pollution or contamination, the Council will give careful consideration to impacts
on the amenities of the surrounding area.
12.55 In terms of air quality in Harlow, air quality monitoring has been undertaken and
there are no areas where the air quality has led to the designation of Air Quality
Management Areas. This policy aims to maintain this position in the district.

Implementation
12.56 The Council may require assessments of any pollution and/or contamination to be
undertaken and submitted, which identify any existing pollution and/or
contamination, and the impacts of the development and any necessary mitigation
and/or compensatory measures. For example, an assessment of light may need to
take into consideration the detail of the angles of lights, lighting design, light
spillage, luminance levels, height of light columns and proposed hours of use.
Mitigation measures could include the use of baffles and appropriate building
design to minimise impacts. The Council may also impose conditions to control
and manage pollution and contamination levels.

PL10

Water Quality, Water Management, Flooding and
Sustainable Drainage Systems

1. Water Quality
Development will be supported unless it adversely affects water quality, including
quality of waterways and other bodies of water, identified Source Protection Zones (SPZ),
Aquifers and all other groundwater.
New developments adjacent to water courses must seek to include restoration and deculverting. The culverting of water courses must be avoided wherever possible.
2. Water Management
To minimise impact on the water environment, all new dwellings should achieve the
Optional Technical Housing Standard for water efficiency of no more than 110 litres per
day as described by Building Regulations.
3. Flooding
All development proposals will be considered against the NPPF (including application of
the sequential test and, if necessary, the exception test) and against the European Water
Framework Directive (or any subsequent equivalent).
Development must follow a risk-based and sequential approach, so that it is located in
the lowest flood risk area. If this cannot be achieved, the exception test must be applied
and the appropriate mitigation measures must be undertaken.
Development must meet all the following criteria:
June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
59

119

(a) it must not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere;
(b) within sites at risk of flooding, the most vulnerable parts of the proposed
development must be located in areas of lowest flood risk;
(c) flood levels of development in Flood Zones 2 and 3 should be situated above the
1% (1 in 100 years) plus climate change predicted maximum water level, plus a
minimum watertight depth of 300mm above the normal water level;
(d) development must be flood resilient and resistant, with safe access and escape
routes, and it should also be demonstrated that residual risks can be safely
managed;
(e) any necessary flood protection or mitigation measures should not have an undue
impact on nature conservation, landscape character, recreation or other
important matters;
(f) there should be no net loss in flood storage on site;
(g) flood flow routes should be preserved; and
(h) where necessary, planning permission will be conditional upon flood protection
and/or runoff control measures being operative before other site works.
4. Sustainable Drainage Systems
Where a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) is required, the drainage scheme must meet
all the following criteria:
(a) provide the most sustainable option from the SuDS hierarchy;
(b) achieve multiple benefits including management of flood risk and surface water
pollution, amenity and biodiversity;
(c) achieve the greenfield runoff rate;
(d) provide appropriate attenuation taking into account climate change;
(e) provide arrangements for future maintenance and management; and
(f) major proposals should also comply with the principles and standards set out by
the Lead Local Flood Authority for SuDS.

Justification
12.57 Sir Frederick Gibberd’s Master Plan planned Harlow within the landscape, keeping
the valleys free from development and building on the higher ground, therefore
helping to prevent major flooding.

120

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
60

June 2017

12.58 This policy will ensure that the quality of drinking water is maintained, avoiding
harmful polluting developments which affect its quality.
12.59 The policy also sets out targets for water management. The Environment Agency’s
report, Water Stressed areas – final classification (2013), states there is serious water
stress for many parts of the east of England including Harlow, both now and in the
future. Serious water stress is the result of a large population with high water
demands but with limited water availability.
12.60 It is therefore appropriate to set a water use target of 110 litres per head per day for
residential development, which is approximately 50 litres less than the current
Harlow average and 15 litres less than the standard Building Regulations
requirements. Developing a house with this target could save 79kg of CO2 and
15m3 of water per year per house.
12.61 This policy also aims to prevent the risk of flooding in the district. Flood risk is a
combination of the probability and the potential consequences of flooding from all
sources – including from rivers and the sea, directly from rainfall on the ground
surface and rising groundwater, overwhelmed sewers and drainage systems, and
from reservoirs, canals and lakes and other artificial sources.
12.62 Surface water flooding is also an important issue and this policy aims to prevent
this through the use of sustainable drainage systems in new developments.
Sustainable drainage systems are designed to control surface water run off close to
where it falls and mimic natural drainage as closely as possible. They provide
opportunities to reduce the causes and impacts of flooding, remove pollutants
from urban run-off at source through natural filtration and combine water
management with green space to provide benefits for amenity, recreation and
wildlife.

Implementation
12.63 Applications for developments involving high risk activities in Special Protection
Zones (SPZs) or aquifers must be accompanied by a risk assessment to determine
whether the development would pose a threat to water quality and what
mitigation measures or management strategy is being put in place to deal with the
risk. In terms of water quality, high risk activities include those involving hazardous
substances such as pesticides, oils, petrol and diesel.
12.64 Meeting the water management target can be achieved by ensuring development
makes use of efficient appliances such as efficient showerheads, spray taps and
low-flush toilets, recycling grey water, and using natural filtration measures and
facilities.
12.65 National policies and guidance defines flood zones and the types of development
which are considered appropriate and inappropriate. It also provides information
on the sequential test for Flood Risk Zones and how to then apply an exception
test.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
61

121

12.66 Applicants may be required to submit a site-specific Flood Risk Assessment to the
Council in order to assess the flood risk to and from the development site.
Applicants should refer to the latest guidance from the Environment Agency and
the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for the most up to date
information on Flood Risk Assessment.
12.67 To demonstrate that a development will be protected over its lifetime, information
must be submitted in the assessment of how users will access the development,
how flood risk will be reduced, how any overland flood and flow routes are
preserved and what flood defence infrastructure will be in place. Flood warning
and evacuation procedures may also need to be put in place.
12.68 The risk of flooding can be avoided and reduced by:
• locating new development within areas of lower flood risk through the
application of the sequential test for Flood Risk Zones and then applying an
exception test in accordance with the NPPF;
• ensuring that development proposals in flood risk areas actively manage and
reduce flood risk by applying the sequential approach at site level;
• where possible, the footprint of existing buildings should be reduced;
• where possible, flood storage should be maximised through the use of Green
Infrastructure.
12.69 In terms of surface water flooding, the general aim should be to discharge surface
run off as high up the following hierarchy of drainage options as reasonably
practicable:
1. into the ground (infiltration);
2. to a surface water body;
3. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system;
4. to a combined sewer.
12.70 Methods of attenuation include attenuation ponds, filter strips and swales.
12.71 When considering whether a drainage system is appropriate for a development,
the Council will consider the technical standards produced by DEFRA, design and
constructions costs and advice from the relevant flood risk management bodies.
When planning a sustainable drainage system, developers need to ensure their
design takes account of the construction, operation and maintenance
requirements of both surface and subsurface components, allowing for any
personnel, vehicle or machinery access required to undertake this work.
12.72 The Council will consult the statutory bodies on drainage systems where it is
applicable to do so.
12.73 Developers should refer to the Council’s Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for further
information and advice.

122

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
62

June 2017

PL11

Heritage Assets and their Settings

Development that affects a heritage asset or its setting will be assessed based on the
harm caused by the development on the significance of the heritage asset. The greater
the significance of the asset, the greater the weight that is given to the asset’s
conservation. The level of impact caused to the significance of the heritage asset will be
assessed against all the following criteria:
(a) the impact of development on the character, appearance, or any other aspect of
significance of the asset or its setting;
(b) the design quality of the development and the extent to which it safeguards and
harmonises with the period, style, materials and detailing of the asset (including
scale, form, massing, height, elevation, detailed design, layout and distinctive
features); and
(c) the extent to which the development is sympathetically integrated within the
area and any distinctive features (including its setting in relation to the
surrounding area, other buildings, structures and wider vistas and views).

Justification
12.74 The purpose of this policy is to protect the features and characteristics for which
designated and non-designated heritage assets were selected. This also includes
any buildings or structures within the curtilage or wider setting of a heritage asset
and which contribute towards its significance.
12.75 National policies highlight the importance of these assets as irreplaceable
resources. They are part of the historic environment which contributes strongly to
the character and distinctiveness of places; bringing wider social, cultural,
economic and environmental benefits to local communities and providing
enjoyment to the wider public.
12.76 Harlow contains several Scheduled Monuments including a number of historic
moats and burial mounds, earthwork remains of medieval villages, a barn, a chapel
and remnants of Roman villas and temples. The district has a rich historical past and
contains various archaeological remains, which were preserved throughout the
development of the New Town.
12.77 Harlow contains one Historic Park and Garden to the east of the district which was
previously owned, developed and maintained by Sir Frederick Gibberd. The
gardens and the house are located within the Stort Valley to the east of the town.

Implementation
12.78 Designated heritage assets include listed buildings and their curtilage,
conservation areas, archaeological remains, Scheduled Monuments and historic
parks and gardens as well as their settings. Locally listed buildings are known as
June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
63

123

non-designated assets. Historic England administers national designations which
include all designated heritage assets apart from conservation areas.
12.79 National policies and guidance outline the rationale behind the designation of
heritage assets, with special architectural or historic interest being at the core of
any designation decision. National policies also set out the hierarchy of significance
of historic assets.
12.80 Where appropriate, the Council will consult with Historic England and Essex County
Council to obtain specialist advice on heritage assets.
Listed and Locally Listed Buildings
12.81 Harlow has over 150 listed buildings (refer to the Appendices for more
information). The Department for Culture, Media and Sport designates listed
buildings and Scheduled Monuments. Locally listed buildings have also been
identified as they contribute towards the district’s heritage.
12.82 The register of nationally listed and locally listed buildings may alter during the
Local Plan period. Any updates to these lists, including the removal or addition of
buildings and structures, will be published on the Council’s website.
12.83 Where planning permission is required for alterations or additions to listed and
locally listed buildings, a Heritage Statement should be submitted assessing how
the proposal complements or mitigates any harm towards a building’s historic
character and/or architectural interest. For proposals which affect a Grade I or II*
listed building or structure, the Council will also seek advice from Historic England.
12.84 As well as assessing the effect that development would have on the physical
features of a listed or locally listed building/structure, this policy will also assess the
impact the proposal will have on the asset’s setting. The term ‘setting’ refers to the
surroundings in which a building or structure is located, and may therefore be
more extensive than its curtilage. Setting is often expressed by reference to visual
considerations, although the way in which a building or structure is experienced in
its setting is also influenced by other environmental factors such as noise, dust and
vibration from other land uses, and by understanding the historic relationship
between places.
12.85 When assessing applications for development which may affect the setting of a
listed or locally listed building or structure, consideration will be given to the
implications of cumulative change which may materially impact on the significance
of the building or structure, its economic viability and its conservation.
Conservation Areas
12.86 The district’s ten Conservation Areas are allocated on the Policies Map and have
been designated because of their special architectural or historic interest. This
policy ensures that development in Conservation Areas respects the character,
appearance and features which justify the special designation of that area. This is
also applicable to development which affects the setting of a Conservation Area.

124

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
64

June 2017

The Council will encourage redevelopment and refurbishment that would enhance
a Conservation Area and its setting.
12.87 The Council has completed character appraisals and management plans for several
of the district’s Conservation Areas. This is part of an ongoing monitoring and
review process. Supporting statements accompanying an application should set
out how development proposals have considered these character appraisals and
how they have accorded with management plans. The appraisals, plans and
confirmed Article 4 Directions for the Old Harlow and Harlow Garden Village Estate
Conservation Areas are available on the Council’s website.
Archaeology
12.88 A desk-based assessment, or where appropriate an archaeological field evaluation,
must be submitted where proposals are on or adjacent to sites of known
archaeological interest or sites believed to possess potential archaeological
significance. Following the assessment, further investigation may be required.
12.89 Where the loss of the whole or a part of a heritage asset’s archaeological
significance is justified, planning conditions may be attached to a planning
permission to ensure that an adequate record is made of the significance of the
heritage asset before it is lost.

PL12

Enabling Development of Heritage Assets and
their Settings

Development affecting a heritage asset (and its setting) which is at risk will be supported
where it would otherwise conflict with other policies of the Local Plan, if this is the only
way to secure the future conservation of the asset and it can be demonstrated that the
benefits of the development outweigh the negative impacts.

Justification
12.90 Enabling development may be considered appropriate where the ongoing
conservation of a listed building or locally listed building is at risk, and in this
instance it must be shown that this is the only way to conserve the asset by
providing an income for the upkeep and repair. Such development will not be
justified on the basis that it will generate increased revenue or property values.

Implementation
12.91 For advice on what should be included in an application for planning permission
and more general guidance on enabling development, refer to the Historic England
website.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
65

125

PL13

Advertisements

Proposals for advertisements will be assessed against all the following criteria:
(a) the effect the advertisement may have on the general amenity of the area,
including heritage assets, and the presence of any features of landscape or
cultural significance;
(b) the position of the advertisement in comparison to the scale and size of the host
building;
(c) the cumulative effect of the development when read with other advertisements
on the building or in the surrounding area. The clutter or over-concentration of
advertisements must be avoided;
(d) the size, scale, dominance and siting of the advertisement and how it relates to
the scale and character of the surrounding area;
(e) the design and materials of the advertisement, or the structure containing the
advertisement, and its impact upon the appearance of the building on which it is
to be affixed and the character of the surrounding area;
(f) the size, scale, type and levels of illumination of the advertisement and its impact
upon the amenity of people living nearby and the potential for light pollution;
and
(g) the impact upon the safety of the public, including highway users.

Justification
12.92 Advertisements can contribute significantly to the character of an area and, without
proper management, can create clutter and an unattractive street scene in the built
environment. However, advertising is an important way of promoting businesses
and contributing to the vitality of the area. The intention of this policy is, therefore,
to manage advertisements in a consistent manner, taking into consideration any
impact on the amenity value of the area and the safety of the public.

Implementation
12.93 This policy will apply to proposals which require the express consent of the Council.
The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 2007 sets
out where express consent is required.

126

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
66

June 2017

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
67

127

13. HOUSING
Introduction
13.1

One of the main aims of the Local Plan is to ensure that there is a sufficient supply
of sustainable, high-quality homes across a range of tenures and types in the
district, to fully meet Harlow’s Objectively Assessed Housing Needs (OAHN).

13.2

The West Essex and East Hertfordshire Housing Market Area (HMA) includes the
administrative areas of Harlow, East Hertfordshire, Epping Forest and Uttlesford.
Harlow’s contribution to meeting the housing requirement of the HMA is to ensure
that 9,200 homes are delivered in Harlow over the Local Plan period. The
overarching housing need for the district and its distribution is set out in the
Strategic Policies.

13.3

This chapter and the policies contained within it will help deliver the following
Corporate Priority:
 More and better housing

Local Plan Strategic Objectives
13.4

This chapter and the policies contained within it will help deliver the following
Local Plan Strategic Objectives:
 Objective 4 – Identify sites to meet local housing needs both now and in
the future
 Objective 5 – Provide a range of suitable housing for the community
including a range of tenure and type
 Objective 6 – Improve the quality of homes in the district through new
developments, regenerated neighbourhoods and priority estates

H1

Housing Allocations

Development of the Strategic Housing Site and other sites for housing (allocated in the
Strategic Policies) will be supported.
Development of the Strategic Housing Site will require a Master Plan to be submitted
which takes into consideration the relevant policies in the Local Plan.

Justification
13.5

128

The housing requirement for the district is set out in the Strategic Policies. Sites
allocated within the district are important as they help contribute towards meeting
the identified housing requirement for the district; consequently such
development will be supported.
Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
68

June 2017

Implementation
13.6

Planning applications for the development of allocated sites in the Local Plan will
be supported.

13.7

The housing requirement for the district will be delivered by the sites allocated on
the Policies Map. Development of the Strategic Housing Site must be supported by
a Master Plan and may require other documents such as design codes or
development briefs. These documents must take into account connectivity, the
character of the site and surrounding areas and the location and delivery of key
infrastructure.

H2

Residential Development

Residential development, including infill development, the sub-division of garden plots,
minor redevelopment schemes and the development of vacant plots, will be supported
where all the following criteria are met:
(a) the development would not have an unacceptable adverse effect on the
character of the locality, the appearance of the street scene, or the amenities
enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings;
(b) off-street parking and access arrangements can be provided for both existing
and proposed dwellings, in accordance with the Adopted Harlow Design Guide
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and adopted Vehicle Parking
Standards;
(c) the development would make adequate provision for refuse storage and
collection; and
(d) the development would not prejudice the potential for comprehensive
development of adjacent land.

Justification
13.8

This policy aims to encourage new residential development on appropriate sites
throughout the district. It is also recognised that there has been a small but
constant supply of new housing built on infill sites and garden plots which has
contributed to meeting local housing need.

13.9

The policy also aims to ensure that land suitable for residential development does
not have an adverse impact on the amenities and character of an area. This is
especially important in Harlow given the town’s New Town heritage reflecting
high-density development in parts of the district; however there are areas of lower
density development which have their own distinct character.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
69

129

13.10 As outlined in the Adopted Harlow Design Guide SPD, residential development
should respect and respond to the character of existing surrounding housing. This
character is normally defined by the general style of development, plot widths, how
the plot relates to other buildings, rooflines, projections and other design features.
13.11 The consideration of the impact of infill or other minor residential development on
parking and access is also a particularly important issue for Harlow, as many of the
neighbourhoods were built at a time before high car usage, so on-street parking
can cause congestion in narrow residential streets.

Implementation
13.12 Where there are groups of gardens that might be more efficiently developed
together, it would not make best use of land if this potential is prejudiced by a
development of one garden in isolation, so such development would not be
supported.

H3

Houses in Multiple Occupation

The creation or conversion of a dwelling to a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) will be
supported where it meets all the criteria below:
(a) the number of HMOs would not exceed one out of a row of five units;
(b) it is supported by a design rationale based on an understanding and analysis of
local context and character taking into consideration the Adopted Harlow Design
Guide Supplementary Planning Document (SPD);
(c) the development makes adequate provision for refuse storage and collection;
(d) parking is provided at a level of one space per bedroom, plus one secure covered
cycle space per bedroom, or set at the current adopted parking standards for
Houses in Multiple Occupation; and
(e) effective measures are proposed to minimise the effects of noise and disturbance.

Justification
13.13 Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) provide an additional housing type which
helps meet the needs of the community and provides more choice and mix. It is
recognised, however, that HMOs can create a range of issues which cumulatively
impact on the surrounding area. Evidence suggests that an excess of HMOs along a
street can have a detrimental on the amenities of the area. This policy aims to
minimise the loss of larger family housing, which is often used for HMOs and is in
relatively short supply due to the type of housing stock originally built in Harlow.

130

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
70

June 2017

13.14 Many areas of Harlow have limited off-street parking and open frontages, which
reflect the original New Town design. The intensification of HMOs in a street can
have a detrimental impact in the neighbourhood because of a lack of parking
provision. As such, this policy aims to maintain the character of residential areas,
protect the amenities of local residents and ensure sufficient off-street parking is
provided.

Implementation
13.15 HMOs are defined as dwellinghouses which are inhabited by three or more
unrelated people, as their only or main residence, who share one or more basic
amenity (such as a kitchen). There are two types of HMOs:
•
•

Small HMOs, housing between three and six unrelated persons
Large HMOs, housing more than six unrelated persons

13.16 Current national permitted development rights allow the change of a
dwellinghouse to a small HMO without planning permission. The change of a
dwellinghouse (or a small HMO) to a large HMO does, however, require planning
permission.
13.17 Planning applications for HMOs will be assessed according to their impact on the
character and street-scene of the area in which they are situated. A row is defined
as five or more adjacent dwellings whose frontages face the same continuous
section of highway between junctions. A row may include, but is not limited to,
terraced, semi-detached and detached dwellings, as interpreted by the Council.
Further guidance will be provided in a Supplementary Planning Document.
13.18 The Council will ensure that such development will be of an acceptable and safe
standard and that habitable rooms comply with the latest minimum size codes.

H4

Loss of Housing

The demolition or the change of use of buildings or land in residential use will be
supported where one or more of the following criteria are met:
(a) the development would facilitate a net gain in residential accommodation, or
redevelopment at a higher density;
(b) the development would be necessary to secure the preservation of a
listed building at risk;
(c) the existing building is unfit for human habitation, and cannot be economically
improved and brought back into residential use;
(d) the development would be essential for facilitating development in conjunction
with policies in the Local Plan.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
71

131

Justification
13.19 This policy aims to protect existing habitable housing stock and prioritises the
redevelopment of existing buildings for continued residential use, which
contributes to meeting the housing need in Harlow. It also helps to minimise the
amount of development on greenfield sites by promoting the retention of existing
dwellings, thereby assisting to preserve the open spaces in Harlow which are
fundamental to its character.
13.20 In some cases, redevelopment or conversion of existing dwellings may yield a net
increase in dwelling supply, or may provide opportunities to facilitate
redevelopment in an area.

Implementation
13.21 The redevelopment of existing residential development, in appropriate cases, will
be supported if it results in an increase in housing provision on a site.
13.22 To assess if a dwelling is fit for habitation, regard must be given to a range of
factors, including general repair, stability, freedom from damp, natural lighting,
water supply, ventilation, drainage and sanitary conveniences. This list is not
exhaustive and the Council has the discretion to consider other factors.

H5

Accessible and Adaptable Housing

All new dwellings must at least Building Control Part M4(2) standard for accessible and
adaptable homes to meet the occupiers’ future needs.
In addition, major residential development must provide a proportion of Building Control
Part M4(3) standard dwellings for wheelchair users.

Justification
13.23 National policies require Local Plans to support Building Control regulations by
demonstrating the need for requiring accessible dwellings. This is supported by the
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Essex.
13.24 The Building Regulations, published in 2015, set out three categories of dwellings:
• Part M4(1): Visitable dwellings (all properties must be broadly accessible)
• Part M4(2): Accessible and adaptable dwellings
• Part M4(3): Wheelchair user dwellings
13.25 The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) (2015) projects that the number
of over 65s in the Housing Market Area will increase by approximately 47,200
people during the Local Plan period, including 23,300 aged 85 or over.
Government disability data indicates that the proportion of households with at
least one wheelchair user will increase during the Local Plan period. To provide for

132

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
72

June 2017

these needs, it is necessary to ensure that all future housing is flexible to meet
people’s changing circumstances. In addition, the SHMA sets out that 10% of
market housing and 15% of affordable housing must be Building Control Part M4(3)
standard.

Implementation
13.26 The Building Control Regulations Part M4(2) and Part M4(3) dwellings in a
development should be identified in planning applications. Part M4(2) of the
Regulations sets out the standards for accessible and adaptable homes, and Part
M4(3) sets out the standards for wheelchair user dwellings. To ensure these
standards are met, applicants should consult with the Council prior to the
submission of a planning application.
13.27 The proportion of major residential development which is required to be of
Building Control Part M4(3) standard is set out in the current Strategic Housing
Market Assessment or successor studies.

H6

Housing Mix

A range of housing types and sizes, across a range of tenures, must be provided in major
residential development.

Justification
13.28 The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) provides robust evidence to
establish and provide information on the appropriate mix of housing and range of
tenures needed in the district. The SHMA indicates that there is a demand for a
range of housing types and tenures to meet the needs of different groups within
Harlow and to provide a choice, as required by national policies and guidance.
13.29 The range of housing types, sizes and tenures are based on the current SHMA or
successor studies.

Implementation
13.30 The different types and sizes of housing can include houses and flats, of differing
tenures, with varied numbers of bedrooms. This also includes the need for
accessible and adaptable housing.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
73

133

H7

Residential Annexes

Development for the provision for a domestic annexe will be supported where it meets
all the following criteria:
(a) it has a clear functional/physical dependence to the principal dwelling;
(b) it will be subservient to the principal dwelling;
(c) it is occupied by a relative dependent on the occupier of the principal dwelling,
or their carer;
(d) it is in the same ownership as the principal dwelling;
(e) it does not involve sub-division of the site; and
(f) sufficient car parking is available to meet the adopted Car Parking Standards.

Justification
13.31 The creation, extension or conversion of an outbuilding may provide an
opportunity to accommodate elderly or other dependent relatives, whilst allowing
a degree of independent living. The provision of residential annexes should remain
ancillary to the main dwelling within the residential curtilage. However, the
creation of a separate residential dwelling unit could have a detrimental impact of
the character of the surrounding area arising from an intensification of use, and
therefore would not be granted planning permission.

Implementation
13.32 The annexe should form part of the same residential planning unit, sharing the
same access, parking and garden. The key issue is that the annexe should not
become a self-contained dwelling in its own right. The layout, design and
relationship to the house will be an important consideration and should be guided
by other Local Plan policies and the Adopted Harlow Design Guide Supplementary
Planning Document.
13.33 Use of existing rooms for additional accommodation would not normally require
consent, so long as the person was clearly associated with main occupants (e.g.
dependent relative). Pre-application advice should be sought from the Council as
to whether a proposed annexe requires planning permission.

134

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
74

June 2017

H8

Affordable Housing

Major residential development will be supported where affordable housing is provided
at a rate of at least 30%. Reduction of this rate will require an independent viability
assessment.

Justification
13.34 The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) (2015) indicates there is a need
for 13,600 affordable dwellings over the Local Plan period, equating to an average
of 618 dwellings per year for the Housing Market Area. Specifically for Harlow, the
affordable housing need is 154 dwellings per annum (3,400 affordable homes over
the Local Plan period).
13.35 The SHMA also shows that a significant number (85%) of affordable housing should
be provided as affordable rent, normally provided by a Registered Provider or the
Council. The remainder of the affordable housing should be provided as
Intermediate Affordable housing at 15% of the total affordable.

Implementation
13.36 The type, tenure and bed-size of affordable housing will be informed by the current
version of the SHMA and Viability Study or successor studies.
13.37 Affordable housing development should be provided on the application site, which
will help ensure a mix of tenures and sizes. There may be circumstances where this
is not possible, and in such circumstances, where both the Council and the
developer agree, a commuted sum may be acceptable.

H9

Self-build and Custom-build Housing

Development of allocated sites must include an element of serviced plots for self-build
unless the inclusion of such would render the development unviable.
Development of the serviced plots must commence within two years of the completion
of the related phase of the allocated site. If the serviced plots have not commenced
within this timeframe, they may revert to conventional development and marketing.
All plots for self-build or custom-build housing must be fully serviced.

Justification
13.38 There is a legal requirement to keep a register of people seeking to acquire land to
build a home. Such housing can make a contribution to the affordable element of
the housing requirement and the overall need in the district. The Council is,
June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
75

135

therefore, required to grant sufficient development permissions in respect of
serviced land to meet the demand.
13.39 This policy recognises that there may be self-build plots which are not developed
and remain vacant, in which case the land owner may revert to conventional
delivery of the site.

Implementation
13.40 This policy will be delivered through the approval of individual planning
applications sites allocated in the Strategic Policies, and through conditions on
planning permissions to secure the self-build plots for a period of two years.
13.41 The Strategic Policies indicate the sites that will contain an element of self-build or
custom-build housing. In addition, other allocated sites will be expected to make a
contribution to meet the demand. The Council encourages developers and land
owners to consult the Council’s register to establish the current demand for selfbuild and custom-housebuilding and meet that demand accordingly.

H10

Travellers’ Pitches and Plots

If evidence indicates there is a need for additional pitches or plots, new sites will be
supported where all the following criteria are met:
(a) the development would not have an unacceptable adverse effect on the
character of the locality, the appearance of the street scene, the amenities
enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings, or designated and locally
identified habitats;
(b) the development would make adequate provision for refuse storage and collection;
(c) the development would not prejudice the potential for comprehensive
development of adjacent land;
(d) the development would be within a reasonable distance of shops, schools,
healthcare and other community/leisure facilities;
(e) there would be no risk of land contamination or flooding;
(f) safe and convenient vehicular access to the local highway network would be
provided together with adequate space to allow for the parking and movement
of vehicles;
(g) essential services (water, electricity and foul drainage) would be available on site;
(h) plots for Travelling Showpeople should be of sufficient size to enable the storage,
repair and maintenance of equipment; and
(i) intended occupants would meet the definition of Traveller as set out in national policies.

136

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
76

June 2017

Justification
13.42 The Strategic Policies allocate pitches for Travellers over the Local Plan period.
Where further evidence demonstrates additional provision is required, this policy
sets out the criteria against which proposals will be assessed.
13.43 The policy aims to ensure that all sites have good access to education, health and
welfare services, are safe and that there are no adverse impacts on the land, the
locality and the amenities of adjoining occupiers. The policy also seeks to prevent
development prejudicing the potential for comprehensive development of
adjacent land.

Implementation
13.44 This policy will apply to applications for new sites where there is a proven need for
additional pitches and plots for Travellers.
13.45 When identifying whether community facilities are within a reasonable distance, it
is considered that a 400 metre radius is acceptable if the site is only accessible by
foot. If the site is accessible by public transport, an 800 metre radius will be applied.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
77

137

138

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
78

June 2017

14. PROSPERITY
Introduction
14.1

The Prosperity policies aim to protect existing employment uses and encourage
and support future employment uses in designated areas, and to avoid the loss of
overall job numbers in the district. They support start-up and small business units
to promote entrepreneurship and economic regeneration across the district.

14.2

Harlow’s retail centres provide prosperity and employment for residents and
visitors and the town and serves as a sub-regional centre for services and facilities
across the wider area. The Prosperity policies, therefore, intend to retain and
enhance the existing provision in order to maintain Harlow’s sub-regional role.

14.3

There are several Retail Parks in Harlow which contribute to retail provision in the
town. A key priority is to maintain and enhance the role of Harlow Town Centre
and, as such, the policies seek the sub-division of units.

14.4

Proposals for retail development and other large attractors of people such as
commercial, leisure, entertainment and offices open to the public, will be
determined using the sequential approach to their siting. This will ensure that sites
in the Town Centre are considered in the first instance, followed by edge-of-centre,
then Neighbourhoods and Hatches. Out-of-centre locations will only be considered
as a last resort. Development must be appropriate to the function, size and
character of the centre.

Corporate Priorities
14.5

This chapter and the policies contained within it will help deliver the following
Corporate Priorities:
 Regeneration and a thriving economy
 Successful children and young people

Local Plan Strategic Objectives
14.6

This chapter and the policies contained within it will help deliver the following
Local Plan Strategic Objectives:
 Objective 7 – Meet the employment needs of the district by diversifying
and investing in the district’s employment base
 Objective 8 – Secure economic revitalisation and reinforce Harlow’s
reputation as a key centre for Research and Development
 Objective 9 – Improve educational opportunities and the skills base of
local residents
 Objective 10 – Provide a range of shopping needs for local residents and
the wider sub-region by regenerating the Town Centre and protecting and
enhancing Neighbourhood Centres and Hatches

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
79

139

PR1

Development within Employment Areas

Development in Employment Areas, as allocated on the Policies Map, will be supported
where:
(a) it is for the provision of offices, research and development, light or general
industrial, warehouse or distribution within the use classes B1, B2 and B8; or
(b) it is for uses other than B1, B2 and B8 it meets all the following criteria:
(i) evidence has been provided to demonstrate that the unit has been vacant
and actively marketed to the satisfaction of the Council for at least one year
and there is no prospect of B1, B2 and B8 uses occupying the unit or any
other more suitable alternative sites being available for the proposal;
(ii) the development will increase the number of jobs for local residents;
(iii) the development provides a complementary benefit to the employment
area or an ancillary benefit to an existing business, and would not have an
adverse effect on the overall provision of employment land; and
(iv) where the development is for the sub-division of units into smaller units, that
the resulting unit is flexible and the division is reversible.

Justification
14.7

Similarly to Ebenezer Howard’s plans for Garden Cities, Sir Frederick Gibberd
designed Harlow New Town to separate employment areas from residential areas
to ensure the health and wellbeing of residents. Sufficient employment areas were
allocated to meet the needs of local residents and reduce out-commuting, offering
a wide range of jobs to create a well-balanced community. Therefore, this policy
aims to maintain and enhance these principles.

14.8

In recognition of Harlow residents’ employment needs, specific areas have been
designated Enterprise Zone status by the Government. Local Development Orders
on the Enterprise Zones promote and guide specific employment uses and
activities. The Local Development Order for the northern part of the London Road
Zone, for example, supports a mix of retail, leisure and employment uses in an
appropriate zone with a separate area for research and development and industrial
uses. In the future, if it is identified in a regeneration strategy or development brief,
other uses will be supported.

Implementation
14.9

140

This policy sets out a general presumption against the loss of office, industrial or
distribution/warehouse uses from the district’s allocated employment areas. There
may be exceptions to this where proposals support existing employment uses,
such as trade counters or training/testing facilities.
Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
80

June 2017

14.10 Proposals for non-B uses should be accompanied by a planning statement to
address all the following:
(a) details of the existing use and the proposed use and how it operates;
(b) limitations of the site including its buildings and land for Class B uses;
(c) whether investment would enable the site to be used for Class B uses;
(d) why the proposal cannot be provided in a more suitable location;
(e) an assessment of current and potential future market demand for the site,
building or premises in question which should reflect current economic
trends, future forecasts changes and actual attempts to market the site,
building or premises in question;
(f)
any other considerations including economic viability.
14.11 In reference to criteria (d) above, locations which the Council consider to be more
suitable will be determined by the type and scale of use being proposed. For
example, a retail use would be located in Harlow Town Centre in the first instance
and then to Neighbourhood Areas and Hatches. Marketing of an employment site,
as set out in criteria (e) above, must be undertaken by a suitably competent person
for at least one year.

PR2

Development within Neighbourhood Service
Areas

Development in the Neighbourhood Service Areas, as allocated on the Policies Map, will
be supported where:
(a) it is for the provision of offices, light industrial uses and start-up units falling
within use class B1;
(b) it is for uses other than B1 and evidence has been provided to demonstrate that
the unit has been vacant and actively marketed to the satisfaction of the Council
for at least 12 months or for an appropriate period of time agreed with the
Council, and that there is no realistic prospect of B1 uses occupying the unit or
any other more suitable alternative sites being available for the proposal;
(c) it does not involve the amalgamation of units in Neighbourhood Service Areas
into larger units and meets criteria (a) or (b).

Justification
14.12 The district’s Neighbourhood Service Areas provide important employment
provision at the neighbourhood level and are well suited to meet the needs of
small start-up businesses, with units of approximately 20 to 40 sq m in size being
typically available. Such units provide opportunities to accommodate first time
businesses and can help to reduce inappropriate business uses proliferating in
residential areas, particularly those which affect the amenity of residents.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
81

141

14.13 The majority of local businesses in Harlow (84%, Nomis 2015) have fewer than 10
employees and therefore there is a pressing need for starter units, in order to
accommodate smaller teams of staff, to reduce overheads and to use space
efficiently. This policy aims to protect Neighbourhood Service Areas and the
provision of office, light industrial and research.

Implementation
14.14 This policy sets out a general presumption against the loss of B1 uses. It also
encourages more flexible employment accommodation in Neighbourhood Service
Areas. Their proximity to retail and residential areas mean that there may be
exceptions to this.
14.15 Proposals for non-B1 uses should be accompanied by a planning statement setting
out information on the following matters:
(a) details of the existing use and the proposed use and how it operates;
(b) limitations of the site including its buildings and land for Class B1;
(c) whether investment would enable the site to be used for Class B1;
(d) why the proposal cannot be provided in more suitable locations;
(e) current and potential future market demand for the site, building or
premises in question which should reflect current economic trends, future
forecasts changes and actual attempts to market the site, building or
premises in question;
(f)
any other relevant considerations such as economic viability.
14.16 In reference to criteria (d) above, locations which the Council consider to be more
suitable will be determined on the type and scale of use being proposed. For
example, a retail use will be better located in Harlow Town Centre in the first
instance and then to Neighbourhood Areas and Hatches. Marketing of an
employment site, as set out in criteria (e) above, must be undertaken by a suitably
competent person. The Council will determine how long a marketing exercise
should be on a case-by-case basis.

142

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
82

June 2017

PR3

Employment Development outside Employment
Areas and Neighbourhood Service Areas

1. Provision of employment floorspace
Employment development outside Employment Areas and Neighbourhood Service Areas
will be supported where:
(a) the proposal seeks to redevelop an established employment site, subject to the
impact upon the amenity of the surrounding area, road congestion and
movement;
(b) B1 office uses are proposed above ground floor level in the Town Centre.
2. Loss of employment floorspace
Development resulting in the loss of B1, B2, B8 and waste uses will not be supported
outside of the district’s Employment Areas and Neighbourhood Service Areas unless it
meets the following criteria:
(a) the proposed use is of overall benefit to the local community;
(b) evidence has been provided to demonstrate that the employment use is no
longer viable;
(c) evidence has been provided to demonstrate that the unit or site has been vacant

and actively marketed to the satisfaction of the Council for at least 12 months or
for an appropriate period of time agreed with the Council, and that there is no
prospect of employment uses occupying the unit or site.

Justification
14.17 Employment Areas and Neighbourhood Service Areas are the main focus of
employment provision in Harlow and contain a mix of accommodation for a range
of business types.
14.18 Harlow Town Centre also contains a number of office buildings, which not only
provide jobs for the local area and beyond, but also reinforce the vitality of the
Town Centre by increasing footfall in addition to that associated with day time
shoppers and other visitors. Office uses above ground floor and outside of primary
retail frontages will, therefore, be encouraged.
14.19 B2 and B8 use classes will not be considered appropriate outside of these areas due
to their impact on the amenity of an area in terms of general disturbance, noise and
vehicle movements.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
83

143

Implementation
14.20 There will be instances where the loss of an employment use or the provision of a
new employment use outside of strategic employment sites and Neighbourhood
Service Areas may be considered appropriate. This policy sets out the criteria for
how such proposals will be determined.

PR4

Improving Job Access and Training

For major development, provision through planning obligations will be sought for:
1. employment of local people;
2. work related training provision;
3. education opportunities;
4. affordable childcare.

Justification
14.21 This policy actively looks to generate new job opportunities for local residents as a
direct result of the growth in the district and to secure regeneration in Harlow. This
policy focuses on new job opportunities that the development will create, either as
long term posts or temporary labour, and improving work related training and
education. The aim is to get local residents back into work and to improve their
skills level.
14.22 Job opportunities may include long-term job creation, temporary job creation
through the construction of a development, work experience and placements,
apprenticeships and pre-employment training scheme placements. The policy also
actively seeks the provision of childcare schemes in employment generating
proposals.

Implementation
14.23 The policy will be applied to major developments and secured through a planning
obligation, tailored to individual schemes. Applicants should prepare an action plan
setting out a schedule of new job opportunities to be created through the
proposed development, the process by which jobs will be advertised to local
people and the method in which the provision of jobs for local residents will be
monitored. For employment generating developments, the action plan should also
outline training provision, education opportunities and childcare support. Where
possible, the action plan should extend to all sub-contractors.

144

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
84

June 2017

PR5

The Sequential Test and Principles for Main Town
Centre Uses

1. Sequential Approach to Main Town Centre Uses
Unless identified in an adopted Development Plan Document or Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD) or development brief, development of Main Town Centre Uses must be
directed in the first instance to the Town Centre unless there are no suitable or available
sites. Neighbourhood Centres, and then Hatches, must be considered before any Main
Town Centre Uses are directed to Retail Park locations.
2. General Principles for Main Town Centre Uses
Main Town Centre Uses within the Town Centre, Neighbourhood Centres, Hatches and
Retail Parks will be supported where all the following criteria are met:
(a) the sequential approach is satisfied;
(b) an active frontage is achieved at the ground floor;
(c) the vitality and viability of the retail centre is preserved and enhanced to provide
facilities and services for local residents; and
(d) it is well related to public transport facilities, or is located where appropriate
provision for sustainable transport can be provided.

Justification
14.24 The vitality and viability of the Town Centre is important to the local economy and
to ensure it is an attractive place for residents, employees and visitors. This is
particularly pertinent as the services and facilities available also serve a catchment
area that extends beyond the district boundary. The Town Centre is a sustainable
transport hub, well-served by public transport, which has good connectivity with
key locations along the London Stansted Cambridge corridor. This policy directs
Main Town Centre Uses towards the Town Centre in order to preserve and/or
enhance its position.
14.25 In the retail hierarchy of Harlow, subservient to the Town Centre are the
Neighbourhood Centres, followed by Hatches, which reflect the principles and
hierarchy of the original New Town which ensure different types of retail provision
are provided to meet local needs.

Implementation
14.26 The Strategic Policies set out the hierarchy of retail centres in Harlow and this is the
hierarchy in which Main Town Centre Uses should be directed to first before any
out of Town Centre sites are considered.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
85

145

14.27 Proposals for retail and leisure uses outside of the Town Centre which exceed 500
sq m in size will be required to be supported by an impact assessment
demonstrating that the proposal will not have a negative impact on the vitality and
viability of existing centres and that the development increases overall
sustainability and accessibility. This is to support the Town Centre’s market share
and to prevent the decline of the retail offer. This ensures that any potential
impacts of retail and leisure uses outside of the Town Centre are fully assessed.
14.28 This policy seeks to maintain active frontages in the Town Centre to provide an
attractive environment for pedestrians. Active frontages could include display
windows, entrance points, façade design or clear glazing. Blank and inaccessible
frontages should be avoided.
14.29 In considering proposals in Neighbourhood Centres and Hatches, reference should
be made to the Adopted Harlow Design Guide SPD and any associated
regeneration strategy or development brief.

PR6

Primary and Secondary Frontages in the Town Centre

1. Primary Frontages
Development in the Town Centre primary frontages will only be supported where:
(a) the development is for A1 class use;
(b) the development is for use classes A2 or A3 and meets all of the following
criteria:
(i) 60% or more of the overall primary frontage length is retained for A1 uses;
and
(ii) the site has been vacant and actively marketed to the satisfaction of the
Council for at least twelve months.
2. Secondary Frontages
Main Town Centre Uses (with the exception of office uses), evening and night-time uses
will be supported in the Town Centre secondary frontages.

Justification
14.30 Primary and secondary retail frontages protect and enhance the existing retail offer
by preventing a proliferation of uses which are not conducive to maintaining the
vitality and viability of the Town Centre. Defining frontage lengths and classifying
appropriate uses in frontages provide opportunities to regenerate and improve
certain parts of the Town Centre and protect retail provision in others.
14.31 This policy supports main Town Centre uses including commercial leisure, evening
and night-time uses in secondary frontages where it is considered appropriate and
where it strengthens the role of the Town Centre as a sub-regional centre.

146

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
86

June 2017

Implementation
14.32 Where marketing of the unit is required to justify a non-A1 use in the primary
frontage, it should be undertaken by a suitably competent person for at least one
year. A planning statement must be submitted setting out how this marketing
exercise has been undertaken.
14.33 Within secondary frontages, main Town Centre uses will be considered acceptable
except for office development which is considered appropriate only on first floor
levels and above. This is to prevent blank ground floor frontages in the Town
Centre that could harm the vitality of the area. For proposals relating to evening
and night time uses, Policy PR11 should also be taken into consideration.

PR7

Sub-division and Internal Alteration of Town Centre
Units

The sub-division of retail units in the Town Centre and the internal alteration of existing
retail units will be supported where both the following criteria are met:
a) for units larger than 2,500 sq m, evidence has been provided to demonstrate that
the unit has been actively marketed to the satisfaction of the Council for at least
two years;
b) the sub-division or internal alteration would retain an active frontage.

Justification
14.34 In order to retain Harlow Town Centre’s status as a sub-regional centre, it is
important that it is able to provide a mix of retail unit sizes in order to ensure choice
and attract a mix of occupiers. This policy aims to retain the Town Centre’s larger
retail units and to manage the sub-division of these units where it is considered
appropriate.
14.35 The 2017 Retail and Leisure Needs Study identified the former department store as
providing an opportunity to introduce a new anchor operator in the Town Centre
and that the lack of a department store represents a significant gap in the retail
offer available in the town. The policy therefore seeks to retain these larger units in
order to provide opportunities to attract an anchor store or department store.

Implementation
14.36 In circumstances where sub-division is sought for units above 2,500 sq m in size, a
marketing exercise must be undertaken by a suitably competent person for a
period of at least two years. A planning statement must be submitted setting out
how this has been undertaken. This will demonstrate to the Council that the unit

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
87

147

has not been able to attract retail operators who are more likely to act as anchors or
which provide department store size facilities.
14.37 The threshold of 2,500 sq m has been calculated based on an assessment of
existing Town Centre units which are considered large enough to accommodate
such services or which are located at anchor points in the town i.e. close to high
footfall levels and/or interchange facilities.

PR8

Primary and Secondary Frontages in
Neighbourhood Centres

1. Primary Frontages
Development in primary frontages in Neighbourhood Centres will be supported where it
meets one of the following criteria:
(a) the development is A1 class use;
(b) the development is for A2, A3, A4, A5 uses and would not result in more than two
adjacent units being in the same use class other than A1;
(c) the development is for D1, D2 or Sui Generis uses, the site has been vacant and
actively marketed to the satisfaction of the Council for at least twelve months
and development would not result in more than two adjacent units being in the
same use class other than A1.
In addition, development must meet both the criteria below:
(d) the development must result in 60 % or more of the overall primary frontage
length being retained in A1 use; and
(e) the development would not result in the loss of key facilities that act as anchors
or catalysts which assist in retaining existing or attracting new operators in the
Neighbourhood Centre such as supermarkets or public houses.
2. Secondary Frontages
Development in secondary frontages in Neighbourhood Centres, which falls in use classes
A1, A2, A3, A4, A5, D1, D2, Sui Generis and C3, will be supported where it meets both of
the following criteria:
(a) for non-A1 ground floor uses, the development would not result in more than
two adjacent units being in the same use class; and
(b) for C3 uses, the development is on the first floor or above.

148

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
88

June 2017

Justification
14.38 Primary and secondary retail frontages in Neighbourhood Centres fulfil the same
function and role as they do in the Town Centre in that they prevent an
unacceptably high proportion of uses which are not conducive to the key role of
these local centres. Defining frontages and what uses are considered acceptable
within them provide opportunities to regenerate Neighbourhood Centres and
retain a mix of facilities and services.
14.39 The policy seeks to support a wider range of services and facilities within
Neighbourhood Centres for local residents. These Centres provide services, such as
healthcare, places to eat and drink and financial services. It is important that
Neighbourhood Centres continue to have a variety of uses to avoid underused
frontages and spaces.

Implementation
14.40 Where marketing of the unit is required to justify a non-retail use in the primary
frontage, it should be undertaken by a suitably qualified person for at least one
year. A planning statement must be submitted setting out how the marketing
exercise has been undertaken.
14.41 The definition of frontage length and the method by which frontage length will be
calculated will be set out in a Supplementary Planning Document.

PR9

Development in Hatches

Development in Hatches will be supported where it meets both of the criteria below:
(a) development at ground floor level falls within use classes A1, A2, A3, A4, A5, D1 or
D2 or a mix of these uses and does not result in the loss of all convenience
facilities, public houses and community facilities; and
(b) development on the first floor or above falls within use classes B1(a) or C3.

Justification
14.42 Hatches are a key feature of Harlow’s residential areas. They are allocated on the
Policies Map and cater for the daily needs of communities within approximately a
400 metre walk of homes. Hatches are usually based around a primary school or
local open space and contain around four to five individual retail units, community
facilities and public houses which often provide a focus for community activities.
14.43 This policy aims to retain key local facilities which support the vitality and viability
of the Hatches. Development proposals that would undermine and erode the
function of Hatches would not be supported.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
89

149

Implementation
14.44 A number of Hatches now require investment or renewal and for those that have
already been regenerated, a mix of uses have been provided as a result, including
residential and office space. The Strategic Policies provide for comprehensive
redevelopment of Hatches.
14.45 This policy supports a diverse mix of uses in the Hatches in order to assist in their
regeneration and renewal. However in order to maintain their local service
functions and community focus, the policy protects community type facilities.
These facilities include public houses, convenience stores such as grocers and
butchers, community halls and healthcare facilities.

PR10 Development in Retail Parks
Development in Retail Parks will be supported where it meets all of the following criteria:
(a) the sequential approach is satisfied;
(b) the development is in use class A1 and is for the sale of bulky goods, or provides
leisure activities; and
(c) any sub-division does not result in any separate retail unit being less than 1,000
sqm in size.
For sub-division, evidence must be provided to demonstrate that the existing unit has
been actively marketed, to the satisfaction of the Council, for at least twelve months.

Justification
14.46 National policies and guidance set out the need for a sequential test in order to
maintain Town Centre vitality and viability. This ensures that where possible, retail
and leisure outlets will locate in the Town Centre before being granted permission
in an out of town location. The results of the most recent analysis of retail provision
in Harlow show that new requirements for retail floorspace should be focused on
the Town Centre.
14.47 To promote this principle, this policy ensures that retail units for the sale of nonbulky goods are directed to smaller units in the Town Centre, Neighbourhood
Centres and Hatches. The policy, therefore, restricts the sub-division of Retail Park
units.

Implementation
14.48 The term ‘bulky goods’ can include DIY goods, furniture, hard and soft furnishings,
homewares, fabrics, durable household goods, floor coverings, leisure and garden
products, motor accessories and electrical goods. Leisure activities include cinemas,

150

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
90

June 2017

dance halls, gyms and indoor sports centres, but do not include eating and drinking
establishments. These definitions are not exhaustive.
14.49 The policy does support the sub-division of existing units in the Retail Park subject
to the sub-division not resulting in a separate unit being less than 1,000 sqm. It is
considered that this figure would allow larger units to be divided whilst still having
the flexibility to offer space for bulky goods and mitigating the impact on the Town
Centre’s viability and vitality.

PR11 Evening and Night Time Economy
1. Sequential Test
Evening and night time uses must be directed to the Town Centre first, then to
Neighbourhood Centres and then to Hatches, and applicants must demonstrate that this
sequential approach has been undertaken.
2. Development Principles
Evening and night time uses will be supported where they meet both the following
criteria:
(a) it can be proven that the development will have a positive effect on the vitality
and viability of the retail centre, its night-time economy and the local area; and
(b) mitigation through legal agreements or conditions to minimise negative impacts
of the development on the local area.

Justification
14.50 The evening and night time economy is important to wider regeneration
objectives, employment creation and maintaining and improving the quality of life
for residents and visitors.
14.51 There are many benefits to promoting such activities. The leisure and
entertainment industry provides employment, in particular for young people. A
busy, vibrant Town Centre, in both the daytime and evening, can improve the
quality and ambience of the Town Centre, and improve wider public perception to
secure investment.
14.52 Where there may be potential negative impacts associated with evening and night
time uses, the Council will seek to mitigate this through legal agreements or
conditions to ensure the development does not lead to significant problems such
as crime, anti-social behaviour, litter and noise nuisance.

Implementation
14.53 Evening activities include drinking establishments, restaurants and pubs that are
open in the evening. Late night activities include night clubs and drinking
June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
91

151

establishments which are often open beyond midnight. This list is not exhaustive
and the Council has the discretion to determine what constitutes evening and late
night activities.
14.54 The location of evening and night time establishments will be considered carefully
and would only be permitted where they would not give rise to unacceptable
amenity and environmental impacts which could not be overcome by the
imposition of conditions. Where necessary, planning permission will be granted
subject to conditions restricting opening and/or removing permitted development
rights to change to alternative uses, in order to protect the amenity of surrounding
occupants and the viability and vitality of the area generally. The location of the
proposal must also comply with Policy PR6.
14.55 In terms of noise, an impact assessment may be required, taking into account the
context of the site, in particular its proximity to existing residential developments.

152

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
92

June 2017

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
93

153

15. LIFESTYLES
Introduction
15.1

These policies aim to enhance and, wherever possible, retain the district’s
recreational, sporting, cultural and community facilities and services which
contribute towards improving the health and lifestyles of residents.

15.2

There is also a policy to support the provision of public art to maintain Harlow’s
status as a Sculpture Town and to improve the environmental and cultural quality
of the district.

Corporate Priorities
15.3

This chapter and the policies contained within it will help deliver the following
Corporate Priority:
 Wellbeing and Social Inclusion

Local Plan Strategic Objectives
15.4

This chapter and the policies contained within it will help deliver the following
Local Plan Strategic Objective:
 Objective 11 – To provide and enhance sporting, leisure, recreational
facilities and cultural opportunities in the district

L1

Open Spaces, Play Areas and Sporting Provision and
Facilities in Major Development

In major development, public open space, allotments, play space and sporting provision
and facilities are to be required, together with their management and maintenance.

Justification

154

15.5

National policies and guidance place emphasis on the important contribution that
high quality open spaces can make to the health and well-being of communities.

15.6

One of the fundamental aims of Sir Frederick Gibberd’s Master Plan for Harlow was
to ensure the district was designed with sufficient areas of multi-functional open
space, located close to residential areas, which residents have easy access to. These
spaces are now considered to form part of the Green Infrastructure in Harlow and
offer a range of formal and informal activities. The Green Infrastructure network
provides well-connected footpaths, cycleways and bridleways which can be used

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
94

June 2017

by visitors and residents to encourage sustainability and promote healthier
lifestyles.

Implementation
15.7

The Adopted Open Space, Sport and Recreation SPD and the Harlow Design Guide
SPD set out the requirements for the provision and design of open space. Where it
can be demonstrated that provision cannot be met on site, the Open Spaces SPD
sets out the method for calculating off-site contributions for alternative provision.

15.8

Satisfactory long-term management and maintenance arrangements must be
secured as part of the planning permission. This may include the creation of a
management company, a maintenance plan and/or an agreed commuted
maintenance sum.

L2

The Provision and Loss of Recreational,
Sporting, Cultural and Community Facilities

1. Development for the provision of recreational, sporting, cultural and community
uses and facilities
Development for the provision of recreational, sporting, cultural and community uses
and/or facilities, including playing fields, play spaces, allotments and sports clubs, will be
supported where it meets both the following criteria:
(a) there is evidence of a demonstrable need for the use and/or facility or a benefit
to the local community; and
(b) the use and/or facility is easily accessible by all sectors of the community by both
public and private transport.
2. Development resulting in the loss of recreational, sporting, cultural and
community uses and facilities
Developments that will result in the loss of all or part of any recreation, sports, cultural or
community uses and/or facilities will not be supported unless it meets one or more of
the following criteria:
(a) it can be demonstrated that the use and/or facility is surplus to requirements and
an alternative replacement is not required;
(b) replacement uses and/or facilities of equivalent or better quantity and quality are
provided in a suitable location before the existing use and/or facility is replaced.
The replacement should be provided in an agreed location;
(c) such a development is ancillary or will support and enhance the existing use
and/or facility;
(d) the development would redress the deficiency of other recreational provision
within the locality.
June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
95

155

Justification
15.9

National policies and guidance state that in order to deliver recreational, sporting,
cultural and community facilities and services the community needs, policies
should plan positively and guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities
and services, particularly where this would reduce the community’s ability to meet
its day-to-day needs.

15.10 This policy aims to protect the district’s recreational, sporting, cultural and
community facilities including playing pitches, play spaces, allotments, sporting
facilities and parks. It also provides the criteria for which new facilities will be
provided.

Implementation
15.11 Recreation can include formal or informal activities and includes open spaces, play
spaces, buildings and other facilities used by people for enjoyment in their free
time. Sporting uses/and or facilities include sports pitches and associated buildings.
15.12 The policy also considers a range of different community and cultural buildings and
uses, including places of worship, healthcare and education facilities, libraries and
social facilities such as community halls. These uses can provide the necessary
infrastructure that underpins a healthy and prosperous community, and a range of
activities that help to engage and connect the public. This list is not exhaustive and
the Council has the discretion to decide what constitutes recreational, sporting,
cultural and community facilities.
15.13 Developers may need to satisfy the Council that a satisfactory management and
maintenance arrangements are in place before planning permission is granted.

L3

Development Involving the Provision or Relocation
or Loss of Public Art

1. Provision of Public Art in Major Developments
In major developments, public art should be provided.
2. Development Involving the Provision, Relocation or Loss of Public Art
The commissioning, maintenance and de-commissioning of public art must be agreed
with the Council.

Justification
15.14 Since the designation of Harlow New Town in 1947, the district has been collecting
and creating works of art for the enjoyment of the residents and visitors to the
town in order to enhance the public realm. Most of the pieces are sculpture based,
hence the branding of Harlow as a Sculpture Town. These sculptures are located in
public spaces including the Town Centre, Neighbourhood Centres, Hatches, Green

156

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
96

June 2017

Wedges, employment areas and residential areas. Over the years the collection has
grown to almost 100 works, giving the town the highest percentage of public
sculpture per head of population in the country. Most pieces of art are maintained
and owned by the Harlow Arts Trust, although some are owned by the Council or
privately through development.
15.15 The purpose of this policy is to continue the legacy of Harlow as a town of public art
and sculpture and it is expected that major new developments will contribute
towards this. The Council will prepare a Public Art Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD) to help guide applicants on the inclusion of public art in their
development and what information must be submitted alongside a planning
application.

Implementation
15.16 Detailed guidance on the provision, relocation and loss of public art will be set out
in an Adopted Public Art SPD.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
97

157

158

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
98

June 2017

16. INFRASTRUCTURE
Introduction
16.1

The Infrastructure Policies aim to manage the provision of local highway
infrastructure in new developments including vehicle, pedestrian and cycle access,
and to provide advice and standards for parking and criteria based policies for the
provision of broadband and telecommunications equipment and other
infrastructure.

16.2

The Policies aim to promote sustainable transport modes in order to influence
travel behaviour and to reduce the carbon footprint of the district. The policies also
set criteria for ensuring that developments have suitable access and servicing and
are safe and well-connected.

16.3

The Local Highway Authority is responsible for maintaining and repairing the
highway network, which includes roads, cycleways, walkways, footpaths and
bridleways. The Highway Authority also protects the highway network for the safe
and efficient movement of people and goods. The Council will consult Highways
England and the Local Highway Authority and, where appropriate, neighbouring
authorities on proposals which affect public highways, footpaths, cycleways,
bridleways and Public Rights of Way, and for proposals which cross the
administrative boundary.

16.4

Essex County Council has prepared several guidance documents and manuals to
assist those constructing new highways, footpaths, cycleways and bridleways.
These should be read in conjunction with the national policies and guidance
documents before submitting development proposals.

16.5

The County Council’s Parking Standards, which provide guidance on parking
provision in new developments, should always be consulted, unless otherwise
indicated elsewhere in the Local Plan. It is recognised, however, that parking
provision may be reduced in sustainable locations.

16.6

Other infrastructure such as education, healthcare, leisure, community uses, utilities
and Green Infrastructure are covered by other policies in the Local Plan.

Corporate Priorities
16.7

This chapter and the policies contained within it will help deliver the following
Corporate Priority:
 Regeneration and a thriving economy

Local Plan Strategic Objectives
16.8

June 2017

This chapter and the policies contained within it will help deliver the following
Local Plan Strategic Objectives:
Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
99

159

 Objective 12 – Ensure that development is fully supported by providing
the necessary infrastructure including education, healthcare and other
community facilities
 Objective 13 – Reduce the need to travel by vehicle by ensuring new
development is sustainably located
 Objective 14 – Improve transport links, for all modes of transport, to
community facilities

IN1

Development and Sustainable Modes of Travel

1. Sustainable Accessibility
All development should have regard to the modal hierarchy as set out in the Strategic
Policies.
New developments including redevelopments, changes of use and Town Centre and
transport interchange improvements will be required to provide the following:
(a) safe and direct cycleways and footpaths within the development;
(b) where appropriate, contributions to improve and develop cycleways and
footpaths serving the development;
(c) where appropriate, links to the existing cycleway and footpath network;
(d) safe, secure and convenient cycle storage/spaces in accordance with current
parking standards;
(e) where appropriate, other facilities for cyclists such as employee showers, lockers
and information and maintenance points.
2. Provision of Electric Charging Points for Vehicles
Development must provide electric vehicle charging points (EVCPs) in accordance with
the latest government guidance.

Justification
16.9

The provision of sustainable transport modes in the district has a number of
positive benefits. Using trains, buses, cycling and walking to access employment,
education, services and facilities can help reduce the number of vehicles on the
road thereby easing congestion levels and improving the effects of climate change
by reducing carbon dioxide and nitrogen oxide emissions. Cycling and walking to
services, particularly facilities within a radius of 1 to 8 km, can improve public
health, physical activity and quality of life.

16.10 To enable people to choose more sustainable modes of transport, the services must
be safe, secure, adequate, direct, frequent and affordable. Local Plan policies ensure
that the options for sustainable modes continue well into the future, and to

160

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
100

June 2017

facilitate this, the Council will bring forward major infrastructure improvements
with rail and bus operators and the Local Highway Authority.
16.11 This policy provides detailed advice on the provision of appropriate and adequate
infrastructure which is necessary to enable those who wish to use walking, cycling
and public transport as an alternative way of moving in and around the district. It
also provides options for providing other sustainability initiatives to reduce the use
of the car and to reduce the emittance of carbon dioxide, such as encouraging the
use of electric cars through the provision of new charging points.

Implementation
16.12 As highlighted in national policies and guidance, applicants for development that
generates significant travel movements should submit a transport assessment or
statement and travel plan setting out how the proposal has aimed to meet this
policy.
16.13 New development proposals should investigate ways to reduce the use of the car
and promote alternative ways to travel and this should be detailed in a supporting
Travel Plan. For residential development, applicants should look at the viability of
car sharing schemes as well as electric charging points.
16.14 For employment developments, the use of shuttle buses and walking and cycling
connections should be investigated as well as opportunities to use railway spurs
and river channels and canals. New educational facilities should also investigate
ways to promote cycling and walking through a school travel plan.
16.15 This policy will be applied proportionately to the size of the development being
proposed. For example it would not be reasonable to expect proposals for
householder developments to provide new cycleways or footpaths. However all
development must consider the modal hierarchy.
16.16 Those applications which involve definitive Public Rights of Way, as defined by the
Local Highways Authority, should refer to the latest DEFRA guidance on planning
permission and rights of way.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
101

161

IN2

Impact of Development on the Highways
Network including Access and Servicing

Development will be supported where it meets all the following criteria:
(a) it would not cause a significant detrimental impact on road congestion and
movement;
(b) it would not cause a detrimental impact on the safety of all road users including
pedestrians, cyclists and powered two-wheelers; and
(c) the development provides for adequate, safe and convenient loading and
servicing arrangements, access points and drop-off areas and consideration has
been given to the movement and turning of emergency vehicles and refuse
vehicles.

Justification
16.17 This policy will be used to determine whether or not the development has an
impact on the existing highway network and, therefore, whether the proposal
should be considered appropriate in transport terms. It also provides guidelines on
the provision of adequate access and servicing for development.

Implementation
16.18 In accordance with national policies and guidance, it may be necessary for an
application to be accompanied either by a Transport Assessment (TA) or Transport
Statement (TS) depending on the degree of the proposal’s impact on highway
users and movement in the local area generally. It will be for the applicant to
demonstrate that the impact of the development on highway users is either
minimal or can be mitigated by appropriate measures.
16.19 These documents assess and mitigate the negative transport impacts of
development in order to promote sustainable development. TAs are thorough
assessments of the transport implications of development, and TSs are a ‘lightertouch’ evaluation to be used where this would be more proportionate to the
potential impact of the development. Further guidance on the preparation of TAs
and TSs can be found in national policies and guidance.
16.20 The Council will consult with the Local Highway Authority and other bodies on the
Transport Assessment or Statement. If there is inadequate justification for the
proposal or if the impact of the development is too great then it will be refused.
16.21 It is recommend that any TA and/or TS be agreed with the Highway Authority and
the Highways Agency (where the development proposal impacts on the trunk road
network) prior to submission of the same to the Council.

162

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
102

June 2017

IN3

Parking Standards

Vehicle parking must be provided in accordance with the adopted Essex Vehicle Parking
Standards, unless otherwise indicated elsewhere in the Local Plan and/or supporting
documents.

Justification
16.22 The 2011 Census revealed that 75 per cent of households in Harlow had access to at
least one vehicle. There is a balance between reducing the reliance on the car and
promoting more sustainable modes of travel whilst ensuring that on-street parking
issues are not created, particularly around key destinations such as strategic
employment sites, the Town Centre and railway stations.

Implementation
16.23 This policy, through reference to the Essex Vehicle Parking Standards, provides a
flexible approach to the provision of parking. It allows the Council to secure more
spaces in areas that already experience parking problems or accept fewer parking
spaces in areas of good public transport accessibility.
16.24 The Essex Vehicle Parking Standards also set out the requirements for adequate
parking provision for the needs of disabled people and for bicycles and powered
two-wheelers. The flexibility that may be considered appropriate to car parking
provision, in locations with good public transport access, does not apply to car
parking provision for disabled people. Such provision will not be reduced and any
additional provision will be supported. If a reduction in overall parking provision is
accepted by the Council then an increase in provision for bicycles and initiatives to
support public transport will be expected to be provided.
16.25 There will be some developments that will not fall into any of the use class
categories set out in the Essex Vehicle Parking Standards. In such cases, the Council
will consider the proposal on its own merits in consultation with the Local
Highways Authority. However, applicants will need to demonstrate the level of
parking provided is appropriate and will not lead to problems of road congestion
and movement and on-street parking on the adjacent highway network.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
103

163

IN4

Broadband and Development

1. Broadband Provision in Major Development
Major development should contribute towards the provision of infrastructure suitable to
enable the delivery of high-speed broadband services across the Harlow area.
2. Broadband Infrastructure Development
Broadband infrastructure development will be supported where a report is submitted
which meets both the following criteria:
(a) any adverse impacts on the environment and communities have been
minimised; and
(b) opportunities of sharing infrastructure between utilities have been addressed in
order to minimise disruption, reduce installation costs and increase the viability
of service provision.

Justification
16.26 The development of high speed broadband technology and other communications
networks play a vital role in enhancing the provision of local community facilities
and services. High quality communication is also essential for sustainable economic
growth and to help attract businesses to the district. The Council is working with
Essex County Council to roll out ‘Superfast Essex’, a programme which will see 95%
of Essex having access to high-speed broadband networks by 2019, thereby
boosting the economy of the County and enabling businesses to work more
effectively in new ways and reach out to new customers.
16.27 ‘Superfast Essex’ does not cover new build properties and therefore the Council
needs to ensure that broadband in new developments is considered at the outset
along with other important utility infrastructure provision such as water pipes and
gas mains. This is easier to implement during the construction phase rather than
retrospectively. The purpose of this policy is to secure the delivery of fibre
broadband as part of new developments.

Implementation
16.28 Major developments will need to provide a strategy that can demonstrate that fibre
optic connection can be achieved to the site proportionate to the size of the
development.

164

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
104

June 2017

IN5

Telecommunications Equipment

Development of telecommunications equipment will be supported where it meets both
the following criteria:
(a) evidence has been provided to show that opportunities have been explored to
share existing masts or sites with other providers; and
(b) where equipment has become redundant it is removed before it is replaced, or if
not replaced it is removed within a time period to be agreed with the Council.

Justification
16.29 Telecommunications networks require the provision of aerials, masts and cables
which can cause conflict between the needs of a company to site equipment on
operationally advantageous sites and the need to protect sensitive areas. This
policy aims to balance the need for expanding communications equipment whilst
protecting the district’s environment.

Implementation
16.30 Generally, planning permission is only required for certain sized masts and,
therefore, the Council encourages early pre-application discussions on the
provision of new telecommunication equipment. This policy will be used to
determine equipment which requires planning consent; however the Council can
only determine a proposal on the grounds of design and amenity and not on health
aspects.
16.31 Telecommunication equipment must conform to the International Commission on
Non-Ionising Radiation Protection (ICNIRP) guidelines taking into account the
cumulative impact of all operators’ equipment located on the mast/site where
appropriate. Government advice states that all telecommunications proposals
should be submitted with an ICNIRP Certificate.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
105

165

IN6

Planning Obligations

Planning permission will only be granted for development if the provision is secured for
related infrastructure, affordable housing, services, facilities and environmental
protection which are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms,
directly related to the development, and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind.
The provision of such requirements shall be secured either as part of development
proposals, through the use of conditions attached to planning permissions, or through
planning obligations. Where it can be demonstrated that provision on site is not feasible
then provision elsewhere, or a contribution towards this provision, will be required.
Where a planning application extends beyond the district boundary, prior agreement for
the provision and location of any necessary obligations will need to be obtained from
relevant parties.

Justification
16.0

All development has the potential to impact on the environment and place
pressure on local infrastructure and services. The planning system can be used to
ensure that new development contributes positively to the local environment and
helps to mitigate any adverse impacts on infrastructure.

16.1

Section 106 agreements are a very effective means of ensuring that public services
keep pace with private sector development and will play an important role in
implementing the Local Plan. They can ensure relevant infrastructure and facilities
are provided, the quality of a development is enhanced and schemes are enabled
to go ahead that would otherwise be refused planning permission.

Implementation

166

16.2

Planning obligations are negotiated on a case-by-case basis. Where developers
believe that viability is an issue, applicants will need to make a submission to the
Council which should include the following:
• A financial viability appraisal
• A statement outlining the benefits and risks of not meeting the policy
requirements and the site being delivered immediately.
Further guidance will be available in an Adopted Planning Obligations
Supplementary Planning Document (SPDs).

16.3

Development can create a need for the provision of services, facilities and
infrastructure both on-site and off-site. This provision may include:
• affordable housing
• open spaces and Green Infrastructure
• communications infrastructure
• public art
• community and social facilities
Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
106

June 2017

•
•
•
•
•
•

transport improvements
culture and recreation facilities
utility services
education and health facilities
emergency service requirements
measures to protect and enhance amenity or the environment, including
biodiversity and wildlife habitats

16.4

Requirements for individual developments will depend on the nature of the
proposals, specific site circumstances and on the requirements laid out in any
adopted SPDs produced by the Council.

16.5

If the necessary requirements generated through a development cannot be
achieved through negotiations or condition, they will normally be secured as
planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as amended) in association with a grant of planning permission.

16.6

In addition to securing necessary infrastructure, services and facilities, planning
obligations may involve measures to ensure development takes place in an agreed
way, for example, by setting out the appropriate phasing of development, and
measures to meet other policies and objectives, such as the protection of the
environment.

16.7

New development can have wider impacts, such as development generating
additional traffic movements outside the district or a larger application straddling
the administrative boundary. In these cases, agreement may also be required with
the adjoining Council and also Essex and/or Hertfordshire County Councils, as the
Highway Authorities, as part of a Section 106 agreement.

June 2017

Development Management

CONSULTATION DRAFT
107

167

Appendix C

Harlow Local Development Plan
Programme Management Report
Project

Local Development Plan Production Support

Client

Harlow Council

Date

1 June 2017

Prepared by

G Sinnamon & R Pearman

Stace LLP
273 High Street
Epping
Essex CM16 4DA
T +44 (0)1992 565565
www.stace.co.uk

108

Contents

Page

1.0 Introduction
3
2.0 Production of the Report
4
3.0 Duty to Co-operate / Garden Town
5
4.0 Strategic Inputs
6
4.1 Housing Requirements
6
4.2 Water, Sewerage & Drainage
7
4.3 Infrastructure Delivery Study and Viability
Assessment
8
4.4 Transport Modelling and identification of a
strategy for Harlow
9
4.5 Retail Study
10
4.6 Employment Study
10
4.7 Health Facilities
11
4.8 Playing Pitch Study
11
4.9 Gypsy & Traveller Policy
11
5.0 Local Development Plan Production
Process
12
5.1 Test of Soundness
12
5.2 Internal Council Processes
12
5.3 Regulation 19 Consultation Period
13
6.0 Programme
13
7.0 Risk Register
13
Appendices
Appendix 1 – Programme
Appendix 2 – Risk Register

www.stace.co.uk

Page 2

109

1.0

Introduction
Harlow Council is currently producing a Local Development Plan (LDP) which will
shape and guide development in the area over the period 2011 – 2031. The plan
will set out a spatial vision, supported by Strategic Policies and detailed
Development Management Policies together with a Policies Map. The final
content of the LDP will be endorsed by the Council’s Cabinet and then be
referred to Council at the appropriate stage in its production, prior to being
submitted to the Planning Inspectorate for an independent Examination before an
Inspector. The Inspector will examine the Plan against the following tests of
soundness:
• Positively prepared – the plan should be prepared based on a strategy which
seeks to meet objectively assessed development and infrastructure requirements,
including unmet requirements from neighbouring authorities where it is
reasonable to do so and consistent with achieving sustainable development;
• Justified – the plan should be the most appropriate strategy, when considered
against the reasonable alternatives, based on proportionate evidence;
• Effective – the plan should be deliverable over its period and based on effective
joint working on cross-boundary strategic priorities;
• Consistent with national policy – the plan should enable the delivery of
sustainable development in accordance with the policies in the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF).
In addition the Inspector will assess legal compliance and whether the Council has
met the duty to co-operate (DTC). This is a legal duty that must be fulfilled in
preparing the plan and any failure in this regard cannot be rectified after the LDP
has been submitted for examination.
The next key stage is for the Council to complete the Regulation 19 Consultation
on the LDP before it is submitted for Examination.
Evidence has been prepared to support the policies and proposals of the Local
Development Plan and this has been used to establish future growth
requirements. This evidence has considered the wider social, economic and
environmental characteristics of Harlow. The technical studies are in relation to
the five spatial themes around which Harlow’s LDP is being developed which are
Place Shaping, Housing, Prosperity, Infrastructure and Lifestyles.
Harlow Council has appointed Stace LLP to produce a strategic master programme
for the final production of the LDP, detailing the current position and
interdependencies of the different work streams associated with it, as well as
this commentary report on the current progress, challenges and opportunities
with the production of the LDP, ahead of the next key milestone of issuing the
LDP for Regulation 19 Consultation. The report and programme are required for
the 22ndJune Cabinet meeting.

www.stace.co.uk

Page 3

110

2.0

Production of the Report
This report and the accompanying programme and risk register have been
produced following a series of briefing sessions between Harlow Council officers,
the Cabinet Portfolio Holder and Stace LLP, held 27 April, 9, 17, 23, & 25 May
and 1 June 2017. The meetings were used to discuss the progress to date
regarding production of the LDP, the opportunities, risks and challenges faced by
Harlow Council, including a Duty to Co-operate with neighbouring Councils, a
recent announcement that there is to be a new Harlow & GIlston Garden Town
development and several matters outside of Harlow Council’s control involving
third parties, which are integral to the production of a sound LDP. The
discussions considered the following matters and the findings of associated
studies relating to production of the LDP in order to enable assessment of the
opportunities and risks, informing this report;


Duty to Co-Operate / Garden Town



Technical Evidence Base
o

Population

o

Housing Requirements

o

Water, Sewage & Drainage

o

Infrastructure requirements and associated viability and delivery
assessment

o

Transport Modelling at the detailed level

o

Retail Study

o

Employment Study

o

Health Facilities

o

Playing Pitches Study

o

Gypsy & Traveller Policy

o

SA/SEA/HRA/EQIA/HIA



Progress to Date and Timeline Moving Forward



Process for Endorsement & Production of the Local Plan

www.stace.co.uk

Page 4

111

3.0

Duty to Co-operate / Garden Town
In the production of the LDP, Harlow Council must give wider consideration to its
mandatory obligation of liaising with adjacent Councils under the Duty to Cooperate, which requires cooperation between local planning authorities and other
public bodies to maximise the effectiveness of policies on strategic matters in
Local Development Plans. This takes place via the Co-operation for Sustainable
Development Board. Local planning authorities should make every effort to
secure the necessary cooperation on strategic cross-boundary matters before
they submit their Local Development Plans for examination.
Given Harlow’s geographic location and through the Co-operation for Sustainable
Development Board, the Council has been working closely with:


Epping Forest District Council



East Hertfordshire District Council



Uttlesford District Council



Essex County Council



Hertfordshire County Council

In addition to the above, this has involved engagement with the following bodies:


the Environment Agency



Highways England



Princess Alexandra Hospital



Sport England



Natural England



Lea Valley Regional Park Authority



London Stansted Cambridge Consortium



City of London Corporation (Conservators of Epping Forest)



Affinity Water



Thames Water

www.stace.co.uk

Page 5

112

This process is also crucial to the production of Harlow Council’s LDP due to the
cross-boundary close liaison that is required for the Harlow & GIlston Garden
Town initiative which is now underway, involving East Hertfordshire District
Council, Epping Forest District Council and Harlow District Council among others.
It is recognised that a strategic approach, beyond the District boundaries is
required to ensure the delivery of the Garden Town, supported by co-ordinated
Local Development Plans for the involved authorities. The Co-operation for
Sustainable Development Board has, therefore, been established between the
neighbouring authorities to discuss key strategic issues and ensure consistency in
approach, as well as identifying the strategic challenges where the authorities
can help one another to achieve the required outputs such as housing unit
numbers, employment opportunities and transport connectivity. A consistent
approach is challenging as each Authority also seeks to protect its own position
and so a careful balance between competing interests needs to be achieved.

4.0

Strategic Inputs
As identified within Section 2.0 above, there are several strategic inputs to the
production of the LDP which involve the production of different studies, providing
an evidence base upon which Harlow Council supports the LDP. The studies are
all interlinked and can have varying impacts upon one another and the resultant
policies and proposals within the LDP which Harlow Council take forward. For
example, the housing requirements must be defined to understand the
infrastructure required to support them.

4.1

Housing Requirements
The key strategic issues facing Harlow Council relating to the Strategic Housing
Need are:


Confirmation of whether a second transport network access route to the
strategic, proposed development site to the north east of Harlow is
required;



Implications of the requirement for a secondary access point from this
strategic site in terms of the viability and deliverability of this site;



Demonstrating deliverability of the access routes to all the strategic sites
in and around Harlow and the neighbouring Districts, given that many of
the accesses are in multiple land ownerships and may require different
mitigation measures;



Ensuring sufficient affordable housing is provided to meet identified need.

A Strategic Housing Market Assessment has been produced and this key document
identifies housing need across the wider market area and in Harlow. This
identifies that across the housing market area 51,100 homes are required during
www.stace.co.uk

Page 6

113

the Local Development Plan period, with 16,000 homes across the wider Harlow
area, including 9,200 homes within Harlow itself.
Agreement to the number of homes to be provided is not at risk as a
Memorandum of Understanding has been agreed between Harlow, Epping Forest,
and East Herts. District Councils to support the delivery of the housing numbers
required and their spatial distribution; with the Garden Town initiative itself
providing a framework to shape, guide and deliver the development. Harlow,
Epping Forest and East Herts Councils have been holding Developers’ Forums to
ensure that private sector house builders are aware of the LDP and strategic
views of the Councils with regards to delivery of the housing numbers and
identification of viable sites.
A key risk has recently been identified following further work by Essex County
Council relating to capacity and delivery of a secondary road link that would be
required to access the development site to the north east of Harlow. Modelling of
the transport connectivity requirements indicates that until a second access
route into the strategic site is delivered there is a potential impact upon short
term delivery of housing on this site and in Harlow.
If the timing of the delivery of the strategic housing site north east of Harlow is
delayed, Harlow Council must consider the availability of alternative sites and
would need to consider how any short term, unmet housing need would have to
be accommodated with the adjacent Councils through the Co-operation for
Sustainable Development Board, which may then require amendment to the MOU.
The Council needs to ensure the deliverability of the housing sites identified in
the LDP and the Infrastructure Viability Delivery Plan will identify whether these
housing sites are viable. Deliverability must be proved to ensure the LDP satisfies
the “test of soundness” when submitted to the Inspector.
There is also a risk related to the delivery of the proposed new Junction 7a for
the M11 motorway, which is the responsibility of Essex County Council. It is
understood scheme proposals will be submitted to Planning Committee in June
2017. The timing/success of the application and latterly the works may impact
upon the LDP proposals for Harlow Council, given the close liaison that is taking
place with neighbouring Districts and emerging needs for competing land usage
pressures to be agreed upon.

4.2

Water, Sewerage & Drainage
The key strategic risks for the LDP associated with water, sewerage & drainage
provision are;


Timescale for production of hydraulic models



Procuring a Water Cycle Study once the models are available



Sign off of the Water Cycle Study by the Environment Agency

www.stace.co.uk

Page 7

114



Water Cycle Study endorsement with Memorandum of Understanding
between the Districts, water authorities and the Environment Agency.

In order to confirm the requirements for potable water, sewerage and drainage
which inform the LDP, Harlow Council currently requires input from Affinity
Water and Thames Water who need to produce hydraulic models that can inform
a joint Water Cycle Study. Once this information is produced then a Water Cycle
Study can be procured and commissioned by Harlow Council. It cannot be
procured and undertaken without the hydraulic model data. This must then be
shared with the Environment Agency for their approval, so that they can confirm
the Councils have developed a strategy for water management. Without this, the
Environment Agency would object to any submitted LDP.
A specific key issue is that the sewerage company (Thames Water) must complete
their modelling in order to confirm that the capacity of the Rye Meads sewage
works is sufficient to accommodate the housing numbers to be provided during
the LDP period. Confirmation of the housing numbers is linked to the issues
identified within 4.1 above and 4.4 below.
At present, this deliverable is a high risk to the timeline for production of the LDP
as Harlow Council have been informed that the water companies will not meet
their original due date for providing modelling data during July 2017. No revised
date has yet been provided. The current climatic conditions indicate that a
further delay is likely. This is beyond the control of Harlow Council.
To address this delay, Harlow Council in conjunction with partners in the
Cooperation for Sustainable Development Board, have been pro-active and have
written to the bodies concerned and central government (DEFRA & CLG) to
request support and increased urgency from the water companies. A joint
meeting with the water companies and Environment Agency has also been
requested within the coming weeks in order to secure an urgent resolution, to
define the way forward and in turn allow the Council to complete the LDP.
Following completion of the modelling and Water Cycle Study, Harlow Council
will need the Environment Agency’s agreement that it meets their requirements
and that they will sign along with the Water Authorities a Memorandum of
Understanding with the Duty to Co-operate Board, before submitting the LDP.
The appended programme assumes that Harlow Council will be able to meet the
involved parties by the end of June 2017 in order for this matter to gain traction
and proceed in a timely fashion, with the ability to submit proposals to the
Environment Agency by the end of November 2017.

4.3

Infrastructure Delivery Study and Viability Assessment
An Infrastructure Delivery Study, and associated Viability Assessment, has been
commissioned by Harlow Council, to provide evidence to identify all of the
infrastructure that is required to support the growth set out in the emerging LDP.
This study will review the requirements for new infrastructure such as utilities,
schools and other public services. The Council had originally understood that
Essex County Council would undertake this work but in autumn 2016 Essex County

www.stace.co.uk

Page 8

115

Council informed Harlow Council that it no longer had the capacity, so Harlow
Council had to initiate a procurement process in autumn 2016 which did not
attract any expressions of interest. The Council has now been able to appoint
consultants following the reissue of the tender and the successful bidder has now
commenced the process, with the overall timescale being six months for
completion of the review.
The Council is currently confident that there is sufficient capacity within the
existing natural gas network given studies undertaken for the Enterprise Zone and
other largescale projects in the area. There are however concerns regarding the
provision of electricity and the Infrastructure Viability Delivery Study is required
in order to define the level of risk involved and additional infrastructure
necessary to mitigate it.
Whilst sitting alongside the LDP, this is an integral document that will support the
identified infrastructure and also establish additional infrastructure requirements
not currently identified within the LDP and the findings will need to be
considered before the LDP is finalised.

4.4

Transport Modelling and identification of a strategy for Harlow
The key strategic points regarding transport modelling are as follows;


High level modelling completed



Transport Memorandum of Understanding agreed



Site-by-site modelling underway



Potential knock-on effect of Junction 7a, J7 & J8 capacities for housing
deliverability



The routes and number of access roads required to the strategic housing
sites to be agreed



Cross-district sustainable public transport route from north to south and
west to east network connections to be agreed

Harlow Council has received strategic, high level transport modelling data from
Essex County Council to feed into the LDP. The next key milestone is to define
and complete the site-by-site specific modelling and to identify the necessary
mitigation measures. Integral to this is ensuring the strategic housing site to the
north east of the town can be delivered including securing a secondary road and
access point which Essex County Council have identified as being required. The
delivery of this access is anticipated to be complex due to land ownership along
the route. Ultimately this could hinder progress and affect Harlow’s ability to
deliver housing in the short term as set out in the agreed MOU with the other
Districts. Over the coming months, the Council will continue to liaise closely with
ECC to define the necessity for the secondary access into site(s) and will then
review the implications for relocating housing demand and will raise at the Duty
www.stace.co.uk

Page 9

116

to Co-operate Board if a satisfactory resolution to deliver the short term housing
numbers on Harlow’s strategic housing site cannot be found. This also relates to
Section 4.1 of this report.
In addition to the secondary access to Harlow’s strategic housing site a northern
crossing has been identified as required from East Herts strategic housing site to
the north of Harlow and the location of this may impact on the site’s viability due
to the potential multiple land ownerships. A meeting was held on 25 May 2017 to
review the northern connection and the implications of the proposed route will
need to feed into the Infrastructure Delivery Study.
Regarding the proposed M11 junction 7A, Essex County Council have agreed the
scheme in principle and are now considering the resultant planning application. A
decision on the planning application is expected shortly. Liaison with Highways
England will be critical to delivery, regarding connectivity onto the motorway.

4.5

Retail Study
In February 2017 consultants completed the Harlow Retail and Leisure Needs
Study. Following the consideration of the report, subsequent clarifications were
sought by officers. The report has identified the need for an additional16,300m² 18,100m² net additional comparison goods floor space by 2026, increasing to
between 35,500m² and 40,200m² net* additional comparison goods floor space by
2033. In addition, between 2,500m² and 3,200m² net additional convenience
goods floor space by 2026, increasing to between 3,900m² and 5,500m² net*
additional convenience goods floor space by 2033. This is based on the housing
growth set out for the wider Harlow area and the focus of this will be within the
Town Centre, in accordance with the sequential approach as required by central
government guidance. The outcome of the study has led the Council to consider
the preparation of a separate Harlow Town Centre Area Action Plan which will
provide the detailed policy approach for the area, having regard to the strategic
policies of the over-arching LDP. This will provide a catalyst not only to provide
the additional retail floor space required but to achieve the regeneration of the
town centre. However, if this level of retail floor space cannot be identified
within the Harlow Town Centre then there may be implications for other land use
allocations identified within the LDP.
The Council must consider the competing land uses and take strategic decisions in
order to allow the LDP Plan to be finalised. This links to Sections 4.1 and 4.4 of
this report above and Section 4.6 below.

4.6

Employment Study
Following consideration by the Co-operation for Sustainable Development Board a
joint Employment Study has been commissioned to establish the quantum of
employment land required across the Functional Economic Market Area (FEMA).
Initial findings indicate a significant increase of employment land will be required
across the four districts in addition to that provided in existing employment areas

www.stace.co.uk

Page 10

117

and the Enterprise Zone. The next stage is for the Councils to meet with the
consultant to interrogate the conclusions so that a robust employment land
requirement can be included in the emerging Local Development Plans that are
being prepared in the area. With a limited amount of land, there will need to be
compromise and/or the involvement of adjoining Councils via the Duty to Cooperate. Following review, the Council must assess the decisions to be taken
jointly and agree a Memorandum of Understanding.
4.7

Health Facilities
At present the current Princess Alexandra Hospital site is allocated for housing,
with the potential to accommodate 650 new homes. This is one of the key sites
the Council identified to contribute toward meeting the housing target for the
District in order to deliver the number of homes within the LDP. The Council is
currently liaising with the NHS to confirm whether the hospital will be relocated
and if relocated whether that is within or beyond the LDP time period (i.e.
beyond 2031). If it is not relocated or relocated after the LDP time scale Harlow
Council will need to identify an alternate housing site. This exercise is also
dependent upon completion of site-by-site transport modelling as identified
within Section 4.4 and whether an out-of-town location is viable for the hospital.
Ultimately the Council has no control over the NHS’s property strategy or
timeline and as such is reliant upon a favourable decision from the NHS team, to
consider relocation within the LDP time period. The Council remains positive that
with an appropriate level of engagement with ministers and Whitehall
departments, the PAH site can be relied upon to deliver the allocated 650 homes
within the plan period.

4.8

Playing Pitch Study
The Harlow Playing Pitch Strategy study is nearing completion and it is
understood that there is limited potential for playing field land to be allocated
for housing land to help upgrade the key playing fields to increase their potential.
It had been hoped that there would have been some potential. The Council will
need to complete a review on how to progress the balancing of the need to
improve playing fields’ quality against the loss of a playing field to housing to
provide that funding and meeting the identified housing need in the district.

4.9

Gypsy & Traveller Policy
At present, a county wide assessment of Gypsy and Traveller needs is being
undertaken. Initial findings from this suggest that no additional provision will be
needed in Harlow. This should continue to be monitored against the other studies
that are being completed, to ensure the provision continues to be sufficient
within the district of Harlow. However, if the static Gypsy and Travellers have to
be provided for in the housing requirement figures then there could be
implications for the number of houses required.

www.stace.co.uk

Page 11

118

5.0

Local Development Plan Production Process

5.1

Test of Soundness
Prior to submitting the LDF to the Inspector, the Council must be satisfied that
the documentation is complete and has been undertaken using appropriate due
diligence and is based upon sound evidence. The need to achieve legal
compliance and for the LDP to stand up to Inspector’s examination underpins the
process of production of the LDP and has been taken into consideration
throughout LDP process by Harlow Council. A final check should be undertaken
prior to Harlow Council Cabinet approving the LDP and the subsequent submission
to the Planning Inspectorate/central government.

5.2

Internal Council Processes
Following completion of the LDP and confirming the document is in final draft
format, the Council must complete a number of processes and prepare supporting
documentation.
The Council has commissioned consultants to undertake a Strategic
Environmental Assessment (SEA), Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and Habitats
Regulation Assessment (HRA) a legal requirement before the LDP can be
approved. These assessments take a minimum of 6 weeks to complete. An
Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) and a Health Impact Assessment (HIA) are also
required which can be undertaken internally and this process can take four
weeks, reflected in the appended programme.
The Council will require Cabinet approval to the LDP in final draft format prior to
submitting to the Planning Inspectorate after the Reg 19 consultation has been
completed. In order for the technical works to be completed and their evidence
be reflected in the draft LDP the SA, SEA and HRA assessments must be
completed. It is unlikely that the LDP will be ready for a Cabinet meeting to
agree to Reg 19 consultation before November 2017. Reports will need to be fully
co-ordinated to ensure that information is consistent and the evidence base is
sound. There will also be a long timeline for administration processes (e.g.
referencing appendices, printing, upload to the website etc.) which must be
taken into consideration, with sufficient time and resource allocated. A four
week timeline has been identified as necessary to complete this and is reflected
in the appended programme.

www.stace.co.uk

Page 12

119

5.3

Regulation 19 Consultation Period

The Regulation 19 consultation period itself must run for a minimum of six weeks. This is
the final public consultation before the LDP is submitted to the Planning Inspectorate for
examination. At this stage the Council is seeking views on whether the plan is sound and
meets the tests set out in the National Planning Policy Framework.
The LDP for Harlow must be based on robust and up-to-date evidence, which meets legal
requirements and tests of soundness. Evidence is rigorously tested and challenged at an
independent examination. Many plans have had to be withdrawn for various reasons
before or after Examination, including failure to comply with national policy or statutory
requirements. The Council should not submit its LDP before it is confident that it will
succeed at examination.

6.0

Programme

A programme is included at Appendix 1, detailing the various activities and
interdependencies necessary for defining the LDP and completing it to final draft stage,
ready to go out for Regulation 19 consultation. The programme provides a visual
representation of the numerous inputs to finalise the LDP. The programme shows the
various activities being undertaken as bullet point milestones or in blue, with those out of
Harlow Council’s control shown in red. Separate work streams that are required and may
affect the finalisation of the LDP are shown in green. The programme acts as a
management tool for Harlow Council to track progress and identify the critical path
activities.

7.0

Risk Register

A risk register is included at Appendix 2, identifying the key risks that may impact upon
the production of the LDP and are being managed by Harlow Council officers. The risk
register identifies the current level of risk; the likelihood and impact, with the level of
risk identified as red, amber or green (RAG status) depending on severity. Mitigation
measures are also identified and each risk is owned by a member/members of the Harlow
Council team, to ensure risks are pro-actively reduced and/or mitigated as appropriate.
The risk register is a live document which allows Harlow Council to track the management
of identified risks that may have an impact, to be reviewed and updated throughout the
process of finalising the LDP.

www.stace.co.uk

Page 13

120

Harlow District Council
Local Development Plan
Programme Management Plan
ID

Task Name
1
2
3

Duration

Harlow Council Local Plan

Start

265 days? Fri 28/04/17

Strategic Input Process
Potable Water, Sewage & Drainage Requirements

Finish

Predecessors

Request Assistance from Central Gov't to Push Forward

1 wk

Tue 09/05/17 Mon 15/05/17

Co-ordination Meeting w/Water Co's & Environment Agency (TBC)

34 days?

Tue 16/05/17 Fri 30/06/17

6
7

Rye Meads Sewage Works Capacity Review
Water Co's Assessment of Requirements & Strategy to Deliver

39 days?
58 days?

Tue 09/05/17 Fri 30/06/17
Tue 09/05/17 Thu 27/07/17

8

Water Supply Model Received from Water Company

0 days

Fri 28/07/17

Fri 28/07/17

9

Procure Water Cycle Study

1 mon

Fri 28/07/17

Thu 24/08/17 8

10
11

Water Cycle Study Undertaken
Assess & Sign Off Water Cycle Study

3 mons
2 wks

Fri 25/08/17
Fri 17/11/17

Thu 16/11/17 9
Thu 30/11/17 10

12

Draft, share, discuss and agree Memorandum of Understanding with Partner Councils

4 wks

Fri 01/12/17

Thu 28/12/17 11

13

Submit to Environment Agency

0 days

Thu 28/12/17 Thu 28/12/17 12

104 days
2 mons

Mon 08/05/17 Fri 29/09/17
Mon 08/05/17 Fri 30/06/17

Transport Modelling
Complete Site Specific Modelling & Understand Mitigation Requirements

121

Mon 22/05/17 Fri 30/06/17

15SS

17

Review Access Issues to North Eastern Housing Site

6 wks

Mon 22/05/17 Fri 30/06/17

15SS

18

Review Impact on Housing Deliverability and Phasing
Liaise with Neighbouring Authorities

2.2 mons
1 mon

Mon 03/07/17 Thu 31/08/17 15,16
Fri 01/09/17 Thu 28/09/17 18,16

Final Agreement/MOU

0 days

Fri 29/09/17

Fri 29/09/17

246 days

Fri 28/04/17

Fri 06/04/18

0 mons
7 wks

Fri 28/04/17 Fri 28/04/17
Mon 01/05/17 Fri 16/06/17

22

Mon 19/06/17 Fri 28/07/17

23

22

Retail Study

23

Update Study Report
Review Report w/Consultants

24

Review Impact on Strategic Plan, Employment/Retail/Housing Deliverability and Locations 1.5 mons

25
26

Produce Separate Local Area Action Plan for Town Centre (Assume 12 months)
Infrastructure Viability Delivery Review

12 mons
137 days

Mon 08/05/17 Fri 06/04/18 22
Fri 28/04/17 Tue 07/11/17

0 days

Fri 28/04/17

Appoint Consultant

2 wks

Mon 01/05/17 Fri 12/05/17

29

Initial Meeting w/Consultant
Undertake Infrastructure Viability Review

0 days
6 mons

Wed 24/05/17 Wed 24/05/17 28
Wed 24/05/17 Tue 07/11/17 28,29

56 days

Fri 19/05/17

Fri 04/08/17
Fri 19/05/17

32

Study Completed

0 days

Fri 19/05/17

33

Review Study & Assess Implications
Council Decision Required - Housing Need/Sports Pitch Provision

3 wks
1 mon

Mon 22/05/17 Fri 09/06/17
Mon 12/06/17 Fri 07/07/17

32
33

Review Impact on Deliverability of Housing Schemes

1 mon

Mon 10/07/17 Fri 04/08/17

34

119 days

Mon 08/05/17 Thu 19/10/17

Employment Study
Review & Clarify Findings of Received Draft Study at Final Workshop
Study Completed (Finalised)

1.5 mons
0 days

Mon 08/05/17 Fri 16/06/17
Fri 30/06/17 Fri 30/06/17

39

Agree Memorandum of Understanding with Partner Councils

1 mon

Fri 30/06/17

Thu 27/07/17 37,38

Assess Impact on Housing Site Locations/Numbers at Duty to Co-Operate Board

3 mons

Fri 28/07/17

Thu 19/10/17 37,39

99 days?
39 days?

Tue 09/05/17 Fri 22/09/17
Tue 09/05/17 Fri 30/06/17

Request MP Support

2 wks

Mon 15/05/17 Fri 26/05/17

Assess Impact on Housing Site Locations/Numbers at Duty to Co-Operate Board

41
42
43
44
45
46

01 March
26/02

19/03

21 April
09/04
30/04

49
50

PAH (Future Hospital Site and Potential Housing Site)
NHS Review of Hospital Relocation Options

24/05
Separate Workstream but informs LDP

30/06

37

Out of HC Control

3 mons

Mon 03/07/17 Fri 22/09/17

Gypsies & Travellers Policy/Study
Review Requirements Against Related Studies

60 days
3 mons

Tue 09/05/17 Mon 31/07/17
Tue 09/05/17 Mon 31/07/17

42,43

Develop Management Policies

33 days?

Mon 08/05/17 Thu 22/06/17

27 days?
0 days

Mon 08/05/17 Tue 13/06/17
Thu 22/06/17 Thu 22/06/17 49

Production of Policy Documents
Approval of Policies at Cabinet

22/06

51
52
53
54

Strategic Policies

120 days? Tue 02/05/17 Mon 16/10/17

Production of Policy Documents
Approval of Policies at Cabinet

110 days? Tue 02/05/17 Mon 02/10/17
10 days
Tue 03/10/17 Mon 16/10/17 53

55
56
57

Local Plan Production

258 days? Tue 09/05/17 Thu 03/05/18

58

Review Local Plan against PAS Soundness Self-Assessment Checklist
Co-Ordination of Reports and Production of Local Plan to Final Draft status

124 days? Tue 09/05/17 Fri 27/10/17
55 days?
Mon 11/09/17 Fri 24/11/17

59

SA/SEA/EA/EqIA/HRA/HIA/AMR

4 wks

Mon 06/11/17 Fri 01/12/17

60

Cabinet & Council to Approve Local Plan status for Regulation 19 Consultation

4 wks

Fri 29/12/17

Thu 25/01/18 58,59,3,14,26,31,36,41,45,48,24

61
62

Design & Printing of Local Plan (+1 wk allowed for Xmas?), incl upload to website
Regulation 19 Consultation Period

4 wks
6 wks

Fri 26/01/18
Fri 23/02/18

Thu 22/02/18 59,60
Thu 05/04/18 61

63

Review Reg 19 Outcome; Cabinet & Council Final Approval

1 mon

Fri 06/04/18

Thu 03/05/18 62

64

Submit Plan to Inspector for Examination

0 days

Thu 03/05/18 Thu 03/05/18 63

Project: 170601 HDC Local Plan.m
Date: 16th May 2017

11 June
11/06

Separate Workstream but informs LDP

47
48

21/05

29/09

19/05

38
40

05/02

27

Playing Pitch Study

37

11 January
15/01

28/12

Fri 28/04/17

31

36

25/12

28/04

Complete Procurement Process

35

21 November
13/11
04/12

28/04

28

34

23/10

28/07

19

27

30

01 October
02/10

Out of HC Control

6 wks

21

11/09

Out of HC Control

5,6

Evaluate Northern Crossing Options

20

11 August
31/07
21/08

10/07

4

16

19

21 June
19/06

Thu 03/05/18

5

15

29/05

246 days? Fri 28/04/17 Fri 06/04/18
168 days? Tue 09/05/17 Thu 28/12/17

4

14

01 May
17/04
08/05

Fri 02/06/17

57SS,30SS

03/05

Task

Summary

External Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Summary Rollup

Finish-only

Split

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Manual Task

Manual Summary

Deadline

Milestone

External Tasks

Inactive Milestone

Duration-only

Start-only

Progress

Page 1

Project: Local Development Plan - Programme Management
Client:
Harlow Council
Date:
01 June 2017
Job No: 2018/0074
High Level Risk Register

High impact / probability
Medium impact / probability
Low impact / probability

REF.

RISK DESCRIPTION
Risk Items

1.00

CURRENT POSITION
PROB

COMMENTS / PROPOSED RESPONSE ACTIONS

1.01
Duty to Co-Operate Board (DTCB) member Councils unable to come to agreement
1.02

IMPACT

Duty to Co-operate Board (DTCB) has been setup; continue to liaise. Reports required for LDP
commissioned jointly by neighbouring Councils to aid co-ordinated approach. DFP to continue
positive relationships

DFP

Strategic, joined up approach being used by all members. Memorandum of Understanding('s) (MOU)
in place or being requested, relating to key strategic, cross-boundary matters. DFP to continue
positive relationships

DFP

HOUSING REQUIREMENTS
Insufficient utilities available to provide services for the locations and number of
homes to be provided within the LDP period

Infrastructure Viability Review (IVR) has been commissioned, will be supported by studies
commissioned as part of the IVR. Risk of insufficient gas and electricity provision. See 4.01 below

2.01

DC/PM

The number of houses that can be delivered on the strategic housing site to the east of
Harlow may be reduced by the road alignments of the proposed M11 J7a

Close liaison with Essex County Council who are producing traffic modelling and continue to press
the need to clarify the number of houses that can be built

2.02

DC/PM

122

Close liaison with Essex County Council who are producing traffic modelling and continue to press
the implications of not delivering the model's findings to meet the timescale required for the LDP

2.03

The traffic model is implying a requirement for a secondary access, which until it is
provided will affect the short term delivery of housing on the strategic housing site to
the east of Harlow

2.04

The traffic model has not yet been checked for all the housing sites so it is not yet
known if there may be other road infrastructure requirements for the other housing
sites, as yet unidentified

Close liaison with Essex County Council who are producing traffic modelling and continue to press
the implications of not delivering the model's findings to meet the timescale required for the LDP
to ensure the housing sites are deliverable.

Essex County Council are now responsible for delivering J7a

Close liaison with Essex County Council to ensure that J7a is delivered to enable the delivery of
the housing and employment requirements of the LDP. It is understood J7a will go to Planning
Committee in June 2017

2.05

2.06

2.07

2.08

2.09

OWNER(S)

DUTY TO CO-OPERATE / GARDEN TOWN
Harlow Local Development Plan (LDP) completed in isolation

2.00

OWNERS: Danny Purton (DFP), Paul MacBride (PM), Graeme Bloomer (GB), Dianne Cooper (DC)

Local Development Plan production highlights pressure of competing, multiple land
uses being required for sites within the Harlow Council boundary; affects strategic
vision and key decisions

DC/PM

DC/PM

GB

Review and understand findings of the various studies informing the LDP. Close liaison with DTCB
members and wider stakeholders; construct and put relevant MOUs in place.
Resolve location issues e.g. where to locate the hospital and employment land, at the earliest
opportunity

DC/PM

Harlow's required Affordable Housing numbers cannot be delivered within the Harlow
boundary

Identification of strategic housing sites completed; wary of land pressure implications and need to
identify issues at DTC Board

DC/GB

Developers come forward with schemes that do not align with strategic goals of the
Local Development Plan

Meetings with developers held via DTC Officers group, discussing the requirements and
expectations within the LDP they will have to meet. Garden Town agenda will also aid, by
identifying strategic goals for development and setting design guidance

GB/PM

Princess Alexandra Hospital (PAH) site currently earmarked for housing cannot be
delivered during the LDP period

Liaise with NHS England regarding property strategy for the hospital and healthcare delivery model

1 of 3

GB/PM

Project: Local Development Plan - Programme Management
Client:
Harlow Council
Date:
01 June 2017
Job No: 2018/0074
High Level Risk Register

High impact / probability
Medium impact / probability
Low impact / probability

REF.

2.10

RISK DESCRIPTION
Retention of current PAH site for health care use requires an alternative housing site
to be identified for approximately 600 homes

OWNERS: Danny Purton (DFP), Paul MacBride (PM), Graeme Bloomer (GB), Dianne Cooper (DC)

CURRENT POSITION

COMMENTS / PROPOSED RESPONSE ACTIONS

OWNER(S)

Recent publicity identified PAH replacement as high priority for central government. Monitor
against other influencing factors e.g. M11 J7a and transport modelling. Consider alternative site
options for the 600 homes and knock-on impact

DC/PM

WATER, SEWAGE & DRIANAGE

3.01

Environment Agency (EA) require further work to be undertaken by the water service
companies as they consider there is insufficient evidence detailing the potable water &
waste water infrastructure required to serve the future growth and its phasing

Thames Water to complete hydraulic modelling so that the Water Cycle Study can be
commissioned by Harlow Council; enabling the Environment Agency to enter into MOU with Thames
Water and Affinity Water to progress agreement of strategy and programme to support housing
growth. A letter has been sent to the Environment Agency from the DTCB seeking clarification of
EA requirements. DTCB to lobby central government for support

PM/GB

3.02

Additional capacity in potable water & drainage systems required to support the
quantum of development during the Local Development Plan delivery period

Additional infrastructure capacity required during timescale of the Local Development Plan is
identified. Responsibilities, timescale and costs for remedying to be defined and interrogated with
the water authorities so that they can progress strategic planning for future demand

DC/PM

3.03

Change in standards/regulations of treatment of waste water quality during Local
Development Plan period may affect infrastructure requirements at Rye Meads

Liaise with Thames Water and Environment Agency to develop a feasibility study showing the likely
investment required to meet any change in standards/regulations, that can be presented to the
Planning Inspectorate when the LDP is submitted

DC/PM

123

3.00

4.00

INFRASTRUCTURE VIABILITY REVIEW
Infrastructure Viability Review timescale for completion impacts upon LDP finalisation

4.01

4.02

Consultant now appointed to enable commencement of IVR. Inception meeting held 25 May.
LDP to be considered 'live' following finalisation in order to react to findings of IVR

Findings of Infrastructure Viability Review (IVR) impact upon the viability and
deliverability for individual sites within the Local Development Plan

DC/PM

Consultant to commence work; provide them with all available studies ASAP
DC/PM

5.00

TRANSPORT CONNECTIVITY

5.01

Finalisation/approvals of transport modelling cannot be achieved; see 2.03, 2.04, 2.05
above

Monitor ECC progress and liaise with them closely to reduce risk. Consider political lobbying to aid
progression

DFP

5.02

Problems with Routing of Sustainable Transportation Corridor affects connectivity to
Strategic Sites

Early identification of routing problems and alternative solutions will be important - Need for
individual Strategic site master plans to incorporate connectivity

GB

5.03

Problems with identification of viable Stort Valley second crossing route may affect
deliverability of development on Northern sites

Co-ordinate discussions between Strategic Stakeholders (ECC - HCC - A414 Member Group - DTCB Gilston Developers - NHS - Landowners) to achieve satisfactory outcome

GB/DFP

6.00

RETAIL STUDY

6.01

Risk that the Retail Study outcome, noting the need to retain current provision and
expand the amount of Retail land required, impacts upon sites currently earmarked for
alternate uses e.g. Housing

Review and manage results of study via the Town Centre Area Action Plan (TCAAP) which is being
rolled out (subject to Cabinet approval). Identify viable sites that meet the outcome requirements
of the study

DC/PM

Town Centre Area Action Plan production programme does not meet timescales for
Local Development Plan finalisation

TCAAP to be a separate work stream outside of Local Development Plan. Timeline to be managed
so that TCAAP can inform the Local Development Plan; manage process as 'live' following
submission of LDP to Planning Inspectorate

DC/PM

Interrogate Employment Study and liaise with DTCB regarding alternative sites in neighbouring
Districts

DC/PM

6.02

7.00

EMPLOYMENT STUDY

7.01

Harlow Council unable to meet the forecast demand for Employment Land within the
District as identified within the recent study

2 of 3

Project: Local Development Plan - Programme Management
Client:
Harlow Council
Date:
01 June 2017
Job No: 2018/0074
High Level Risk Register

High impact / probability
Medium impact / probability
Low impact / probability

REF.

RISK DESCRIPTION

8.00

HEALTH FACILITIES

8.01

Care delivery provisions may be impacted upon by relocation of the hospital and
programme of provision

OWNERS: Danny Purton (DFP), Paul MacBride (PM), Graeme Bloomer (GB), Dianne Cooper (DC)

CURRENT POSITION

COMMENTS / PROPOSED RESPONSE ACTIONS

Liaise with NHS England regarding property strategy for the hospital and healthcare delivery
model. Understand interim investment to maintain care provisions

DC/PM

GB/DFP

9.00

LIAISON WITH STAKEHOLDERS

9.01

Ability to engage and obtain support for the Local Development Plan with third party
stakeholders

Positive engagement being undertaken by Harlow District Council with third party stakeholders
who are key to the LDP being taken forward and who will be key to success once instigated

9.02

Unsuitable Reg 19 (LDP technical soundness) public consultation methods completed
result in poor response from the public or inapplicable comments

Clarity to be provided regarding Reg 19 consultation parameters and feedback expectations (i.e.
technical soundness of LDP); consider appropriate mediums through which to consult with the
public and explanatory notes

Members of the public feel disengaged with LDP process during Reg 19 public
consultation and inability to comment on proposals outside of technical soundness; risk
of negative publicity

Consider further Regulation 18 public consultation as part of LDP finalisation process; note
programme implications

9.03

10.00

PROGRAMME

10.01

Delays to the production of the Local Development Plan may impact upon the ability of
Harlow Council to meet its strategic goals and achieve critical milestones

GB/DC

DFP/GB

Agree a workable programme for delivery; track performance against the programme. Identify
critical path and remove obstacles

GB/DC

DC/PM

11.00

TEST OF SOUNDNESS

11.01

Risk the Local Development Plan will not pass the Test of Soundness, when submitted
to the Planning Inspectorate

Constantly monitoring production of LDP against Test of Soundness Self-Assessment Checklist prior
to submission when the LDP is ready. Liaison with DTCB members regarding their submissions and
feedback received

Completion of Sustainability Appraisal (SA) & Strategic Environmental Appraisal (SEA) &
Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA) & Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)

Prepare consultants for immediate commission of relevant work streams on completion of draft
LDP

11.02

OWNER(S)

124
3 of 3

DC

Appendix D
Project: Local Development Plan - Programme Management
Client:
Harlow Council
Date:
01 June 2017
Job No: 2018/0074
High Level Risk Register

High impact / probability
Medium impact / probability
Low impact / probability

REF.

RISK DESCRIPTION
Risk Items

1.00

OWNERS: Danny Purton (DFP), Paul MacBride (PM), Graeme Bloomer (GB), Dianne Cooper (DC)

CURRENT POSITION
PROB

OWNER(S)

IMPACT

DUTY TO CO-OPERATE / GARDEN TOWN

125

Harlow Local Development Plan (LDP) completed in isolation
1.01
Duty to Co-Operate Board (DTCB) member Councils unable to come to agreement
1.02

2.00

COMMENTS / PROPOSED RESPONSE ACTIONS

Duty to Co-operate Board (DTCB) has been setup; continue to liaise. Reports required for LDP
commissioned jointly by neighbouring Councils to aid co-ordinated approach. DFP to continue
positive relationships

DFP

Strategic, joined up approach being used by all members. Memorandum of Understanding('s) (MOU)
in place or being requested, relating to key strategic, cross-boundary matters. DFP to continue
positive relationships

DFP

HOUSING REQUIREMENTS
Insufficient utilities available to provide services for the locations and number of homes
to be provided within the LDP period

Infrastructure Viability Review (IVR) has been commissioned, will be supported by studies
commissioned as part of the IVR. Risk of insufficient gas and electricity provision. See 4.01 below

The number of houses that can be delivered on the strategic housing site to the east of
Harlow may be reduced by the road alignments of the proposed M11 J7a

Close liaison with Essex County Council who are producing traffic modelling and continue to press
the need to clarify the number of houses that can be built

2.03

The traffic model is implying a requirement for a secondary access, which until it is
provided will affect the short term delivery of housing on the strategic housing site to
the east of Harlow

Close liaison with Essex County Council who are producing traffic modelling and continue to press
the implications of not delivering the model's findings to meet the timescale required for the LDP

2.04

The traffic model has not yet been checked for all the housing sites so it is not yet
known if there may be other road infrastructure requirements for the other housing
sites, as yet unidentified

Close liaison with Essex County Council who are producing traffic modelling and continue to press
the implications of not delivering the model's findings to meet the timescale required for the LDP to
ensure the housing sites are deliverable.

DC/PM

Essex County Council are now responsible for delivering J7a

Close liaison with Essex County Council to ensure that J7a is delivered to enable the delivery of the
housing and employment requirements of the LDP. It is understood J7a will go to Planning
Committee in June 2017

GB

2.01

2.02

2.05

2.06

2.07

Local Development Plan production highlights pressure of competing, multiple land uses
being required for sites within the Harlow Council boundary; affects strategic vision and
key decisions

DC/PM

DC/PM

DC/PM

Review and understand findings of the various studies informing the LDP. Close liaison with DTCB
members and wider stakeholders; construct and put relevant MOUs in place.
Resolve location issues e.g. where to locate the hospital and employment land, at the earliest
opportunity

Harlow's required Affordable Housing numbers cannot be delivered within the Harlow
boundary

Identification of strategic housing sites completed; wary of land pressure implications and need to
identify issues at DTC Board

1 of 3

DC/PM

DC/GB

Project: Local Development Plan - Programme Management
Client:
Harlow Council
Date:
01 June 2017
Job No: 2018/0074
High Level Risk Register

High impact / probability
Medium impact / probability
Low impact / probability

REF.

2.08

2.09
2.10

RISK DESCRIPTION

OWNERS: Danny Purton (DFP), Paul MacBride (PM), Graeme Bloomer (GB), Dianne Cooper (DC)

CURRENT POSITION

COMMENTS / PROPOSED RESPONSE ACTIONS

OWNER(S)

Developers come forward with schemes that do not align with strategic goals of the
Local Development Plan

Meetings with developers held via DTC Officers group, discussing the requirements and expectations
within the LDP they will have to meet. Garden Town agenda will also aid, by identifying strategic
goals for development and setting design guidance

GB/PM

Princess Alexandra Hospital (PAH) site currently earmarked for housing cannot be
delivered during the LDP period

Liaise with NHS England regarding property strategy for the hospital and healthcare delivery model

Retention of current PAH site for health care use requires an alternative housing site to
be identified for approximately 600 homes

Recent publicity identified PAH replacement as high priority for central government. Monitor
against other influencing factors e.g. M11 J7a and transport modelling. Consider alternative site
options for the 600 homes and knock-on impact

DC/PM

GB/PM

3.00

WATER, SEWAGE & DRIANAGE

3.01

Environment Agency (EA) require further work to be undertaken by the water service
companies as they consider there is insufficient evidence detailing the potable water &
waste water infrastructure required to serve the future growth and its phasing

Thames Water to complete hydraulic modelling so that the Water Cycle Study can be commissioned
by Harlow Council; enabling the Environment Agency to enter into MOU with Thames Water and
Affinity Water to progress agreement of strategy and programme to support housing growth. A
letter has been sent to the Environment Agency from the DTCB seeking clarification of EA
requirements. DTCB to lobby central government for support

PM/GB

3.02

Additional capacity in potable water & drainage systems required to support the
quantum of development during the Local Development Plan delivery period

Additional infrastructure capacity required during timescale of the Local Development Plan is
identified. Responsibilities, timescale and costs for remedying to be defined and interrogated with
the water authorities so that they can progress strategic planning for future demand

DC/PM

3.03

Change in standards/regulations of treatment of waste water quality during Local
Development Plan period may affect infrastructure requirements at Rye Meads

Liaise with Thames Water and Environment Agency to develop a feasibility study showing the likely
investment required to meet any change in standards/regulations, that can be presented to the
Planning Inspectorate when the LDP is submitted

DC/PM

126

4.00

INFRASTRUCTURE VIABILITY REVIEW
Infrastructure Viability Review timescale for completion impacts upon LDP finalisation

Consultant now appointed to enable commencement of IVR. Inception meeting held 25 May.

4.01

4.02

LDP to be considered 'live' following finalisation in order to react to findings of IVR
Findings of Infrastructure Viability Review (IVR) impact upon the viability and
deliverability for individual sites within the Local Development Plan

Consultant to commence work; provide them with all available studies ASAP

DC/PM

DC/PM

5.00

TRANSPORT CONNECTIVITY

5.01

Finalisation/approvals of transport modelling cannot be achieved; see 2.03, 2.04, 2.05
above

Monitor ECC progress and liaise with them closely to reduce risk. Consider political lobbying to aid
progression

DFP

5.02

Problems with Routing of Sustainable Transportation Corridor affects connectivity to
Strategic Sites

Early identification of routing problems and alternative solutions will be important - Need for
individual Strategic site master plans to incorporate connectivity

GB

5.03

Problems with identification of viable Stort Valley second crossing route may affect
deliverability of development on Northern sites

Co-ordinate discussions between Strategic Stakeholders (ECC - HCC - A414 Member Group - DTCB Gilston Developers - NHS - Landowners) to achieve satisfactory outcome

2 of 3

GB/DFP

Project: Local Development Plan - Programme Management
Client:
Harlow Council
Date:
01 June 2017
Job No: 2018/0074
High Level Risk Register

High impact / probability
Medium impact / probability
Low impact / probability

REF.

RISK DESCRIPTION

OWNERS: Danny Purton (DFP), Paul MacBride (PM), Graeme Bloomer (GB), Dianne Cooper (DC)

CURRENT POSITION

COMMENTS / PROPOSED RESPONSE ACTIONS

OWNER(S)

RETAIL STUDY

6.01

Risk that the Retail Study outcome, noting the need to retain current provision and
expand the amount of Retail land required, impacts upon sites currently earmarked for
alternate uses e.g. Housing

Review and manage results of study via the Town Centre Area Action Plan (TCAAP) which is being
rolled out (subject to Cabinet approval). Identify viable sites that meet the outcome requirements
of the study

DC/PM

Town Centre Area Action Plan production programme does not meet timescales for
Local Development Plan finalisation

TCAAP to be a separate work stream outside of Local Development Plan. Timeline to be managed so
that TCAAP can inform the Local Development Plan; manage process as 'live' following submission of
LDP to Planning Inspectorate

DC/PM

Interrogate Employment Study and liaise with DTCB regarding alternative sites in neighbouring
Districts

DC/PM

Liaise with NHS England regarding property strategy for the hospital and healthcare delivery model.
Understand interim investment to maintain care provisions

DC/PM

127

6.00

6.02

7.00

EMPLOYMENT STUDY

7.01

Harlow Council unable to meet the forecast demand for Employment Land within the
District as identified within the recent study

8.00

HEALTH FACILITIES

8.01

Care delivery provisions may be impacted upon by relocation of the hospital and
programme of provision

9.00

LIAISON WITH STAKEHOLDERS

9.01

Ability to engage and obtain support for the Local Development Plan with third party
stakeholders

Positive engagement being undertaken by Harlow District Council with third party stakeholders who
are key to the LDP being taken forward and who will be key to success once instigated

3 of 3

GB/DFP

ID

Task Name
1
2
3

Duration

Harlow Council Local Plan

Start

265 days? Fri 28/04/17

Strategic Input Process
Potable Water, Sewage & Drainage Requirements

Finish

Predecessors

Request Assistance from Central Gov't to Push Forward

1 wk

Tue 09/05/17 Mon 15/05/17

Co-ordination Meeting w/Water Co's & Environment Agency (TBC)

34 days?

Tue 16/05/17 Fri 30/06/17

6
7

Rye Meads Sewage Works Capacity Review
Water Co's Assessment of Requirements & Strategy to Deliver

39 days?
58 days?

Tue 09/05/17 Fri 30/06/17
Tue 09/05/17 Thu 27/07/17

8

Water Supply Model Received from Water Company

0 days

Fri 28/07/17

Fri 28/07/17

9

Procure Water Cycle Study

1 mon

Fri 28/07/17

Thu 24/08/17 8

10
11

Water Cycle Study Undertaken
Assess & Sign Off Water Cycle Study

3 mons
2 wks

Fri 25/08/17
Fri 17/11/17

Thu 16/11/17 9
Thu 30/11/17 10

12

Draft, share, discuss and agree Memorandum of Understanding with Partner Councils

4 wks

Fri 01/12/17

Thu 28/12/17 11

13

Submit to Environment Agency

0 days

Thu 28/12/17 Thu 28/12/17 12

104 days
2 mons

Mon 08/05/17 Fri 29/09/17
Mon 08/05/17 Fri 30/06/17

Transport Modelling
Complete Site Specific Modelling & Understand Mitigation Requirements

Mon 22/05/17 Fri 30/06/17

15SS

17

Review Access Issues to North Eastern Housing Site

6 wks

Mon 22/05/17 Fri 30/06/17

15SS

18

Review Impact on Housing Deliverability and Phasing
Liaise with Neighbouring Authorities

2.2 mons
1 mon

Mon 03/07/17 Thu 31/08/17 15,16
Fri 01/09/17 Thu 28/09/17 18,16

Final Agreement/MOU

0 days

Fri 29/09/17

Fri 29/09/17

246 days

Fri 28/04/17

Fri 06/04/18

0 mons
7 wks

Fri 28/04/17 Fri 28/04/17
Mon 01/05/17 Fri 16/06/17

22

Mon 19/06/17 Fri 28/07/17

23

22

Retail Study

23

Update Study Report
Review Report w/Consultants

24

Review Impact on Strategic Plan, Employment/Retail/Housing Deliverability and Locations 1.5 mons

25
26

Produce Separate Local Area Action Plan for Town Centre (Assume 12 months)
Infrastructure Viability Delivery Review

12 mons
137 days

Mon 08/05/17 Fri 06/04/18 22
Fri 28/04/17 Tue 07/11/17

0 days

Fri 28/04/17

Appoint Consultant

2 wks

Mon 01/05/17 Fri 12/05/17

29

Initial Meeting w/Consultant
Undertake Infrastructure Viability Review

0 days
6 mons

Wed 24/05/17 Wed 24/05/17 28
Wed 24/05/17 Tue 07/11/17 28,29

56 days

Fri 19/05/17

Fri 04/08/17
Fri 19/05/17

32

Study Completed

0 days

Fri 19/05/17

33

Review Study & Assess Implications
Council Decision Required - Housing Need/Sports Pitch Provision

3 wks
1 mon

Mon 22/05/17 Fri 09/06/17
Mon 12/06/17 Fri 07/07/17

32
33

Review Impact on Deliverability of Housing Schemes

1 mon

Mon 10/07/17 Fri 04/08/17

34

119 days

Mon 08/05/17 Thu 19/10/17

Employment Study
Review & Clarify Findings of Received Draft Study at Final Workshop
Study Completed (Finalised)

1.5 mons
0 days

Mon 08/05/17 Fri 16/06/17
Fri 30/06/17 Fri 30/06/17

39

Agree Memorandum of Understanding with Partner Councils

1 mon

Fri 30/06/17

Thu 27/07/17 37,38

Assess Impact on Housing Site Locations/Numbers at Duty to Co-Operate Board

3 mons

Fri 28/07/17

Thu 19/10/17 37,39

99 days?
39 days?

Tue 09/05/17 Fri 22/09/17
Tue 09/05/17 Fri 30/06/17

Request MP Support

2 wks

Mon 15/05/17 Fri 26/05/17

Assess Impact on Housing Site Locations/Numbers at Duty to Co-Operate Board

41
42
43
44

128

45
46

01 March
26/02

19/03

21 April
09/04
30/04

49
50

PAH (Future Hospital Site and Potential Housing Site)
NHS Review of Hospital Relocation Options

24/05
Separate Workstream but informs LDP

30/06

37

Out of HC Control

3 mons

Mon 03/07/17 Fri 22/09/17

Gypsies & Travellers Policy/Study
Review Requirements Against Related Studies

60 days
3 mons

Tue 09/05/17 Mon 31/07/17
Tue 09/05/17 Mon 31/07/17

42,43

Develop Management Policies

33 days?

Mon 08/05/17 Thu 22/06/17

27 days?
0 days

Mon 08/05/17 Tue 13/06/17
Thu 22/06/17 Thu 22/06/17 49

Production of Policy Documents
Approval of Policies at Cabinet

22/06

51
52
53
54

Strategic Policies

120 days? Tue 02/05/17 Mon 16/10/17

Production of Policy Documents
Approval of Policies at Cabinet

110 days? Tue 02/05/17 Mon 02/10/17
10 days
Tue 03/10/17 Mon 16/10/17 53

55
56
57

Local Plan Production

258 days? Tue 09/05/17 Thu 03/05/18

58

Review Local Plan against PAS Soundness Self-Assessment Checklist
Co-Ordination of Reports and Production of Local Plan to Final Draft status

124 days? Tue 09/05/17 Fri 27/10/17
55 days?
Mon 11/09/17 Fri 24/11/17

59

SA/SEA/EA/EqIA/HRA/HIA/AMR

4 wks

Mon 06/11/17 Fri 01/12/17

60

Cabinet & Council to Approve Local Plan status for Regulation 19 Consultation

4 wks

Fri 29/12/17

Thu 25/01/18 58,59,3,14,26,31,36,41,45,48,24

61
62

Design & Printing of Local Plan (+1 wk allowed for Xmas?), incl upload to website
Regulation 19 Consultation Period

4 wks
6 wks

Fri 26/01/18
Fri 23/02/18

Thu 22/02/18 59,60
Thu 05/04/18 61

63

Review Reg 19 Outcome; Cabinet & Council Final Approval

1 mon

Fri 06/04/18

Thu 03/05/18 62

64

Submit Plan to Inspector for Examination

0 days

Thu 03/05/18 Thu 03/05/18 63

Project: 170601 HDC Local Plan.m
Date: 16th May 2017

11 June
11/06

Separate Workstream but informs LDP

47
48

21/05

29/09

19/05

38
40

05/02

27

Playing Pitch Study

37

11 January
15/01

28/12

Fri 28/04/17

31

36

25/12

28/04

Complete Procurement Process

35

21 November
13/11
04/12

28/04

28

34

23/10

28/07

19

27

30

01 October
02/10

Out of HC Control

6 wks

21

11/09

Out of HC Control

5,6

Evaluate Northern Crossing Options

20

11 August
31/07
21/08

10/07

4

16

19

21 June
19/06

Thu 03/05/18

5

15

29/05

246 days? Fri 28/04/17 Fri 06/04/18
168 days? Tue 09/05/17 Thu 28/12/17

4

14

01 May
17/04
08/05

Fri 02/06/17

57SS,30SS

03/05

Task

Summary

External Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Summary Rollup

Finish-only

Split

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Manual Task

Manual Summary

Deadline

Milestone

External Tasks

Inactive Milestone

Duration-only

Start-only

Progress

Page 1

Appendix E

Harlow District Council
Local Development Plan
Programme Management Plan

Agenda Item 14

REPORT TO:

CABINET

DATE:

22 JUNE 2017

TITLE:

ACQUISITION OF LAND IN LONDON ROAD

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

COUNCILLOR TONY DURCAN, PORTFOLIO
HOLDER FOR REGENERATION AND
ENTERPRISE

LEAD OFFICER:

MALCOLM MORLEY, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(01279) 446004

CONTRIBUTING OFFICER:

ANDREW BRAMIDGE, PROJECT DIRECTOR
HARLOW ENTERPRISE ZONE(01279) 446410
BRIAN KEANE, HEAD OF GOVERNANCE
(01279) 446037

This is a Key Decision
It is on the Forward Plan as Decision number I007413
This decision is not subject to Call-in procedures for the following reasons:
The decision stands as a recommendation to Full Council.
This decision will affect Old Harlow Ward.
RECOMMENDED that Cabinet recommends to Full Council that:
Authority is delegated to the Head of Governance, in consultation with the
Portfolio Holders for Regeneration & Enterprise and Finance, to commence
Compulsory Purchase Order proceedings at the appropriate time to acquire the
land at London Road North currently owned by Powerrapid Ltd.
REASON FOR DECISION
As work commences on the London Road North Science Park development this
year, it is necessary to provide certainty to the development by acquiring the final
parcel of land at this site. Twenty five acres of the 37 acre site were acquired by
Harlow Council in 2015 with an option to acquire a further two acres from
Newhall Projects. The remaining 10 acres is owned by Powerrapid Ltd. and this
land will be required to maximise the opportunities from the development.
Cabinet has already given authority to acquire all necessary land to progress the
development of the Enterprise Zone. However, specific authority will be required
to acquire land via Compulsory Purchase Order should that be necessary.

129

BACKGROUND
1. Harlow was granted Enterprise Zone (EZ) status in the autumn of 2011 as one of
24 sites across England identified as having significant potential for job creation.
The EZ status enables the Council to offer a simplified planning regime, business
rates discounts and access to superfast broadband as incentives for companies
to locate here. In the longer term, it is expected that the EZ in Harlow could
create up to 5,000 new jobs and be a significant catalyst in the regeneration of
the Town.
2. The EZ is split across three sites. At Templefields, a long term re-development of
ageing industrial premises will take place. At London Road, the site is split into
the former Nortel Campus at London Road South being developed by Goldacre
Ventures and the land at London Road North being developed into a Science
Park by the Council. The Council’s vision for the site is to create a new high
quality Science Park for the town, focused on Life Sciences, Advanced
Manufacturing and ICT businesses.
3. At the point at which the EZ status was granted by Government and the Local
Development Order implemented by the Council, the London Road North site
was in three separate ownerships. Newhall Projects owned 20 acres, Graspace
Ltd owned seven acres and Powerrapid Ltd owned 10 acres acres (see Appendix
A).
4. In early 2015 the Council acquired 25 acres of land at this site, from Newhall and
Graspace, with an option to acquire a further two acres at the north-west corner
of the site from Newhall Projects. The land was purchased using a non-ringfenced grant from the Department for Communities and Local Government
(DCLG). The current land ownership pattern is shown at Appendix B. Land A is a
water pumping station that sits outside of the development site; Land B is the
remaining two acres owned by Newhall; Land C is that owned by Powerrapid Ltd.
5. Vinci UK Developments has been appointed by the Council to deliver the
Science Park on its 25 acre landholding. However, the OJEU procurement
exercise was conducted on the basis of being able to extend the development
across the whole site as and when the Council was able to acquire the remaining
parcels of land. Accordingly, Vinci has produced a Masterplan for the entire site
(see Appendix C), although procurement was on the basis of being able to
deliver a viable scheme on the land currently owned by the Council.
6. The next stage of the development is to deliver infrastructure to the site – new
access roads plus electricity, gas, water and broadband supplies. The tender
process to appoint a developer specified that the Council would take
responsibility for delivering the estate roads and off site infrastructure. The

130

connection of individual plots would be the responsibility of the appointed
developer.
7. The first estate road, a link road connecting the A414 with London Road has now
been completed with delivery through Essex County Council. This has been
funded by Newhall Projects through a Section 106 Agreement and is forward
funded by Essex County Council and the South East Local Enterprise
Partnership (SELEP).
8. The remaining infrastructure is to be funded by the Council and this work is
currently out to tender with a closing date of 16 June 2017. The decision on the
appointment of the contractor will be a decision for Cabinet in July 2017. This
tender has been issued on the basis of the contractor quoting for delivery on the
25 acres of existing Council ownership, an additional price for delivery on the
Powerrapid land at some point in the future but also an indication of the savings
that could be made if the Council was able to acquire the land and both phases
could be delivered as part of a single contract.
9. The Council therefore needs to move forward with the acquisition of the
remaining parcels of land on the London Road North site. The additional land
could deliver an extra 200,000 square feet of Science Park development and
approximately an additional 1,300 jobs.
ADDITIONAL LAND ACQUISITIONS
Newhall
10. The Council has an option to acquire the remaining two acres from Newhall
Projects at the end of 2020 if Newhall Projects has not brought forward a
development in keeping with objectives of the London Road North LDO.
However, the Council has commenced discussions with the landowner with a
view to bringing this acquisition forward. Newhall Projects has now instructed
agents to produce a valuation of the site following receipt of which they will
commence negotiations with the Council.
In July 2014 Cabinet agreed to authorise all necessary land acquisitions to
deliver the Enterprise Zone with the final decision delegated to the Chief
Executive in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration & Enterprise.
If an acceptable purchase price can be agreed with Newhall Projects, then this
process will be followed.
Powerrapid
11. The Powerrapid site is complicated in that a restrictive covenant exists, which
makes valuation complex and short term development problematic. The site was
formerly the playing fields of Nortel Telecommunications and in 1995 the

131

Commission for New Towns placed a covenant on the site to restrict the site to
that usage for a forty year period unless a payment is made to the Commission
(or now its successor body, the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) upon
the commencement of development for an alternative use. This payment equated
to 100 percent of the uplift in value for the first 20 years, until 2015, with this
figure then reducing by 5 percent per annum until 2035. Accordingly, the
landowner has not brought any development plans forward since it has not been
financially advantageous to do so.
12. With the adoption of the LDO and the appointment of a development partner by
the Council, the landowner has seen an opportunity to realise some value from
the land. Accordingly, Powerrapid has spent the last two years seeking to reach
an agreement with the HCA on a financial settlement to release the covenant and
to enable the site to be sold for development. However, after much legal and
valuation advice, and negotiation, the two sides have not been able to reach a
settlement.
13. Alongside this, the Council has, separately, engaged in negotiation with the
landowner over the last year seeking to reach agreement on a price to acquire
the site. Regrettably, this has not proved to be possible.
14. The Council is interested in acquiring the site for a number of reasons: a) It will provide certainty for the long term development of the Science Park
and enable Vinci to market the site with confidence that the full scheme
can be delivered.
b) It can potentially deliver savings on the delivery of the site infrastructure if
works can be commissioned across both sites as part of the same
contract.
c) Inevitably the value of the site will rise over the next year and beyond as
the Council brings services to the site and additional road access. This
combined with the development of the first buildings on the Science Park
site is likely to lead to a significantly higher purchase price in the future. It
will therefore likely to be substantially cheaper for the Council to acquire
the site in the short term.
15. There remains the issue of the covenant and the liability for payments to the HCA
on the commencement of development. If the Council acquires the land it is likely
to be several years before development starts on the site in question. The site is
being developed from the north to the south. With the value of the payment
reducing by 5 percent per year, by the time that the covenant payment is
triggered it will be significantly less than now.

132

16. The Council will continue to negotiate with the landowner to seek to reach
agreement. However, if this negotiation fails it may be necessary to acquire the
land through a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO). It is hoped that having the
authority to proceed to CPO will illustrate the Council’s intent to proceed with
acquisition.
17. The Council has taken legal advice from external lawyers, Sharpe Pritchard, on
this matter and has been assured that there are strong grounds for proceeding
via a CPO. Valuation advice on the likely costs of acquisition, fees and
compensation has been received from Savills. Additionally, the Council has
secured barristers advice from Landmark Chambers in relation to the HCA
covenant and the obligations contained therein. It is now felt that for the reasons
outlined in paragraph 14, and with the receipt of the necessary legal and
valuation advice, the Council is now in a position to utilise its CPO powers to
acquire the Powerrapid land.
Funding
18. The purchase of the land will be funded by borrowing to be repaid entirely from
the business rates generated from the Enterprise Zone. When the Enterprise
Zone was announced for Harlow, the Government also determined that that the
uplift in business rates created by the Enterprise Zone would be allocated to the
South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP). This has been estimated to
amount to £140 million over a 25 year period. However, in June 2016, the
Council secured a commitment from SELEP that the Council could retain the first
£72 million of business rates from the sites for the purpose of investing in the
development of the Enterprise Zone and Harlow. At SELEP’s Accountability
Board meeting on 26 May 2017 SELEP agreed to authorise use of the business
rate uplift by the Council for the delivery of infrastructure on the site, the
development of a speculative office building and the purchase of the two
remaining pieces of land on the site.
Conclusion
19. The acquisition of the Powerrapid land is important to realise the potential of the
EZ. In order to ensure that the development of this land is possible authority to
initiate compulsory purchase by a CPO is necessary. It is hoped that the
granting of this authority will act as a catalyst to reaching a voluntary agreement
with the land owner. If this is not possible, however, it is vital that acquisition can
be achieved in a timely way to ensure that the progress with the EZ is not held up
and that confidence in its delivery is not negatively affected.
IMPLICATIONS
Place
As contained within the report and appendices.

133

Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place
Finance (Includes ICT)
The acquisition of the land will be funded through the retained business rates
growth achieved from the development of the Enterprise Zone and as agreed with
SELEP.
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance
Housing
None specific.
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing
Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion)
The promotion of economic, social and environmental wellbeing is a core priority for
the Council. As previously highlighted Harlow Enterprise Zone plays a key role in
helping the Council to fulfil this role by attracting new business to the area and
encouraging business start-ups, with the potential to create 5000 new jobs. The
acquisition of additional land at London road will further support the objectives of
the Enterprise Zone and will increase investment and employment opportunities in
the town and will contribute towards social inclusion.
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing
Governance (includes HR)
The power conferred on the Council by section 226(1)(a) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 enables the Council to exercise its power of compulsory
acquisition if it thinks that the acquisition of the land will facilitate the carrying out of
the development of the Enterprise Zone development and the Council also thinks
that this development is likely to contribute to the promotion or improvement of the
economic, social and environmental well-being of its area.
External legal advisors are of the opinion that there is a strong likelihood that a
Compulsory Purchase Order would be confirmed.
Specialist advice from Counsel has confirmed that the obligations described in
paragraph 11 would probably be discharged should the Council CPO the land.
Compensation (where payable) will be subject to specialist valuation taking into
account all existing rights over the land, and statutory heads of loss applicable at
that time.
The securing of legal support and advice to seek and secure CPO will require a
separate procurement process. Fees for this specialist advice is likely to exceed
£50,000.
Author: Brian Keane, Head of Governance
Appendices

134

Appendix A – Former Land Ownership
Appendix B – Current Land Ownership
Appendix C – Master Plan
Background Papers
None.
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used
CPO – Compulsory Purchase Order
EZ – Enterprise Zone
DCLG – Department for Communities and Local Government
HCA – Homes and Communities Agency
LDO – Local Development Order
OJEU – Official Journal of the European Union
SELEP – South East Local Enterprise Partnership

135

Appendix A

3.1 acres

10 acres

7 acres

136

Appendix B

105

116
100

Legend

96

117
120

30

67.4m
142

118

138

119

121
29

122

123

125

135

155

134

132

147

143

145

146

148
153

151

149

128

126

130
7

154

152

168

HDC Ownership

Allotment Gardens

173

150

17

Name

144

136
131

129

127

25

133

137

104

Felmongers

London
North
Development
LondonRoad
Road
North

101

Shelter

3
16

El
Sub Sta
9

Land A

23
6

162

17

186

185
182

Land B

191
233

23
7

LONDON ROAD

A 414

229

Land C

195
CR

224

244

Land A

219

245

218

250

Mark Hall Sports Ground

251

Land B
MILES

4 to

R
TONE

10

3
13

1

Maypole Sports Club

1 to

6

10

74.1m

16

9

8
7

Tennis

9 to

14

Courts

2

1

10

Tennis Courts
4

2

1

3

Gravelpit Spring

2

Ladyshot Playing Field
Club

MEWS

4

1

ALLIS

5

6 to

13

21

19

Tennis Courts
9

Range

18

16

SQUARE STREET

1

5

El

1

2

10

8

Bowling Green

Sub

Sta

BASIL
MEWS

1

2

4

1 to
1

12

1

3

P
SO
ER
RE
UA
SQ

4

1

6

A 414

Markhall Wood
to
13

Sports Ground
LOND
ON RO
AD

24

3

Land C

to

33

16

25

CR

FLINT LAN
E

6

15

1 to

1 to 8

8

20

Club

15

9

10

14

7

30

10

12

2

13

MOSS LAN
E
37
9

14

7

12

1

16

15

10

2

Laboratories

18

11

Tennis Courts

10
4 to

N

21 to 28

29 to 34

Def

ED & Ward Bdy
Def

W

E

FS
Pond

Maypole Cottage

S

Maple

Fax. 01279446639
MS

London Road North
Local Development
Harlow
Essex

.5
76

22nd July 2016
OS
GIM4710-017
1:2000 at A3

m

74.7m

ON
ND
LO

RO

AD
ED

&

ard
W

y
Bd

Path (um)

Date:
Drawn By:
Drawing No:
Scale:

35

38

Cottage

Tel. 01279446540

1

9

Path (um)

Property and Facilities Management
Civic Centre
The Water Gardens
Harlow
Essex CM20 1WG

CR

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Harlow District Council Licence No.100019627 (2012)

137

Lan
Church

gley

Commun

Pond

Primary

ity

School

Appendix C

Figured dimensions only are to be taken from
this drawing. All dimensions are to be checked
on site before any work is put in hand.

Layout Sign Off
Client Approved :

Date :

210800N
547350E

547300E

547250E

547200E

547150E

547100E

547050E

547000E

546950E

546850E

546900E

210800N

210750N

210750N

210700N

210700N

Plot C Area:
1.22Ha
3.01 Acres

Plot A Area:
0.41Ha
1.02 Acres

210650N

210650N

Plot B Area:
0.46Ha
1.14 Acres

PLOT B

PLOT C

210600N

210600N

PLOT T

PLOT X
PLOT E

Plot T Area:
0.75Ha
1.85Acres

Plot X Area:
0.46Ha
1.13Acres

PLOT D

210550N

210550N

PLOT W
Plot E Area:
0.52Ha
1.28 Acres

210500N

Plot D Area:
0.43Ha
1.05 Acres

PLOT Y

210500N

PLOT V1
+ V2
Plot F Area:
0.28Ha
0.70 Acres

Plot Y Area:
0.46Ha
1.13Acres

PLOT F

Plot G Area:
0.48Ha
1.19Acres

210450N

210450N

PLOT G

PLOT S

PLOT R1

PLOT R6

210400N

210400N

Plot H Area:
1.10Ha
2.71 Acres

PLOT R2

Plot R Area:
1.24Ha
3.06Acres

PLOT H
PLOT R5
PLOT R4
PLOT R3
210350N

210350N

PLOT Q

Plot I Area:
0.25Ha
0.62 Acres

210300N

Plot J Area:
0.18Ha
0.45Acres

210300N

PLOT J
PLOT I

S

Plot L Area:
0.23Ha
0.57Acres

P

Plot Q Area:
1.11Ha
2.74Acres
I N

E
R

PLOT K

O

A

D

210250N

210250N

PLOT L

PLOT M

Plot K Area:
0.17Ha
0.42Acres

Plot M Area:
0.27Ha
0.66Acres

PLOT N

PLOT P

Plot N Area:
0.33Ha
0.80Acres
210200N

210200N

Plot P Area:
0.27Ha
0.67Acres
Plot Z Area:
0.22Ha
0.54Acres

DC-3

PLOT Z

FFL 76.800

210150N

210150N

PLOT O

Plot O Area:
0.53Ha
1.3Acres

210100N

210100N

DC-2
FFL 76.700

DC-4
FFL 76.400

547350E

547300E

547250E

547200E

547150E

547100E

547050E

547000E

546950E

546900E

546850E

210050N

T1

Issue for
Tender

21 Apr
2017

DS

BC

2

2nd Issue

15 Feb
2017

DS

BC

1

First Issue

1 Nov 2016

MG

BC

Rev

Description

Date

Drawn

Checked

security

210050N

DC-1
FFL 75.150

St. Catherine's Court
46-48 Portsmouth Road
Guildford
GU2 4DU
T +44 (0)1438 568686
W www.scottbrownrigg.com

Client's name

Vinci Developments UK Ltd
Harlow District Council
Job Title

Harlow Science Park

Drawing Title

Masterplan Layout

Scale

1:1000 @ A0 Oversize
Job No.

Drawing No.

16444

A-TP-(00)-001

Status

Rev.

TENDER

T1

138

Agenda Item 16a

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY COMMITTEE
HELD ON
2 March 2017

2.00 - 3.10 pm

PRESENT
Committee Members
Donna Beechener
Karl Carr
Jackie Davies
Sandra Farrington
Richard Greaves
Brian Keane (Chair)
Wendy Makepeace
Daniel Maylin
Kim Middleditch
Jane Millar
Stuart Moseley
Angela Street
Officers
Lisa Thornett, Customer Services Officer
144.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from John Harty who sent Rory Davies to
represent him.

145.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING HELD
AGREED that the minutes of the meeting held 13 December 2016 are
agreed as a correct record.

146.

MATTERS ARISING - ACTIONS COMPLETED
Jackie Davies, advised the committee that the Health and Safety quarterly
bulletin will commence this quarter and will appear in WIS at the beginning
of April.

147.

HEALTH AND SAFETY UPDATE

a)

Accident Statistics/ Aggressive Incidents
The Committee received a report on health and safety statistics for the
period October to December 2016. The statistics identified no RIDDOR,
three minor incidents relating to Members of the public and 2 minor
incidents relating to Staff.

139

b)

Staff Safety Register (SSR)
Jackie Davies advised that work to produce a Council wide, generic letter
should be finalised shortly with a view for the letters to be used
corporately.
The Playhouse were advised should they have any incidents to report it.
They should be sent through to Kim Middleditch or Sheila Underdown who
will log the incidents for them.

c)

Lone Working - Personal Safety
Jackie Davies advised that the Council some years ago trialled a safety
device, which was similar to a key fob which Officers could place on the
back of their ID badges.
Jackie is attending a seminar and will review lone working practises and
current safety devices and will report back to the committee. The council
would then need to decide who should have a device, for what reasons
and the cost involved.
Stuart Mosely advised that there is a risk budget set aside that could be
used.
Sandra Farringdon enquired if there was an app that could be downloaded
as most Officers would almost always carry their phones with them.

d)

First Aid
Jane Millar advised the group that there are currently 37 paid First Aiders,
within that amount there are 16 at the Civic Centre.
10 First aiders were not confident at defibrillation and therefore the Health
and Safety Team arranged a one off course. Future First Aid courses will
include defibrillation.

e)

Health Surveillance
Currently there are 111 staff receiving Health Surveillance. Emails have
been sent to all Third Tier Managers to ensure that all staff are captured.

f)

Fire Safety
Jackie Davies provided the Committee with a report that answered all
questions raised from the previous meeting.

g)

Volunteer Registration Form
Following concerns raised at the Nature Reserve, an existing new form
has been redesigned for all volunteers to use with regards to personal

140

medical information. The Committee were shown an example of this
document.
In addition Jackie Davies and HR are working together to update the
volunteers pack.
148.

STATUTORY TESTING POLICIES - HOUSING
No areas of high or considerable risk to the council, compliance is well
maintained and programmes in place to maintain a high level of
satisfaction on all statutory elements.
Gas is maintained at 100% KPI.
Copy of the report will be circulated once it has had its final review with
Andrew Murray.

149.

FIRE SAFETY UPDATE - HOUSING
Copy of the report will be circulated once it has had its final review with
Andrew Murray.

150.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
None

151.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Date of next meeting Tuesday 20 June 2017

CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE

141

Agenda Item 16b

MINUTES OF THE CABINET OVERVIEW WORKING GROUP
HELD ON
9 March 2017

7.30 - 8.40 pm

PRESENT
Overview Working Group Members
Councillor Ian Beckett (Chair)
Councillor Mark Ingall (Vice-Chair)
Councillor David Carter
Councillor Michael Garnett
Councillor Stefan Mullard
Councillor Clive Souter
Councillor Rod Truan
Other Councillors

Officers

35.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
None

36.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None.

37.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2017
be agreed as a correct record.

38.

MATTERS ARISING
a) Update on Town Centre
(Minute 31refers)
Councillor Tony Durcan advised that at the previous meeting
Councillors Simon Carter and Maggie Hulcoop volunteered to be
part of the sub group established. He asked if there would be any
other Councillors interested to join the sub group and Councillors
Mike Garnett, Clive Souter and Stefan Mullard volunteered.
b) Any other matters arising

142

None

39.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY - FINAL REPORT
Councillor Tony Durcan and Julie Houston, Strategic & Economic
Development Manager, gave a presentation on the Economic
Development Strategy.
RESOLVED that the Overview Working Group recommends to
Cabinet that the Economic Development Strategy at Appendix A is
approved.

40.

WORK PLAN
The Cabinet Overview Working Group reviewed the Work Plan for the
year.
RESOLVED that
a. The 2016/2017 Work Plan is noted.

41.

MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS
None.

CHAIRMAN OF THE OVERVIEW
WORKING GROUP

143

Agenda Item 16c

MINUTES OF THE HARLOW LOCAL HIGHWAYS PANEL
HELD ON
29 March 2017

10.00 - 11.10 am

PRESENT
Committee Members
Councillor Eddie Johnson, Essex County Council (Chairman)
Councillor Mike Danvers, Essex County Council (Vice-Chair)
Councillor David Carter, Harlow District Council
Councillor Karen Clempner, Essex County Council
Councillor Tony Durcan, Essex County Council
Councillor Tony Hall, Harlow District Council
Officers
Rissa Long, Highways Liaison Officer, Essex County Council
Lisa Thornett, Customer Services Officer
Other Members
Councillor Simon Carter
20.

INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES
The panel received apologies from Councillors Danny Purton and Clive
Souter.
The Chairman welcomed all attendees to the meeting and invited
Councillors and Officers to introduce themselves.

21.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None.

22.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
AGREED that the minutes of the meeting held on 31 January 2017 are
agreed as a correct record.

23.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
A Member of the public had submitted a written question and had sent a
representative to address the panel.
Mr Stuart Bolwerk on behalf of Mr Tony Irish
Re bus lane on Velizy Way

144

Question 1
Can private hire vehicles use the bus lane only, right-hand turn off Velizy
Way?
Councillor Eddie Johnson advised that at present no vehicle other than
buses were permitted to use the right hand turn. He advised that it would
need to be submitted to another panel, for an amendment to the Traffic
Regulation Order (TRO) and agreed it would be plausible to enter into
consultation. A formal submission to the Harlow Local Highway Panel via
the relevant County member would need to be submitted.
Questions from Church Langley Residents Association who had Councillor
Simon Carter representing them.
Questions
Several questions had been submitted from the Church Langley Residents
Association with regards to access and leaving Church Langley.
Councillor Johnson advised the committee that he had met with the
residents already and had advised that there was several works due to be
undertaken, for example the box junction, traffic lights at the Clock Tower.
Councillor Johnson advised that it would need to be assessed, if the value
is under half a million pounds then it would need to come back to the panel
to be agreed.
Councillor Johnson provided feedback from David Sprunt who has advised
that the signage and lining will be done shortly.
24.

UPDATE ON SCHEMES
Members agreed to cancel item number four as enforcement action needs
to be proceeded.
Item 2 – LHAR004001- Various Locations – Cycling facilities.
It was agreed by the panel that £60,000 would be returned to the fund as
there are currently potential land issues with some of the sites being on
non-highway land.
Item 4 – LHAR152003 – Parsloe Road – Gateway Feature.
The panel agreed that this would be cancelled as Essex Highways
contractors experienced some problems whe they attended the site to
install the gateway feature.
Item 6 – LHAR162004 – Hodings Road – Feasibility Study
The panel were advised that all the feasibility assessments had been
completed. It was agreed that all measures would be put in place and that
the area would be monitored.

145

25.

POTENTIAL SCHEME LIST
The following items were agreed:
LHAR164002 – Pilkingtons - Cycling
Top up to existing scheme to introduce measures to improve the visibility
of the cycleway that crosses the road in Pilkingtons.
LHAR172002 – Tawneys Road –Traffic Management
Implementation of traffic calming measures in the vicinity of William Martin
School.
LHAR173002 - Hamstel Road – Walking
Detailed design and TRO for a zebra crossing in the vicinity of the hospital.
LHAR172001 - Hodings Road - Traffic Management
Implementation of measures in the vicinity of Pemberley Academy.
LHAR162009 - Fourth Avenue jct with North Gate roundabout –
Traffic Management
Scheme to look at redesigning the roundabout.
LHAR165029 - Canons Gate (opp)- Hobtoe Road – Passenger
Transport Replace Bus Shelter.
LHAR165033 - Hobtoe Road (SE-bound) Passenger Transport
Replace Bus Shelter.
LHAR162017 - Tumbler Road- Traffic Management
Request for layby improvements to accommodate echelon parking.
LHAR166001 - Trotters Road on the approach to Pear Tree Mead
Primary School -Total Scheme.
Replacement school wig wag unit.
LHAR175001 - Hobtoe Road, Harlow outside the PH – Total scheme
New shelter and bus stop infrastructure.
The Panel also agreed schemes for the 2018-19 rolling programme as
below:
LHAR165013 - Tilbury Mead-PT – Passenger Transport
Replace a Metal Shelter
LHAR163003 - Entrance to Church Gate School- Walking
1 pair of drop kerbs
LHAR163004 - Miles Close junction with Herbert’s-Walking
1 pair of drop kerbs

146

LHAR163008 - Shawbridge junction next to sign for houses 132-152 Walking
Drop Kerbs 1 pair of drop kerbs
LHAR165022 - Church Leys – Passenger Transport
Request for new shelter
LHAR165022 - 1 Church Leys –Passenger Transport
Request for new shelter
LHAR165023 - Pytt Field - Passenger Transport
Shelter and Hard Stand
LHAR165024 - Small Copper (opp)- Momples Road – Passenger
Transport
Replace Bus Shelter
LHAR165026 - Nicholsfield (opp)- Tumbler Road – Passenger
Transport Replace Bus Shelter
LHAR165027 - Tendring
Passenger Transport
Replace Bus Shelter

Road

(W-bound)-

Tendring

Road

–

LHAR165031- Hull Grove (opp)- Broadley Road – Passenger
Transport Replace Bus Shelter
LHAR165032 - Garden Tiger (o/s)- Maddox Road – Passenger
Transport Replace Bus Shelter
LHAR162010 - Willowfield layby improvement – Traffic Management
Feasibility study to look at either widening the existing layby to better
facilitate echelon parking or look to introduce a one way system
LHAR163020 - Barn Mead- Walking
Request for drop kerbs around the whole Barn Mead estate
LHAR172003 - Tawneys Road on the approach to William Martin
school Traffic Management
Advisory 20mph limit on the approach to the school
LHAR162014 -Potter Street- Traffic Management
Request to look into the existing 20mph zone and improving existing traffic
calming measures
26.

MAJOR CAPITAL SCHEMES
None

147

27.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Councillor Karen Clempner asked if it would be possible for the traffic
calming humps to be looked in and around the Katherines estate.
Councillor Eddie Johnson advised the panel that he would arrange for this
to be looked at
Councillor David carter asked regarding Paycock Road, the Council had
given permission for four bungalows to be built however there was a
restriction that they would need to incorporate parking within the grounds.
Additional permission has now been granted. Residents are parking on a
blind corner meaning that traffic has to overtake the parked cars and are
very impeded as you are unable to clearly see oncoming traffic.
Councillor Johnson advised that the area may need double yellow lines
and that he would need to submit an application.

28.

DATES OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will be an evening meeting in June 2017, date and time
to be confirmed.

CHAIRMAN OF THE PANEL

148

